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This is a translation of the Hungarian Report
Independent Auditor's Report
To the Shareholders of Sherbank Magyarorszag Zrt.
Report on the audit of the annual financial statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying 2019 annual financial statements of Sberbank
Magyarorszdg Zrt. (“the Company"), which comprise the statement of financial
position as at 31 December 2019 - showing a balance sheet total of
HUF 423,401 million and a total comprehensive income for the year of
HUF 2,129 million -, the related statement of comprehensive income, statement of
changes In equity, statement of cash flows for Lhe year then ended and notes to the
annual financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies,

In our opinion the annual financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial
position of the Company as at 31 December 2019 and of its financial performance and
its cash flows for the financial year then ended in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the EU (“EU IFRSs") and has been
prepared, in all material respects, in accordance with the supplementary requirements
of Act € of 2000 on Accounting ("Hungarian Accounting Law™) relevant for annual
financial statements prepared in accordance with EU IFRSs.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hungarian National Auditing Standards and
with applicable laws and regulations in Hungary, including also Regulation (EU) No.
537/2014 of the European Parliament and of the Council of 16 April 2014 on specific
requirements regarding statutory audit of public-interest entities (“Regulation (EU) No.
537/2014"). Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the
"Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the annual financial statements” section of
our report,

We are independent of the Company in accordance with the applicable ethical
requirements according to relevant laws in effect in Hungary and the policy of the
Chamber of Hungarian Auditors on the ethical rules and disciplinary proceedings and,
concerning matters not regulated by any of these, with the International Ethics
Standards Board for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (IESBA
Code), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements.

We believe thal the audil evidénce we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.
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Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most
significance in our audit of the annual financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the annual financial statements
as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereaon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters. For each matter below, our description of how our audit
addressed the matter is provided in that context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the "Auditor's responsibilities for the
audit of the annual financial statements section™ of our report, including in relation to
these matters, Accordingly, our audit included the performance of procedures
designed to respond to our assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
annual financial statements. The results of our audit procedures; including the
procedures performed to address the matters below, provide the basis for our audit

opinion on the accompanying annual financial statements.

Credit Impairment

The Company calculates credit
impairment in accordance with IFRS9
Financial instruments, Credit

impairment is a highly subjective area
due to the level of judgement applied by
management in determining expected
credit losses ("ECL"). The identification
of impairment and the determination of
the recoverable amount are an
inherently uncertain process involving
various assumptions and factors,
including the financial condition of the
counterparty, expected future cash
flows, and expected net selling prices of
collaterals. The portfolios which give
rise to the greatest uncertainty are
typically those where impairments are
derived from estimates of fulure cash
flows and realizable value of collateral,
calculated using collective impairment
models, are unsecured or are subject to
potential collateral shortfalls. These
ECL models require the significant
judgment of management regarding
correct segmentation, the identification
of significant changes in credit risk, the
inclusion of forward-looking elements
as well as the application of
management overlay lo reflect on

A e vy o Envas | 8 Wi Tholtul | vdind

We involved valuation specialists to
assist us in performing our audit
procedures, Our audit procedures
included among others the following
procedures.

We assessed the design and tested the
operating effectiveness ol internal
controls over the approval, recording
and manitoring ol loans and receivables
to customers and controls over ECL
calculations including the quality of
underlying data and systems,

For ECL for loans and receivables to
customers calculated on an individual

basis, we tested the assumptions
underlying the impairment
identitication and guantification

focusing both on loan cases with the
most significant potential impact on the
annual financial staternents and random
samples. We assessed the Company's
assumptions on the expected future
cash flows, including the value of
realisable collateral and estimates of
recovery on default based on our own
understanding and avallable market
information.
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circumstances beyond the modelling
capabilities, The use of different
modelling techniques and assumptions
could produce significantly different
estimates of loan loss provisions.

Due to the significance of loans and
receivables to customers (representing
63% of Total Assets as at 31 December
2019) and the related estimation
uncertainty, this is considered a hey
audit matter.

Information Technology (IT) systems

A significant part of the Company's
financial reporting process and interest
and fee revenue recognition is heavily
reliant on IT systems with automated
processes and controls over the
capture, storage and extraction of
information. A fundamental component
of these processes and controls is
ensuring appropriate user access and
change management protocols exist,
and are being adhered to.

These protocols are important because
they ensure that access and changes Lo
IT systems and related data are made
and authorized in an appropriate
manner.

As our audit sought to place a high level
of relance on |IT systems and
application controls retated Lo financial
reporting, a high proportion of the
overall audit effort was in this area.

A il Been o Eanst A Vaure Clabal Lsuiled

For ECL tor loans and receivables to
customers calculated on a collective
basis we evaluated the model
governance, methodologies, inputs and
assumptions used (probability of
default, loss given default, significant
changes in credit risk and forward-
looking elements) including model
vatidations and backtesting.

We alsop assessed whether the
disclosures in the annual financial
statement appropriately reflect the

Company's exposure to credit risk and
are compliant with the EU IFRSs,

The Company's disclosures about its
risk management policies are included
in Note 6.4 - Accounting policies which
specifically explains the key
assumptions used when determining
credit risk and their evaluation are
detailed in Note 6.6.4 - Loans to
customers and Note 6.11.3 Credit risk.

We focused our audit on those IT
systems and controls that are
significant for the Company's financial
reporting. As audit procedures over the
IT systems and application controls
require specific expertise, we involved
IT audit specialists in  our audit
procedures,

We understood and assessed the overall
IT control environment and the controls
in place which included controls over
access to systems and data, as well as
system changes. We adjusted our audit
approach based on the financial
significance of the system and whether
there were automated procedures
supported by that system,
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Furthermore the complexity of IT
systems and nature of application
controls requires special expertise to
be involved in the audit. We therefore
consider this as a key audit matter,

As part of our audit procedures we
tested the operating effectiveness of
controls over appropriate access rights
to assess whether only appropriate
users had the ability to create, modify or

delete user accounts for the relevant in-
scope applications. We also tested the
operating effectiveness of controls
around system development and
program changes to establish that
changes to the system were
appropriately authorized, developed
and implemented. Additionally, we
assessed and tested the design and
operating  effectiveness of  the
application controls embedded in the
processes relevant to our audit,

The Company's disclosures about its IT
Systems are included in Note 6.48 - IT
systems used by the Company.

Other information

Other information consists of the 2019 business report of the Company. Management
is responsible for the preparation of the business report in accordance with the
Hungarian Accounting Law and other relevant legal requirements, if any, Our opinion
on the annual financial statements does not cover the business report.

In connection with our audit of the annual financial statements, our respensibility is to
read the business report and, in doing so, consider whether 1) the business report is
materially inconsistent with the annual financial statements or our knowledge obtained
in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated and 2) the business report
has been prepared in accordance with the Hungarian Accounting Law and other
relevant legal requirements, if any.

We are required to confirm also whether the business report includes the non-financial
statement as required by Section 95/C of the Hungarian Accounting Law.

In our opinion, the business report of the Company for 2019 is consistent, in all
material respects, with the 2019 annual financial statements of the Company and the
relevant requirements of the Hungarian Accounting Law.

since no other legal regulations prescribe for the Company further requirements with
regard to its business report, we do not express opinion in this regard.

We also confirm that the business report includes the non-financial statement as
required by Section 95/C of the Hungarian Accounting Law.

Page 4 /7

i, vy oy e of Erves] 8 Yeain § Gaahl | emed



EY

Building a better
working world

Further to the above, based on the knowledge we have obtained about the Company
and its environment in the course of the audit we are required to report whether we
have identified any material misstatement in the business report, and if so, he nature
of the misstatement in question. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of management and those charged with governance for the annual
financial statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the annual
financial statements in accordance with the EU IFRS5s and the supplementary
requirements of the Hungarian Accounting Law relevant for annual financial
statements prepared in accordance with EU IFRSs, and for such internal control as
management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of annual financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,

In preparing the annual financial statements, management is responsible for assessing
the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no
realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Company's financial
reporting process.

Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the annual financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the annual financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance
is a high level of assurance, bul is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with Hungarian National Auditing Standards and with applicable laws and
regulations in Hungary, including also Regulation (EU) No. 537/2014 will always detect
a material misstaternent when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error
and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
annual financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with Hungarian National Auditing Standards and with
applicable laws and regulations in Hungary, including alse Regulation (EU) No.
537/2014, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

» identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the annual financial
slatements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control,
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» Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for
the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company's
internal control,

» Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by
management.

» Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern
basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a
material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention
in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the annual financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify ocur opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company
to cease to continue as a going concern.

» Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the annual financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the annual financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation,

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical reguirements regarding independence, and to
communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be
thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related sateguards.

From the matters cammunicated with those charged with governance we determine
those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the annual financial
statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters.

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements

Reporting requirements on content of auditor's report in compliance with Regulation
(EU) No. 537/2014:

Appointment and Approval of Auditor
We were appointed as statutory auditor by the General Assembly of Shareholders of
the Company on 28 May 2019, Total uninterrupted engagement period, including

previous renewals (extension of the period for which we were originally appointed) and
reappointments for the statutory auditor, has lasted lor eight year.
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Consistency with Additional Report to Audit Committee

Our audit opinion on the annual financial statements expressed herein is consistent
with the additional report to the audit committee of the Company, which we issued in
accordance with Article 11 of the Requlation (EU) No. 537/2014 on the same date as
the date of this report.

Non-audit Services

We declare that no prohibited non-audit services referred to in Article 5(1) of
Requiation (EU) No. 537/2014 were provided by us to the Company and we remained
independent from the Company in conducting the audit.

In addition to statutory audit services and services disclosed in the business report and
in the annual financial statements, no other services were provided by us to the
Company.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor's report is
Szabo Gergely.

Budapest, 21 April 2020

Szabd Gergely Szabd Gergely
engagement partner Registered auditor
Ernst & Young KIt, Chamber membership No.: 005676

1132 Budapest, Vaci ut 20,
Registration No, 001165
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Stund-alone Financial Strements 31, December 2019
Sherbank Hungary Ltd.

data in HUF million

1. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

lafa diy HUF mifiion
Mate 11.12.2018 31422018
Assots
Cash and cash equivalents 661 96 846 61 508
Secyuriies 662 31 016 43 BA4
Receivables from credit institutions 683 1111 27 455
Loans and advances to customens GEA 265637 228 625
Ptant, propesy and equipmeant 866 2237 1408
Right-af Use assels 666 3076 o
Intangible assots BV 8577 4 069
Equity investments 668 TR7 805
Investmeant proparty a 1]
Tax psunis B8ED 25 12
Derivative assels 6610 224 1219
Oihar assels =_= 6611 1 BB8 1 B&S
Nan-curtant assels and disposal groups heid for sake 6612 13 12
Total Assets 423 401 365 877
Liabilities
Liabilities due to banks 6.6:13 52697 | 34 938
Liabilibes due Io customers 6614 302 D38 265 481
Dbl socirlies in ksue B&15 1 310 4177
Subardinated liabiities 56.16 9313 9062
Pravisions 6617 1232 748
| Tax labilitles 689 H a6
Desivative liabilities 6.6.10 1255 ™R
Other Lahilitins - 66,18 8636 B 288
Non-current labiltes and disposal groups held for aale 0 0
Total Liabilitios 376 602 2 a43
Share capilal BE19 irer arzr
Share premium 66.20 94416 04416
Oltvar reserves 6621 421 185
 Other comprehensive incorng - [:X:] | 257
Retained eamings 51 926 54051
Total oquity 46 899 44 534
| Total iabilities and equity 423 401 365 077
Budapest, 21 April 2020
t1 L8 .
| ——
L o
o ‘__.__\..-—q. . ., =
Richard Szabé Eva Tudiaémé g;angyﬁsy
Chairman - CEO CFO
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2. INCOME STATEMENT

data in HUF mllion
MNole 2018 2018
Profit or loss far the yoear
Interest receivable and similar income a7 11 816 11 738
Interest payable and similar expanse 672 -2 437 -2 357
Net provision charge for loan mpairment 67.3 -BAG 593
Net interest income minus risk provisions 8633 8489
Fee and commission income 6.7.4 9206 8 346
Fea and commission expensa 6.7.5 <1 422 -1 208
Met fee and commissions incoma 7784 7138
Met trading incorme 6.76 304 1 851
Mel gain or lass on sacurities 6.7.7 -109 633
Changes in allowances for olhar risks 678 420 -235
Other operating income 879 2 680 T84
Oiher oparating expenses 67.10 46113 -15 350
Result before tax 2829 1 Badd
Incoma tax &7.11 -AG8 487
Profit or loss afer tax fram continuing oparations 2381 1347
Profit or loss after tax frem discontinued operations 0 0
Profit or loss after tax 2 361 1347
Charges in general rasernes 236 =136
Profit or loss for the year 2125 1212
[ Other comprehensive income for the year 88 A 493
Total comprehensive income for the year 2129 714
Budapest, 21 April 2020
/
o [~
Richard Szabd \ Eva Tudisbons d;ﬂnsyuay
Chairman - CEO CFO
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Sberbank Hungary Lid. ~ data in HUF million

3. STATEMENT OF OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

data in HUF miflion
Note | 31122019 31.12.2018

Othar comprehensive incama

Other comprahensive resulls not to be-mclasaified 1o profil or loss
Changes in fair value of equity nstruments designated at FVOCI
Changes in fair value of financial liabililies measured at FVTPL
duis Io changes in credl risks
Other ilems
Related laxos

Oﬂhru_gmpmhanwuml.ﬂ Io be reclassfied to profit or loss
Changes in fair value of debl instruments measured al FVOCH 68
Changes in fair value of loans mensured ol FYOC 6.8
Reclassification to profit or loss -

| Net gain or loss from sals of debt instruments measured at FVOC)
Impact of fransition from IAS 38 ta IFRS 9

| Other items

Rataied taxes

Other comprohensive incom

‘iﬂiﬂtﬂﬂﬂﬂ

lo

sloloioo|lojlosisalc a|csia
t.L
F-Y

i

Budapest, 21 April 2020

L S I
Richard Szabé Eva Tudigtoné yosy
Chairman - CEQ CFO
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Sherbank Hungary Lid,

data in HUF million

4. STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

dala in MHUF
Othaer
Moto f.m mlpr-rmuiu mx‘: Total
Balance at 1. January 2018 3var 50 <54 438 41 538
Impact of transition to IFRS a B -824 -H70
Profil for the year 0 ] 1347 1347
li?u;;ﬁommhunﬂw incarme for o 4T ] 447
Incraase In general reseres 0 o =135 i]
Increase in share capital 0 0 0 2916
Dividend payments 0 0 0 o
Total changes 0 493 388 2 046
Balance at 31. December 2018 v 257 -54 051 A4 534
" impact of transition from 1AS 17 0 o 0 8
o IFRS 16

Profit for the year 6.7 ; 0 a 2 361 2361
xmy:w comprahensive income for 88 D a 0 4
Increase n genersl resenves 6821 0 o -236 4]
Incraase |n share capital o o] 0 a
Dividend payments o 0 0 0
Total changes ] 4 2125 2 365
Balance at 31. Docsmbar 2019 arar 261 -51 926 46 B899

Budapest, 21 April 2020

; k& O

Richard Szabo
Chairman - CEO

Eva Tudis¢dné Gyongyosy

CFO
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SRS

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

data in HUF million
Mote 2018 2018
Cash flows from operating activities
| Interest income - 671 12778 1191
Intemwmse {nﬂmnm lzase liabilities) 6.7.2 -2 BO4 -2 13
Feos and Gommissons recewed 674 8216 8346
Fees-and commissions paid 6.7.5 1422 -1 208
et gains reatised on FVTPL securities 677 1 =]
Dividends received from FYTPL securities 67.7 o 0
MNel gains reaimed on derivatves 676 -250 o
Oiber oparating income recebiad BTG 7024 1 %‘E
Oparaling expenses pakd B.7.10 -14 580 14 T2
income tax paid 6711 466 497
m w from operating activities of discontinued 0 0
w changes in trading secuntes (increase -, decrease’ o 0
Nel changes in securibes designatad sl FYTPL (increase:
. 6.6.2 10 600 o
| decrease: +)
mlm loans and advances 1o banks (incroases. -, 6.6 8363 9524
_mﬁi ‘loans and advances to cusiomens 484 e | 30611
lincnaase. - decrease; +) il |
hhiuhmummrfmndu (nslruments (incrasse. -, 6611 8 52
decrease. +
N-al nhwwm ofher non-fmancial nstruments {increase:
BE11 -1 41
dmﬂu +)
Net n‘rmnu in due to banks tmmul +, :lur:rm =) BE13 17 828 <1 799
ruﬂmhdumwﬁmm+m 6614 46 540 20272
mﬂfm“mm“‘mm: 4 66.15 2129 80
Net :rmnm?z in other financial liabdities (increase. + 6618 809 1634
Net d'mngj in other non-financial labillres (increase: + | oo 0 52 F
" Net changes in FVTPL financial assets (increase -. &8 10 | 268 A5
tecrease’ ) _ ol
f&WHWme‘“‘““ " 6610 726 1 M6
Paid Intarest on lease contracts 672 -118 0
"Cash fiows from operating activities 38 811 -5 988
Cash flows from Investing activities
“Acquisiton of investment securities | &8z 10504 | 62060
m from dispoaal and maturity of imdestmant 662 21 791 70 100
Interest recatved on invesiment securities 871 540 728 |
ﬁmﬂlﬂmﬂmmm edquipment and 867 A 537 2983
Procaeds from disposal of plant, propery and equipment 678 o
| ipchuding insurance payrents and intangible assels
Actulsition of associalus &nd subsidianes o 1]
Proceeds from disposal of associales and subsidiaries 0 0
Dividends roceived from subsidiaries 877 35 6
Acqulsition of investment property 0 0
Proceeds from disposal of investment property | 0 1056
Cash fNlows from Investing activities ' 631 6 B
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data in HUF million
Notbe 2019 2018
Cash Hows from financlal activities
Loans receiverd ] o
Redemption of loans 0 0
Imterest paid on loans 4] o
‘Subordinated dobls recelved o o
Redamplion of subordinaled debis o 0
Interast paid on subondinated dabis 672 -3 -299
Dividends paid 0 0
Acquisition of own shams Q 7]
Procasds from dispesal of own shares purchased from o 4
shamholders
Cash recelved from shareholders ) 24916
Currancy exchange rales - il
E;ﬁ:dﬂumpmm:mm cash and cash 691 836 0
Cash flows from financial activities 842 | 2617
| Cash flows ) 37 038 3515
Cash and cash equivalants at 1, January 661 61808 58 293 |
Cash and cash equivalents at 31. December B61 98 846 61808
| Changes In Gash and cash equivalents 37 038 3515

Budapest, 21 April 2020

-

""x\\x “~ 2
Richard Szahé Eva Tudimé gyﬁngyﬁﬁy
Chairman - CEQ CFO
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6. NOTES

The notes in this chapter form part of the financial statements

6.1 General information

Sberbank Magyarorszag Zrt (the Bank) started operations as Magyarorszagi Volksbank Ltd.
on 27 August 1993. Its subscribed capital upon foundation was HUF 1,000 million and its
sole owner was Osterreichische Volksbanken AG (OVAG). Since 1896 the main shareholder
of the Bank had been Volksbank International AG (VBI), a subsidiary of OVAG. On 15
February 2012 the full acquisition of VBl was completed and as a result a subsidiary of the
Russian Sberbank became the majority shareholder of the Bank, which has been operating
under the name of Sberbank Europe AG since 5 November 2012. The ultimate parent
company of the Bank is Sberbank of Russia.

The new name of the Bank (Sberbank Magyarorszag Zartkorien Mikédd
Részvénytarsasag) is effective from 1 November 2013.

General information on the Bank:

Registered office: 1088 Budapest, Rakdczi Gt 1-3
Registration number: 01-10-041720

Tax number: 10776999-2-44

Stalistical code: 10776999-6419-114-01
Account number at MNB: 19017004-00201414

Website: www sherbank. hu

The Bank is authorised to perform the following registered activities!

As per TEAOR (Standard Sector Classification of Business Activities):
- 641908 Other monetary intermediation - Core activity
- 6492 '08 Other lending

- 6499 '08 Other financial intermediation elsewhere not classified

- 6612'08 Security and commodity contracts brokerage

- 661908 Other activities auxiliary to financial services

- 6622 '08 Insurance agent and broker activities

- 6629 '08 Other activities auxiliary to insurance and pension funding

Sberbank Europe AG (Schwarzenberg Street 3. 1010 Vienna Austria) prepares consolidated
financial statements in accordance with IFRS for the smallest unit of the Group which includes
Sberbank Magyarorszag Lid. as a subsidiary, Sberbank of Russia (Vavilova Street 19. 117997
Moscow, Russia) has 100% of the Sberbank Europe AG shares and prepares the consolidated
financial statements for the largest unit of the Group.

The annual financial statements of the Bank must be audited. Audit is performed by Ermnst &
Young Konyvvizsgalé KR (Vaci 0t 20. 1132 Budapest, Registration number: 01-09-267553;
Chamber of Hungarian Auditors registration number: 001165),

The (natural) person responsible for the audit: Gergely Szabd (CHA registration number:
005676).

I
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Person responsible for the Bank's accounting records: Mrs. Eva Gyongybsy Tudisco Finance
Director. (CHA registration number: 0057982).

Richard Szabd Chief Executive Officer and Mrs. Eva Gyongyésy Tudisco Finance Director
are authorised to sign jointly the financial statements of the Bank.

6.2 Senior executives

Senlor executives of the Bank as at 31 December 2019

Supervisory Board members Function Company
Alexander Witte chairman Sberbank Europe AG
Sonja Sarkbzl deputy chairman Sbherbank Europe AG
Martin Frank deputy chairman BhurbnmEurapﬂ AG
Kornél Halmos member  Sberbank Eurape AG
Michae! Oberhummer mambier independent

dr. Zolian Fényi member employse delegate
Tibor Bodnr B member | employee delegate
Members of the Board of Diroctors Function |

T-t‘l;h;dﬁmbﬁ ;ﬂ‘lill'rl'l"lﬂﬂ

Eva Tudisconé Gydngyosy ' member

-_BBHGL' Kalmar - | —ﬂum—ma o

Tamés Fodor s member R

6.3 Statement of compliance

As at 1 January 2018 the Bank switched from applying Hungarian accounting regulations to
the application of international accounting standards, thus these financial statements, based
on the option provided by Section 10 (2) of Act C of 2000, have been prepared in accordance
with International Financial Reporting Standards as announced as a regulation in the official
gazette of the European Union.

The Bank also prepares consolidated financial statements, in which it applies the same
accounting policies as in the preparation of the stand-alone financial statements.
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6.4 Accounting policies

Data in these financial statements are in Hungarian forints, which is the functional and
bookkeeping currency of the Bank. Unless otherwise indicated, data disclosed in the financial
statements are presented in Hungarian forints rounded to the nearest million.

The reporting date in the financial statements is 31. December 2019,

When preparing the financial statements and during bookkeeping the Bank assumes that the
going concern principle is met, that is, the Bank intends and is able to maintain its operations
for the foreseeable future, can continue its activity, and a closure of operations or any
significant reduction therein is not expected.

Section 6.9.14 Subsequent events contains analysis of the situation caused by the
coronavirus in the first quarter of 2020.

As a conclusion it can be stated that Management of the Bank believes that going concern
assumption does exist. Cessation of the operation or significant reduction thereof for
whatsoever reason is not expected in the foreseeable future.

Basic measurement principles

In accordance with the fair presentation principle, the Bank presents its financial position,
financial performance and cash flows fairly. Fair presentation requnras the faithful
representation of the effects of transactions, other events and conditions in accordance with
the definitions and recognition criteria for assets, liabilities, income and expenses set out in
IFRSs.

Assets and equity and liabilities are reported in the financial statements basically at cost or
amortised cost, except for financial instruments held for trading, derivatives and available-for-
sale assets and financial assets failed at SPPI test, which are presented at fair value.

Revaluation of foreign currency assets and foreign currency liabilities

Foreign currency assets, liabilities, income and expenses are booked in the currency of the
transaction, but are recognised in the financial statements in HUF.

Foreign currency assets and liabilities are converted to HUF on a daily basis at the middle
rate published by the Bank.

Foreign currency assets and liabilities are measured in the financial statements at the
exchange rate published by MNB and valid on the last day of the year
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Measurement estimates

As a result of inherent uncertainties in business activities, many items in financial statements
cannot be measured with precision bul can only be estimated. Estimation involves
judgements based on the latest available information and does not undermine the reliability
of the financial statements.

The Bank applies accounting estimaltes when quantifying the following items:
determining doubtful receivables, impairment and provisions;
obsolescence of inventories;

useful lives, residual values and depreciation of depreciable assets;
calculation of amortised cost,

determining the fair value of financial instruments.

* " 8 % @

An estimate may need revision if changes accur in the circumstances on which the estimate
was based or as a result of new information or more experience.

By ils nature, the revision of an estimate does not relate to prior periods and is not the
correction of an error, thus the effect of the change shall be recognised in the period of the
change and future periods (prospective recognition). Prospective recognition means that the
change is applied to lransactions and business events from the date of the change in
astimate.

Estimating impairment and provisions

Information relating to measuring and assessing credit risk are presened in Section 6.11.3
Credit risk

Estimating depreciation

The Bank records depreciation on property, plant and equipment as well as amortisation on
intangible assets from the first day after such are ready for use. The depreciation on
property, plant and equipment and the amortisation on intangible assets are recognised on a
straight-line basis, taking into account the expected duration of use and the residual value.

The Bank assumes that the commissioning date and the date assets become available for
use is one and the same, given that the business model followed by the Bank means the
commissioning of assets is not preceded by a lengthy stockpiling period.

Intangible assets always have definite useful lives. Straight-line rates used considering useful
lives determined individually:

a.) rights and concessions 15%
b.) goodwill 15%
c.) software max. 25%

d.) other intellectual property max. 25%
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Straight-line rates used for property, plant and equipment:

Land and buildings _
Buildings, parts of bulldings. heid by awn | 2.00%

Investment of bulldings heid by awn depanding on use, max 10.00% |
Investment of bulldings, rented according to leasa contracts (20%:)
“Plant and other machinery = i) ]

Office assets and equipment 14,50%
[ Copying machines and equipment | 14,50% o
Other office equiprment 14, 50%
Tolecommunications aquipment 14,60%
| Administration and other (office) fitings | 14,50% o
e Ton
Computers and IT equipment | max 2000%
Security equipment 14,50%
“Vehicles ===
Vehicles | 2000% |

The depreciation rates of right-of-use assets are determined according to the length of the
related contracts.

Calculation of amortised cost

Amortised cost is calculated using the effective interest method, which is also used to
determine interest income.

Effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments or
receipts through the expected life of the financial asset or financial liability to the gross
carrying amount of a financial asset or to the amortised cost of a financial liability. When
calculating the effective interest rate, the Bank shall estimate the expected cash flows by
considering all the contractual terms of the financial instrument but shall not consider the
expected credit losses.

The calculation includes all fees and commissions related to the creation of the deal and paid
or received between parties to the contract that are an integral part of the effective interest
rate, transaction costs, and all other premiums or discounts.

During the calculation the Bank applies the effective interest rate to the gross carrying

amount of the financial assets, except for:

- purchased or originated credit-impaired financial assets. For these assets the Bank
applies the credit-adjusted effective interest rate to the amortised cost of the financial
asset from initial recognition,

- financial assets that are not purchased or originated credit-impaired financial assets, bul
subsequently became credit-impaired financial assets. For these financial assets the
Bank applies the effective interest rate to the amortised cost of the financial assets in
subsequent reporting periods.

By applying the effective interest method the Bank identifies the fees that are an integral part
of the financial instrument's effective interest rate. Fees that are an integral part of the
effective interest rate of a financial instrument include:

- origination fees received by the Bank relating to the creation or acquisition of a financial
asset. Such fees include for example compensation for activities such as evaluating the
borrower's financial condition, evaluating and recording guarantees, collateral and other
security arrangements, negotiating the terms of the instrument, preparing and
processing documents and closing the transaction;
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- commitment fees received by the Bank to originate a loan when the loan commitment is
not measured at fair value through profit or loss and it is probable that the Bank will enter
Into a specific lending arrangement. If the commitment expires without the Bank making
the loan, the fee is recognised as income on expiry;

- origination fees paid on issuing financial liabilities measured at amortised cost,

These fees are an integral part of generating an involvement with the resulting financial
instrument,

The Bank distinguishes fees and costs that are an integral part of the effective interest rate
for the financial liability from origination fees and transaction costs relating to the right to
provide services, such as investment management services,

When applying the effective interest method the Bank generally amortises any fees, points
paid or received, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts that are included in the
effective interest rate calculation over the expected life of the financial instrument.

For floating-rate financial assets and floating-rate financial liabilities, the periodic re-
estimation of cash flows to reflect the movements in the market rate of interest alters the
effective interest rate.

In some cases the financial asset is considered credit-impaired at initial recognition because
the credil risk is very high, and in the case of a purchase il is acquired at a deep discount,
The Bank includes the initial expected credit losses in the estimated cash flows when
calculating the credit-adjusted effective interest rate for financial assets that are considered
to be purchased or originated credit-impaired at initial recognition.

For the Bank, the transactions that do not have a cash flow which can be reliably estimated
in advance are not included in the amortised cost calculation, |.e. their effective interest rate
Is the same as the transaction rate, and the amortised cost is the same as the outstanding
contractual amount. Such transactions include current account overdrafls and revolving
loans, credil lines and guarantees.

Estimating the fair value of financial instruments

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an assel or paid to transfer a liability in
an orderly transaction in the prnncipal (or most advantageous) market at the measurement
date under current market conditions (i.e. an exit price).

The Inputs to valuation techniques used to measure fair value can be categorised into a fair
value hierarchy which includes the following levels;

Level 1 inputs: Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities. An active market is a market in which transactions for the asset or liability take
place with sufficient frequency and volume to provide pricing information on an ongoing
basis.

Level 2 inputs: Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are
observable for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly, Such as for example:
quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities in active markets
quoted prices for identical or similar assets or liabilities in markets that are not
active
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other observable inputs:
o interest rates and yield curves observable at commonly guoted intervals
o implied volatilities
o credit spreads

market-corroborated inputs.

Level 3 inputs: Unobservable inputs. Unobservable inputs shall reflect the assumptions
that market participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, including
assumptions aboul nisk.

Where possible, the Bank uses principal market prices to determine fair value,

Given the Bank's low market share on principal markets and its relatively low total assets, the
Bank does not adjust observed prices The IFRS allow both call prices and bid prices to be
used for valuations, so in line with the consolidated accounting policies of its owner the Bank
« uses bid prices for debt securities
« and mid prices in all other instances for valuations.

If there are no observable prices on the principal markets then to determine the fair value of
receivables from customers and credit institutions with terms of more than 90 days the Bank
uses the DCF (discounted cash flow) method to estimate fair value with due consideration of
the following:

« The Bank adjusts future cash flows from the Core Banking System so they reflect
estimates of future interest rates. This adjustment appears in the cash flows with the
help of projected (forward and FRA) curves.

« When discounting the Bank uses money-market reference rates in line with the
nature of the transaction (for example: BUBOR3M or LIBOR3M),

s The Bank takes liquidity costs into account too by adjusting the discount rate as
appropriate. These are key parts of asset and liability pricing, and can be derived
from market parameters under Level 1 inputs (for example: material asset swap
spreads).

« When pricing assets (specifically in the case of loans), the price has to include
compensation for expecied losses stemming from any non-payment by the debtor.
Alongside the cash flows the Bank adjusts the discount curve as well in line with the
expected loss, so the fair value is not distorted.

« The Bank's internal rating system furnishes faithful information on credit risk
premiums in relation to expected credit risks; the adjustment applied is calculated
from the product of PD x LGD, where the LGD data comprises various collateral
levels.

The fair value of receivables from credit institutions with terms of less than 90 days is
determined based on the present value calculated in the Murex system.

If the carrying amount is a good approximation of the fair value (for example, current
receivables and liabilities of no more than 90 days. sight deposits and short-term deposits),
IFRS does not require any fair value measurement or calculation; in these cases the Bank
considers the carrying amount to be the fair value.

Although the Baby loan product launched in 2019 based on the Government Decree on
supporting child-bearing and child-raising is classified in 'hold' business model, because of
the special conditions of the product (see below) the SPPI test provided the result that the
contractual cash flows are not consistent with a basic lending arrangement. Therefore these
loans are not allowed to be measured at amortised cost,
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During SPP| test, the Bank detected the following critical contractual conditions:

- the reference interest rate published by the Hungarian State Treasury is
calculated from the government yields of the previous 3 months and is applicable
from the first day of the month after publication therefore it does not reflect the
yields available on the date of disbursement, but it reflects an average from a
significantly earlier time period

- in the formula for determining the interest rate of the deal the 130% of the
reference rate shall be applied therefore the above mentioned effect is multiplied
by 1,3 and so enhanced

- In the formula for determining the interest rate of the deal the margin rise
significantly by 300 basis points independently of credit risk of the customer when
ne child is conceived within 5 years after the disbursement

The Bank uses the DCF (discounted cash flow) method to estimate fair value of Baby loans
with the following amendments:

future cash flows are delermined as expected values based on the data from
studies analysing ferlility rates and actual birth data and published by the
Hungarian Central Statistical Office (KSH).

During calculating future cash flows, the possible outcomes are classified into
two scenarios as follows:

o the first cycle lasts until maturity or the conception of the second child,
when the government grant for 30% of principal outstanding are drawn
down

o the second cycle lasts from the conception of the second child until
maturity or the conception of the third child, when the government grant
for the whole remaining principal outstanding are drawn down

the calculation model takes Into account the repricing of the deal in every 5 year
and derives the future reference interest rates on which the nominal interest rate
of the deal is based from yield curves as forward/forward interest rates

The Bank measures financials assets/liabiliies on fair value which are: debt securities
(Hungarian governmenlt bonds) designaled al fair value under fair value option, and held
within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash
flows and selling financial assets, loans and advances in the same business model, loans
and advances which failed al SPPI test, other (not consolidated) equity investments and
derivatives. The Bank uses the following inputs for the fair value calculation of these
instruments.

Fair value hierarchy 1 (level 1)

The Bank calculates the fair value of the Hungarian government bonds using the
directly observed composition of quotes of contributors on the active market.

Fair value hierarchy 2 (level 2)

The Bank deals with derivatives (swaps, forward, options) only on the OTC markets,
meaning there is no directly observable market guotation in this case. However, the
fair value calculation is made with using input data which are observable on active
markets (yield curves, volatility surface) discounted cash flow method and option
price models (Black-Scholes, Garman-Kalhaegen)

Fair value hierarchy 3 (level 3)

Only the fair value of Visa Inc. investment can be defined reliably from the other
equity investments of the Bank. the Bank has ,C" series convertible stocks, which can
be converted to A" series commeon stacks on a specified rate The Bank calculates
the fair value of the ,C" series convertible stocks as the mulliplication of the directly

15
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observable market price of the ,A" series common stocks and the fixed conversion
rate.

The fair value of the Bank's remaining other equity investments cannot be defined reliably
after the initial recognition, therefore, in accordance with the Accounting Policy of the Bank,
the equity investments are measured on their initial costs less accumulated impairment after
the initial recognition. In these cases, the fair value difference of the equity investments is
calculated as a difference between the Banks' portion of investment's equity and the
historical cost and recognized as impairment, which is not directly observable input data.
According to the impairment tests performed at the reporting date and the comparative
reporting periods, there were no indication of impairment so no impairment was recognized
for these investments.

The calculation of the fair value is similar for the non-performing loans which are held within
a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and
selling financial assets. In these cases the past due days of receivables are more than 90
days, therefore the general cash flow method cannot be applied because estimated cash
flows are not reliable. The net carrying value of these loans equals the gross value of the
loans reduced with accumulated impairment, as a directly non-observable input data, that
Bank considers the realistic fair value of non-performing loans. The impairment movement
and its causes for these loans are disclosed in the impairment movement table of chapter
6.6.4.

The classification in the fair value hierarchy may change on account of changing market
conditions, modernised models and the sensitivity of input factors. If the market becomes
inactive for instance, the input parameters previously observable on the market may become
unobservable parameters. If a new fair value measurement model is applied that uses
several input factors observable on the market, this can refine the fair value calculation. The
impact of a used input parameter can become significant or insignificant.

This is why the Bank revises the fair value calculation methodology and hierarchical
classification at the end of each reporting period.

Principles of presenting financial instruments
Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash, nostro accounts, the minimum reserve placed with
MNB as well as overnight deposits placed with National Bank of Hungary (MNB) and other
credit institutions and accrued interest thereof,

Initial recognition

The Bank treats all contracts as financial instruments that give rise to a financial asset for
one entity and to a financial liability or an equity instrument for another entity.

The Bank treats all contracts as equity instruments that evidence a residual interest for the
Bank in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its liabilities.

The Bank recognises financial instruments in the statement of financial position when it
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

Excapt for derivatives, the Bank recognises regular way purchase or sale of financial assets
using seftlement date accounting, while in the case of derivatives it accounts for the
transactions on the trade date.
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Al initial recognition the Bank measures financial assets and financial liabilities at their fair
value plus or minus, in the case of a financial asset or financial liability is not valued at
FVTPL transaction costs that are directly atiributable to the acquisition or issue of the
financial asset or financial liability. An exception to this are trade receivables that do not have
a significant financing component. These receivables are measured al their transaction price
as defined in IFRS 15,

If the Bank originates a loan that bears an off-market interest rate, and receives an upfront
fee as compensation, the Bank recognises the loan at its fair value, i.e. net of the fee it
receives.

If it is determined that the fair value at initial recognition differs from the transaction price, the

difference is accounted for as follows!

- if the fair value is evidenced by a quoted price in an active market for an identical asset
or liability (Level 1 input) or based on a valuation technique thal uses only data from
observable markets (Level 2 input). The Bank recognises the difference between the fair
value at initial recognition and the transaction price as a gain or loss:

- In all other cases the fair value at initial recognition shall be adjusted by the deferred
amount of the difference between the fair value and the transaction price. After initial
recognition, the Bank shall recognise the deferred difference as a gain or loss only to the
extent that it arises from a change in a factor that market participants would take into
account when pricing the asset or liability.

Classification and measurement - business model for managing the financial asset

Based on the business model for managing the financial asset, specified in a resolution by
the Board of Directors, the Bank classifies financial assets upon initial recognition into one of
the following models:
a) business model whose objective is to hold financial assets to collect contractual cash
flows;
b) business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash
flows and selling financial assets;
c) other business models, of which one is a business model, in which the Bank
manages the financial assets with the objective of realising cash flows through the
sale of the assets.

The business model is determined at a level that reflects how groups of financial assets are
managed together to achieve a particular objective. The business model does not depend on
management's intentions for an individual instrument. Accordingly, this condition is not an
instrument-by-instrument approach to classification but can be determined on a higher level
of aggregation, and more than one business model can be used for managing financial
instruments. The portfolio segmentation of the Bank is decided on by the Board of Directors.

When assessing its business model, the Bank considers all relevant information that is

available at the date of the assessment, which includes, but is not limited to:

- how the performance of the business model and the financial assets held within that
business model are evaluated and reported to the Bank's key management personnel:

- the risks that affect the performance of the business model (and the financial assets held
within the model), and particularly the method for managing these risks.

- how managers of the business are compensated.

The Bank classifies financial assets at inilial recognition into the following categories based
on the business model for managing the financial asset and the contractual cash flow
characteristics of the financial asset:

- financial assets measured at amortised cost;

20
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- assels measured at fair value through other comprehensive income,
- assets measured at fair value through profit or loss;
- purchased or originated credit-impaired financial assets.

Financial assets are measured by the Bank at amortised cost, if both of the following

conditions are met:

- the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold financial
assets to collect contractual cash flows;

- the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise, on specified dates, to cash flows
that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets are measured by the Bank at fair value through other comprehensive

income, if both of the following conditions are met:

- the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both
collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets;

- the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise, on specified dates, to cash flows
that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

The Bank examines whether the cash flows of a financial asset are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding by using a decision tree designed
for this purpose (contractual cash flow test, SPPI test).

Based on the SPPI test, it can be decided whether contractual cash flows are consistent with
basic lending arrangements.

Contractual cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal
amount outstanding are consistent with basic lending arrangements. In a basic lending
arrangement, consideration for the time value of money and credit risk are lypically the most
significant elements of interest; however, interest can also include consideration for other
basic lending risks and costs, as well as a profit margin. Contractual terms that introduce
exposure to risks or volatility in the contractual cash flows that is unrelated to a basic lending
arrangement give rise to contractual cash flows that are not solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding. In this case the Bank measures the financial
asset at fair value through profit or loss.

Of equity instruments, the Bank records interests in subsidiaries under IAS 27 at cost less
booked impairment in its books, while other investments that do not qualify as related
companies are measured at fair value through profit or loss. However, if at initial recognition
it is likely that the fair value of an investment cannot be measured reliably in the future, then
these interests are classified into assets measured at fair value through comprehensive
income upon initial recognition of interests. If the fair value of such interests cannot be
determined reliably after initial recognition, these interests are recorded in the books at cost
less accumulated impairment at measurements after initial recognition.

According to the principals above the Bank evaluates its other equity investments as follows:

Equity investment Valuation method

Fundamenia- Lakdskassza .
Laksstakarekpénatdr Zn Falr value through Other Comprehansive Income
Garantiga Hitelgarancia Zrt. Fair value through Other Comprehensive Incoma
SWIFT Fair vaiue through Other Comprehansiae Income

isa Int Fair value through Profit or Loss
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The Bank may, at initial recognition, irrevocably designate a financial asset as measured at

fair value through profit or loss when doing so results in more relevant information, because

either:

- It eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement or recognition inconsistency that

would otherwise arise from measuring assets or liabilities or recognising the gains and
losses on them on different bases;

- agroup of financial assets or financial assets and financial liabilities is managed and its
performance is evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance with a documented risk
management or investment strategy, and information about the group is provided
internally on that basis to the Bank’s key management personnel

Financial liabilities

All financial liabilities shall be classified as subsequently measured at amortised cost, except

for:

- financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss. Such liabilities include for example
derivative instruments that shall be measured at fair value.

- financial liabilities that arise when a transfer of a financial asset does not qualify for
derecognition or when the continuing involvement approach applies.

- financial guarantee contracts and commitments to provide a loan at a below-market
interest rate. An issuer of such a contract shall subsequently measure it at the higher of
the following two options:

« the amount of the loss allowance;
= the amount initially recognised less the cumulative amount of income.

The Bank may, at initial recognition, irrevocably designate a financial liability as measured at
fair value through profit or loss when doing so results in more relevant information, because
either:

- It eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement or recognition inconsistency that
would otherwise arise from measuring assets or liabilities or recognising the gains and
losses on them on different bases;

- a group of financial liabilities or financial assets and financial liabilities is managed and
its performance is evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance with a documented risk
management or investment strategy, and information about the group is provided
internally on that basis to the key management personnel of the Bank,

Modification of contractual terms for financial instruments

I a transaction is modified because of a custorer request, and nol because the customer is
struggling with financial difficulties (performing customer), and the new conditions are
measured at market price, then the modification is deemed market-driven.

In this case, if the impact of the modification is significant, the old instrument has lo be
derecognised and the renegotiated loan treated as a new instrument. If the net effect of the
derecognition and the new recognition is not zero, this impact has to be recognised through
profit and loss upon derecognition. The Bank recognises the impact of the derecognition
under Other operating income.

Among other things, the Bank considers the following to be a significant modification of
contract: '

- change in debtor

- change In contract currency

- increase in loan amount, refinancing
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- change in SPPl-critical condition
- significant change in term (at least 100%, but no less than 2 years)

If the modification does not count as significant, the instrument is not derecognised; the
modification gain or loss is accounted for separately in the net interest income/expense, and
it also adjusts the amortised cost of the instrument. This gain or loss is subsequently
amortised over the life of the transaction using the effective interest method.

Write-off of financial assels

The Bank writes off the amount of unrecoverable receivables against profit or loss.

A receivable is considered unrecoverable if,

- there is no collateral for it during enforcement;

- it was released in the framework of an agreement;

- there is no collateral for it according to the written statement issued by the liquidator;
- there is no collateral for it based on the proposal for the distribution of assets;

- the costs of collection are not in proportion to the amount of the receivable;

- the debtor cannot be located and this is “"documented’,

- it cannot be enforced in a court of law,

- it has expired.

Reclassification

Financial assets may be reclassified when, and only when, the Bank changes its business
model for managing financial assets. A change in the business model will occur only when
the Bank either begins or ceases to perform an activity that is significant to its operations
(e.g.. a business ling). The following for example are not changes in business model. a
change in intention related to particular financial assets or the lemporary disappearance of a
particular market for financial assets.

Reclassification shall be applied prospectively from the reclassification date. This means that
any previously recognised gains, losses or interest shall not be restated.

Financial liabilities may not be reclassified.

Financial assets pledged as collateral

Under financial assets used as collateral, the Bank discloses collateral placed at other banks
to cover losses from derivative transactions as well as securities and SME loans used lo

cover FGS refinancing sources.

The Bank retained all the risks and rewards related to ownership of the financial assets used
as collateral, so these assets remain part of the Bank's balance sheet. Their presentation is
based on the accounting policies of cash and securities.

Interest income and interest expense on derivative transactions

For derivative transactions the Bank presents the related interest income and interest

expense broken down by the transaction objective:
- for derivatives in the trading book, the related interest income and interest expense are

recognised in the Net trading income/expense,
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for transactions in the banking book, the related interest income and interest axpense
form part of the net interest income/expense.

Accounting for leases

As of 1 January 2019 the Bank adopted IFRS 16 instead of IAS 17. During transition the
Bank used the option provided by the standard and applies the requirements of the standard
prospectively. As a result, reporting-year data and comparative information have been
prepared based on different rules: at the end of the reporting year (2019) figures are
presented under IFRS 16, while comparative information includes data under IAS 17.

The Bank applies the rules of IFRS 18 standard as follows;

the Bank does not apply the standard lo Intangible assets
- the Bank does not apply the recognition and measurement requirements of the standard
to right-of-use asset and lease liability to
« |eases with a lease term less than 12 months, and
* leases for which the underlying asset is of low value. The Bank sets the threshold
for low-value assets in the context of this standard at EUR 4,000
for short-term leases and leases for which the underlying asset is of low value, the Bank
recognises the lease payments associated with the leases as an expense on a straight-
line basis over the lease term.
- at the commencement date, the Bank recognises
= aright-of-use assel at cost, which comprises
o the amount of the initial measurement of the lease liability
o any lease payments made at or before the commencement date, less any
lease incentives received
@ any initial direct costs incurred by the lessee
o an estimate of costs to be incurred by the lessee in dismantling and
removing the underlying asset
= alease liability in the amount of the present value of the future lease payments
- the Bank applies the rules relating to short-term leases to operating leases for which the
lease term ends within 12 months of the date of |nitial application
- The Bank applies a single discount rate to a portfolio of leases with similar
characteristics (such as leases with a similar remaining lease term for a similar class of
underlying asset in a similar economic environment)
for vehicle leases the Bank uses the interest rate implicit in the lease, while for property
lease contracts, considering thal determining the market value of leased parts of
property would cause unnecessary costs and effort to the Bank, it uses the lessee's
incremental borrowing rate
- the Bank does nat consider non-reclaimable VAT part of the lease liability and the right-
of-use asset
- the Bank determines the |lease term as follows:
o the non-cancellable period of a lease
o increased by the periods by an option to extend the lease if the Bank is
reasonably certain to exercise that option
o decreased by the periods covered by an option to terminate the lease if the Bank
is reasonably certain to exercise that option
- the Bank revises the lease term if there Is a change in the non-cancellable period of
lease (e.g. lhe Bank exercises an option not previously included in the determination of
the lease term)
- after the commencement date, the Bank measures the right-of-use asset applying a cost
model! and determines its book value as follows:
o cost of the asset
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o less any accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses
o adjusted for any remeasurement of the lease liability
- to calculate the depreciation of the right-of-use assets the Bank applies the general rules
of depreciation
- the Bank depreciates the right-of-use asset from the commencement date to the earlier
of the end of the useful life of the right-of-use asset or the end of the lease term,
however, if the lease transfers ownership of the underlying asset to the Bank by the end
of the lease term or if the Bank is reasonably certain to exercise a purchase option, the
Bank depreciates the right-of-use asset until the end of the useful life of the underlying
asset
- the Bank applies IAS 36 Impairment of Assets to determine whether the right-of-use
assel is impaired and to account for any impairment loss identified
- after the commencement date, the Bank determines the book value of the lease liability
as the sum of the followings:
o lease liability at inception
o increased by the amount of the interest on the lease liability
o decreased by the lease payments made
o modified by any remeasurement or lease modifications
- the Bank determines the interest on the lease liability as the amount that produces a
constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of the lease liability
- during lease term, the Bank recognises the interest on the lease liability and variable
lease payments not included in the measurement of the lease liability in profit or loss
- the Bank remeasures the lease liability by discounting the revised lease payments using
a revised discount rate, if there is a change either
o inthe lease term, or
o in the assessment of an option to purchase the underlying asset
- the Bank remeasures the lease liability by discounting the revised lease payments, if
there is a change either
o inthe amount expected to be payable under a residual value guarantee, or
o in future lease payments resulting from a change in an index or a rate used to
determine those payments
in this case, the Bank uses an unchanged discount rate, unless the change in lease
payments results from a change in floating interest rates
- the Bank recognises the amount of the remeasurement of the lease liability as an
adjustment to the right-of-use asset, however, if the carrying amount of the right-of-use
asset is reduced to zero, the Bank recognises any remaining amount of the
remeasurement in profit or loss
- the Bank accounts for a lease modification as a separate lease if both
o the modification increases the scope of the lease by adding the right to use one
or more underlying assets, and
o the consideration for the lease increases by an amount commensurate with the
stand-alone price for the increase in scope and any appropriate adjustments to
that stand-alone price to reflect the circumstances of the particular contract
- for a lease modification that is not accounted for as a separate lease, at the effective
date of the lease modification the Bank remeasures the lease liability by discounting the
revised lease payments using a revised discount rate and makes a corresponding
adjustment to the right-of-use asset for the lease modifications

Before 1 January 2019 IAS 17 was in force, therefore comparative data Included in the
financial statements are presented under IAS 17, whereby rules are as follows.
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Under IAS 17 a lease is an agreement whereby the lessor conveys to the lessee in return for
a payment or series of payments the right to use an asset for an agreed period of time.

A finance lease is a lease that transfers substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to
ownership of an asset, imespective of the form of the contract An operating lease is a lease
other than a finance lease.

A lease can be a finance lease if

- the lease transfers ownership of the asset to the lessee by the end of the lease term:;
the lessee has the option to purchase the asset at a price that is expected to be
sufficiently lower than the fair value at the date the option becomes exercisable for it to
be reasonably certain, at the inception of the lease, that the option will be exercised:
the lease term is for the major part of the economic life of the asset even if title is not
transferrad;
at the inception of the lease the present value of the minimum lease payments amounts
to al least substantially all of the fair value of the leased asset: and

- the leased assets are of such a specialised nature thal only the lessee can use them
without major modifications.

The Bank treats assets obtained under finance lease as if they were own assats: they are
recorded al cost and are amortised over their useful lives.

The amount of fulure lease liabilities is recorded as lease liability when the asset is
capitalised. The principal portion of lease payments made during the term reduces this
liability, while the interest portion is accounted for under interest paid.

Lease payments under operating leases are recognised in profit or loss on a straight-line
basis over the |ease term.

The Bank does not lease out assets as part of its normal course of business.

Accounting for government grants

Government grants are transfers of resources to an entity in return for past or future
compliance with certain conditions.

In accordance with IAS 20, the Bank recognises government grants only if there is
reasonable assurance that it will comply with the conditions attaching to them and the grants
will be received. Receipt of a grant does not of itself provide conclusive evidence, especially
if compliance with the conditions is checked subsequently.

In accordance with the pravisions of IAS 20, the Bank treats the benefit of a government loan
at a below-market rate of interest as a government grant.

Govemment grants are recognised in profit or loss on a systematic basis over the periods in
which the Bank recognises as expenses the related costs for which the grants are intended
to compensate.

Government grants related to assets, including non-monetary grants at fair value, are
presented in the balance sheet as deferred income and not by deducting the grant in arriving
at the carrying amount of the asset.

Government grants related to income are presented in the same profit or loss category that
includes the expenses for which the grants are intended to compensate,

The Bank accounts for government grants for the following items:
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- MNB interest rate swaps conditional on lending activity (HIRS)
- Preferential deposits at the MNB.
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In contrast to the above, the Bank accounts for its HUF monetary policy interest rate swaps
with the MNB (MIRS) under IFRS 9 using the practice that has developed in the Hungarian
banking sector based on the opinicn of the Chamber of Hungarian Auditors and as approved
by the MNB as the supervisory authority; here the government grant is not separated during
the presentation, and its impact on fair value is immediately recognised through profit or loss
as the day-one gain or loss.

Accounting for hedges
The Bank did not apply hedge accounting until the end of 2019,

Fair value option

Under IFRS @ an entity may, at Initial recognition, irrevocably designate a financial asset as
measured at fair value through profit or loss if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces a
measurement or recognition inconsistency that would otherwise arise from measuring assets
or liabilities on different bases. The application of the fair value option shall result in the
financial statements providing reliable and more relevant information about the effects of
transactions on the entity's financial position, financial performance and cash flows. The fair
value option may be applied for example when an entity has financial assets that share a
risk, such as interes! rate risk, and that gives rise to opposite changes in fair value that tend
to offset each other In such cases the entity may measure the assel that otherwise is
measured at amortised cost at fair value.

The Bank chose to apply the fair value option for disclosure of Hungarian treasury bond
portfolio (amounts to 10 bilion HUF at face value) whose interest rate risk is hedged by
interest rate swap transactions concluded in the frame of HIRS (MNB Market-Based Lending
Scheme). The deal expired in 2019,

Treatment of events after the reporting period

Events after the reporting period are events, favourable and unfavourable, that occur
between the reporting date and the date when the financial statements are authorised for
issue.

The amounts included in the financial statements shall be adjusted for events that provide
evidence of conditions thal existed al the reporting date.

Such events include for example the receipt of information after the reporting date indicating
that an asset was impaired at the reporting date.

If after the reporting date the management of the Bank decides to liquidate the entity or to
rease operations, or has no realistic alternative bul to do so, the financial statements may
not be prepared using the going concern basis of accounting. This fact must be disclosed in
the notes to the financial statements,

The amounts recognised in the financial statements shall not be adjusted to reflect those
events thal are indicative of conditions that arose after the reporting date. However,
additional disclosure may be necessary in the notes to the financial statements.

Such event is for example a decline in the market value of investments after the reporting
date,

Dividends approved after the reporting period shall be treated as a non-adjusting event, thus
these shall not be recognised as a liability at the reporting date. if dividends are declared
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before the financial statements are authorised for issue, this fact shall be disclosed in the
notes.
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Rules relating to corrections of accounting errors

Financial statements do not comply with IFRSs if
they contain either material errors
- or immaterial errors made intentionally.

The Bank considers an error material, if its aggregate amount together with any other errors
exceeds 2% of the balance sheet total, or HUF 1 million, if such 2% of the balance sheet
total does not reach HUF 1 million.

Current period errors discovered in that period are corrected in the current period.

Significant errors made in financial statements for previous years are corrected by
retrospective restatement in the first set of financial statements after the discovery of the
errors,

During retrospective restatement comparative amounts for the prior period(s) presented in
which the error occurred shall be restated, If the error occurred before the earliest prior
period presented, the opening balances for the earliest prior period presented shall be
restated.

An exception to this is when retrospective restatement is impracticable; in this case opening
balances shall be stated for the earliest period for which it is practicable (which may be the
current period)

The effect of insignificant errors on assets, liabilities and equity shall be corrected in the
current period. Opening balances are not restated, The effect of insignificant errors on prior-
year profit or loss is accounted for through current-year profit or loss.

Changes in accounting policies
As of 1 January 2019 the Bank adopted IFRS 16 instead of IAS 17,

Due to application of IFRS 16 Leases the Bank as lessee supplemented its accounting

policies as follows:

- the Bank recognises the cumulative effect of initially applying the standard as an
adjustment to the opening balance of retained earings at the date of initial application in
the 2019 financial statements, and it does not recognise comparative information:

- lhe Bank only applies the standard to contracts existing on the date of transition that
were previously identified as leases applying IAS 17 Leases and IFRIC 4 Determining
whether an Arrangement conlains a Lease,

- the Bank does not apply the standard to intangible assets

- the Bank does not apply the recognition and measurement requirements of the standard
to right-of-use asset and lease liability to

s leases with a lease term less than 12 months, and
= |eases for which the underlying asset is of low vaiue. The Bank sets the threshold
for low-value assets in the context of this standard at EUR 4,000,

- for short-term leases and leases for which the underlying asset is of low value, the Bank
recognises the lease payments associated with the leases as an expense on a straight-
line basis over the lease term

in
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- at the commencement date, the Bank recognises
« aright-of-use asset at cost, which comprises
a the amount of the initial measurement of the |lease liability
o any lease payments made at or before the commencement date, less any
lease incentives received
o any initial direct costs incurred by the lessee
o an estimate of costs to be incurred by the lessee in dismantling and
removing the underlying asset
« alease liability in the amount of the present value of the future lease payments
for leases previously classed as operating leases under IAS 17, as of the date of initial
application the right-of-use asset is measured at an amount equal to the lease liability,
adjusted by the amount of any prepaid or accrued lease payments relating to that lease
recognised in the statement of financial position immediately before the date of initial
application,

- at initial application of the standard the Bank does not make such adjustment for leases
for which the underlying asset is of low value;

- the Bank applies the rules relating to short-term leases to operating leases for which the
lease term ends within 12 months of the date of initial application;

- for operaling leases the Bank excludes initial direct costs from the measurement of the
right-of-use asset at the date of initial application; and

- it uses hindsight in determining the lease term if the contract contains options to extend
or terminate the lease

- The Bank applies a single discount rate to a portfolio of leases with similar
characteristics (such as leases with a similar remaining lease term for a similar class of
underlying asset in a similar economic environment),

. for vehicle leases the Bank uses the interest rate implicit in the lease, while for property
lease contracts, considering that determining the market value of leased parts of
property would cause unnecessary costs and effort to the Bank, it uses the lessee’s
incremental borrowing rate

- the Bank does not consider non-reclaimable VAT part of the lease liability and the right-
of-use asset

The impact of transition from IAS 17 to IFRS 16 on the assets, liabilities, equity and
comprehensive income of the Bank is presented in chapter 6.5 Transition to IFRS 16.

Standards issued by IASB and adopted by the European Union not yet effective, and
their expected effect

IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts

IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts issued in May 2017 and effective from 1 January 2021
regulates accounting for and recognising insurance and re-insurance contracts.

Considering that the Bank does not provide insurance services, the introduction of the new
standard has no effect on the financial statements and bookkeeping of the Bank.

3
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Amendments not vet adopted by the European Union

- Amendments to the Framework
effective from 1 January 2020

- Amendments to IFRS 3 Business Combinations
effective from 1 January 2020
Amendments to IAS 1 and IAS 8, Definition of Material
effective from 1 January 2020

The Bank plans to apply the above amendments after they are adopted by the EU

The Bank’s IT systems supporting bookkeeping processes

The Bank's books are kept in an integrated core banking system (MIDAS) recording loans
and deposits with related sub-ledgers, running on an AS/400 server:

Clavis — securities

Spectrum - derivatives, MM transactions

SAP Fl — customers, suppliers, property, plant and equipment records, mixed accounting
ABC Card management — bankcards

BW3 - credit cards

Smartleaser - lease transactions

Appello - collateral, guarantees, letters of credit

These sub-ledger systems — with the exception of Appello — provide electronic ledger
postings on a daily basis to the MIDAS general ledger via the GPSI interface as part of the
daily close; Appello prepares its bookkeeping file once a month, at the end of the reporting
month.

Purchased and issued securities are recorded in the Clavis Securities seltliement and
registration programme, which posts electronically to MIDAS.

Derivative and money-market transactions are settled, recorded and booked in the Spectrum
registration and bookkeeping system, which sends electronic postings on a daily basis to
MIDAS.

Deposit, loan and interbank transactions as well as account-management bookkeeping take
place in MIDAS.

Petty cash items related to cash transactions are also booked in the integrated MIDAS
system, thereby ensuring that cash balances recorded by denomination in the sub-ledgers
tally with the balance of petty cash accounts in the general ledger.

Given that MIDAS only records the contractual transactions and balances of transactions, the
Bank uses an application called IFRS Tool to calculate effective interest rates and the
corresponding amortised costs, as part of the closing procedure it calculates the necessary
adjusiments once a month, on the second day after the end of the month, before sending
them to the MIDAS general ledger through the GPSI interface.

Bankcard settlements take place via the Card booking card management system, which
automatically prepares GPS| postings to MIDAS every day

The integrated SAP application facilitates the settlement of operating costs and income
anising during non-banking business, and the booking of related accruals/deferrals.
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GL items for payroll settlements are posted to SAP by the external sub-ledger payroll system
operated by the HR Department on the last working day of the reporting month (the sub-
ledger payroll system used is NexonBér, owned by NEXON Kft.).

SAP compiles the payment files for the payment of trade payable invoices and tax liabilities,
etc., and connects — via an interface - to the MIDAS GIRO module

The general ledger data of business events booked in SAP are posted to MIDAS — via the
GPSI interface — during the daily GL close,

Following the daily close, data is transferred from MIDAS to the data warehouse (DWH),
from which a full general ledger statement along with other sub-ledger transactions and data
can be retrieved using Cognos.
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6.5 Transition to IFRS 16

As a result of transitioning from 1AS 17 to IFRS 16, the Bank's balance sheet changes as
follows from 1 January 2019:

Changes in assoto
| Right-af-usa assets (property) a 3 451
 Right-of-use nssets (vehicles) | b | 28
Planl b -
Towl 3440

Changes in kabilities

Leass liabllies  ab 3530

| Acaried discount from lemsng feo a _ <B4

Tatal 3445
a. Properties

In case of property rental contracts previously identified as operative lease the Bank
records the lease liability in its books at the discounted present value of fulure lease
payments (HUF 3 535 million)

Prior to 2019, property-related rental fees were recognised under |IAS 17 in such a
manner that all the discounts received during the lease term were accounted for on a
straight-line basis in profit or loss over the term of the contract, regardless of which
period's rental fee the discount was taken into account, According to the requirements of
IFRS 16, these accrued discounts decrease the value of the right-of-use assets at
transition.

The Bank does not consider non-reclaimable VAT to be part of the lease liability and the
right-of-use asset,

b Vehicles

The leased vehicles were considered as finance lease before transition and were
recognised as leased assets in the balance sheet of the Bank (HUF 31 million at the end
of 2018). The transition brought a change to the accounting methodology as follows:
- he assets previously recorded as leased assets are recognised from 2019 as right-
of-use assets in the financial statements of the Bank
the Bank does not consider non-reclaimable VAT (HUF 5 million) to be part of the
lease liability and the right-of-use assel.
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6.6 Notes to the Balance Sheet

6.6.1. Cash and cash equivalents

31122019 | 31.12.2018
Cash and cash squivalents
~ Cash in hand 4665 3632
Gurrent account with Ceniral Bank 1837 2 841
impaimment fae currant account with Cantral Bank a -7
Deposits with Cantral Bank B4 453 21 400
Impaiment for deposits with Central Bank 4 0
Nostro accounts and overnight luans 8092 33 943 |
~ Impaimment far nostro accounts and ovarnight loans 0 i
Total of cash and cash equivalents 98 846 61 808

The balance of the account held at the National Bank of Hungary (MNB) includes a minimum
reserve of HUF 1 633 million, which the Bank does not use during its day-to-day operations.

In order to the increase the Banks's cash equivalents the Bank significantly raised the
amount of deposits with the MNB, in contrast reduced the volume of nostro accounts
compared to the previous year, At the end of 2019, no impairment is reported for the balance
of current account including minimum reserves.

In 2018, collective impairment of HUF 1 million was recorded for the balance of nostro
accounts and overnight deposits at other banks, with a view of the partner banks’' standard
risk rating. In 2019, this impairment did not reach the amount of HUF 1 million.

31.12.2019
Current Hostro
account Deposits | accounts,
with with avernight
Changos in expected eredit loss (ECL) during the year Central Bank | Central Bank Ioans Total
opening balance 7 el al s
~ allocation ET - 0 A2
roinase 18 0 ! 19
write-offs 0 o| 0 0
modifications without derecognition 0 0 0 0
changes in ECL measurement mnml-.murnptlum and inputs o 0 [¥] o
other movements (foreign currency translation) 0 0 0 0
closing balance = 0 Y 0 A
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[ 31.12.2018
Current Nostro
account Deposits accounts,
with with overnight
Changes in expocted credit loss (ECL) during the year Cantral Bank | Cantral Bank loans Total
opening balance S ' o] o  er| 67
atiocation = 16| 0 & 22|
 reloase 9 0 167 176
wiite-offs s [ 0 0 [ 1] 0
modifications without desecognition 0 0 ol 0
changes in ECL moasurament model, sssumptions and inpuls 0 0 0 0
aﬂu?%ﬁwnénli{lumiqnﬂqmnw translation) E ulfi. 0 5 5
e — . = —

6.6.2. Securities

In this section the Bank's portfolio of debt securities is presented. In this portfolio the Bank
holds, on the one hand, government bonds and zero-coupon treasury bills issued by the
Hungarian State, primarily for managing surplus liquidity but also for managing interest
income and partially hedging interest risks

On the other hand, the bank also holds corporate bonds in its partfolio of debt securities. The
bonds were issued in the framework of the Bond Funding for Growth Scheme started on 1
July 2019 by the MNB. The Bond Funding for Growth Scheme launched and supported by
the MNB — besides facilitates the development of the Hungarian corporate bond market —
provides a lasting and stable lending opportunity towards large corporate clients with fix
interest income for the Bank. Besides this, participating in the issuance of corporate bonds
also strengthens the existing customer relationships

| Dbt svcuritios 31122010 | 322018
| Goverment bonds and zero-coupon reasury bils 27166| 43 975
| impaiment of government bonds and zero-coupon treasury biks | 49 = N
Corporate bonds - 3 652 0
~_impairment of carporate bonds | 44 0
Total of debt securities ———— = 31016| 4384

The Bank had no securities held for trading at either the end of the reporling year or at the
end of the comparative year, although there were small purchases during the year but these
stocks were sold before the year-end.

Securities purchased under the HIRS programme to hedge at portfolio level the risk arising
from the decrease in variable interest rates were designated by the Bank at fair value
through profit or loss using the fair value option to eliminate the inconsistency between the
measurement of the derivative at fair value through profit or loss and the measurement of the
securities al amortised cost (see also Section 6.9.7. Fair value option), This deal matured in
2019,

The government bonds classified in "hold” business model on the date of transition to IFRS
9, (i.e. 1 January 2018), and measured at amortised cost after the date of transition maltured
by the end of 2019.

On the date of transition to IFRS 8, |.e. 1 January 2018, the Bank reclassified its securities
held in the available-for-sale category to the "hold and sell" business model, and since
Hungarian government bonds enly pay principal and interest cash flows to their owners, the

a6
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Bank recognises these in its books as financial assets measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income after the transition.

Among the corporate bonds purchased in 2019, there are bonds measured al amortised cost
(classified in “hold" business model) and bonds measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income (classified in “hold and sell business model).

Book value of debt securities broken-down by valuation
categories

31.12.2019 |

M.A2.2018

Governmant bonds and zero-coupon treasury bills

At fair value through profit and loss

10 641

Trading

]

Designated at fair value through prolit or loss

10641

Al fair value through other comprehensive imcoma

32234

At amartisad cost

1009 |

Corporato bonds

At fair valuo through profit and (oss

Trading

Dasignaled at fair valua through profit or loss

Al fair valus thraugh other comprehansive Incame

a4

At amaortised cost

3 765

Tn!nl-duht securities

31 016

Eiﬂﬂﬁﬂﬂ

43

The designated at fair value through profit and loss row contains the government bond

portfolio whose interest rate risk is hedged by the HIRS deal. The deal expired in 2019,

The following table shows the maximum credit risk exposure of the Bank's securities
portfolio, broken down according to the Bank's internal credit rating system and the expected
credit loss categories at the end of the reporting year.

Fair value/gross value of debt securities
broken down by the categories of Internal credit rating

system
Government bonds and discount treasury bills

12 month

ECL

3.12.2019
lifatirme

ECL

impaired

assots

Debt Securlties at fair valus through dhirnmpwm_i;:m

high grade

27 107

standand grade

average grade

‘sub-standard grade

Impatred

Total

|elele|alele

[-BE-AE=NE=-28=14=

Debt Securities at amortised cost

high grade

standard grade

average grade

sub-standard grade

H'!'Ij'.'I-III'Ed

Total

[=RE=RE=RE=RE="10="

alociaolaialo
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3.92,2018
Fair value/gross value of dobt securities 12month | lifetime | impairod
broken down by the categories of internal credit rating
systom ECL EcL asseln Tokal
| Government bonds and zero-coupen treasury bilks
:Jmln:tnrumfﬁl at fair value through other comprehansive
nigh grade 32 294 [ o] 32234
| Endnr:lqmdu [E] 8 (1] 1]
average giade o a 0 1]
sub-standard grade 0 ] n 0
impaired 0 0 0 0
Total 32 234 1] 0 32204
Dabt Securities at amortisod cost ]
high grade 1022 o 1] 1022
standard grade o 1] 1] 1]
average grade 0 o 0 [i]
sub-standare grade 1] o ] a
impamecd Q 1] 0 1]
Todal 1022 o o 1022
31.12.2018
Fair value/gross value of debt securitios 12 month | (ifolime ropad red
broken down by the categorles of internal credit rating
systom ECL ECL assels Tatal
| Corporate bonds o N
Debt Securitien at fair value through other comprehensive income
high grade 144 0 0 144
standard grade 0 0 0 0
avarage grade 1] a o n
| sub-standard grade 0 0 0 0
impaired 0 ] 1] 0
Total 144 | 0 0 144
Debt Securitias at amortised cost ) N
nigh grade 3 804 0 o 3804
standard grade 0 o] ] o
| _average grade o 0 0 0
sub-standard grade 0 0 0 0
impaired ] 0 & [¢]
Totsl 2804 [ o 3 804

The Bank did not hold corporate bonds in 2018.
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The following table shows the volume changes in the Bank's securities portfolio, broken
down according to the Bank's internal credit rating system and the expected credit loss
categories at the end of the reporting year. For securities measured at fair value through
other comprehensive income the table contains changes to fair value, while for securities
measured at amortised cost the table shows changes to gross carrying amounts.

31.12.2019
Changes In fair value/gross value of debt securitles 12 month lifetime impaired
ok down by hecategorion o oxpoctod rodons €6CL) | got | o | waes | To
Debt Securities at fair value through other comprahansive incoma
apaning balance 32 234 o ] 32 234
purchases during the year 15 148 0 o 15 148
derecognsed or matured (excluding write offs) <20 479 0 o 20 478
wirite-olfs o ] 0 o
| madifications without derecognition 0 D 0 0
reciassification o 12 month ECL category o o 0 0
reclassification to lifetime ECL category 3] ] o ]
reclasaification mpaired calegory 1] 1] o (i]
change in fair valus -276 0 ] -2
other movernents (loreign suermncy transiation) 480 1] ] 480
closing balance 27 107 o i 27 107
Debt Securities at amortised cost u
opening balance 1022 0 0 1022
purchases dunng the year o o 0 Q
derecognised or matured (excluding write offs) -1 058 o i} -1 053
write-offs 4] 0 0 0
modifications without derecognition 1] a 0 ]
reclassificalion to 12 month ECL category a ] ] 0]
| mclassification lo iifetime ECL category g o o 0
raclassification impaired category o [ 0 0
alher movements (foreign currency transiation, accrued interest) 37 1] a k1
closing balance 0 0 0 0
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Changes in falr valuelgross value of debt securities
broken down by the categorles of expocted crodit loss (ECL)
Governiment bonds and zero-coupon treasury bills

12 month

12208
lifetime

ECL

Impaired

Total

Debt Securities at falr value through other comprehensive incomao

opaning balance

41 181

41 181

purchases during the year

62 DE0

derecognised of matured (exclisding wiite offs)

70 100

<70 100

write-offa

i

modifications without 'dammgnmm

rectassification to 12 month ECL catsgory

reclassification 1o Wetime ECL category

reclassification impaired category

oSlolQI oo

D(a| oo

changs in fair value

-1410

-1 410

wthar mowemaenis i',"lbuipn currancy translation)

504

closing balance

32204

oo loQIOIo|oD | oS

2|0 0o QooooD ol a

Debl Securities at amartised cost

e

_qpumhnm Hglin’g Ihe year

derecognised or matured (excluding wnte offs)

| weite-nffs

mudlﬁuﬂum without doarecognition

reclassification to 12 month ECL calegory

_ reciassification to Wetime ECL category

 teclassifcation impaired category

nlﬂﬂﬂfﬂﬁﬁ§

Fd
[

Eﬂbnnuﬂgﬂi‘l

-

ololojololoiolo|ale

ﬂﬁbnn.nﬂﬁﬂﬂ:l

1022

Changes in fair valusigross value of debt securilies

broken down by the categories of expocted credil loss (ECL
Corporato bonds {Ee

13 manth

MARING
Iifetime

ECL

impaired

Tatal

Debt Securitios at fair value through other comprehensive income

opining balance

n-mcnmu.dg!jfg the year

575

derecognised or matured (excluding wite offs)

431

wrile-afts

mndll'mmm withou! denecognfion

rechsmﬂcalm to 12 menth ECL category

reclassification to Metime ECL calegary

WHHM‘I impaibred calegory

ﬂmnpq in fmr vl

olher movements: mminn CLITANCY trmuuun]

cloo|oloc oo

closing balance

144

na:nbnﬂiﬂonﬂﬂ

S0 o|e|loio o|c|olo|la

-

Debt Securitios at amortised cost

opening balance

purchases dwm-mr

d7e0

dﬂ__rg_a_agnhnd o matured (exchuding write ofis)

wrii-offs

madifications without demaognition

mﬂmmumﬂEﬂm

reciassification to etime ECL calsgory

reclasnification impalred category

(=88 -2E-RE-A0~-01 -]

nnmnlnnan-

other movements {forsign currency fransiation, accrund interest)

24

| closing balance

n-!ﬂnaaninauag

eolololelelalaclala

b

L

A0
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The Bank did not hold corporate bonds in 2018.

The decline in the portfolio related to the derecognition of securities measured at fair value
through other comprehensive income stems from maturity and sale. Because of the sales,
HUF 1 million was transferred from other comprehensive income to the profit or loss,

The government bonds measured at amortised cost matured during 2019. The year-end
portfolio consists of corporate bonds issued in the Bond Funding for Growth Scheme.

The following table shows the reporting-year changes in expected credit loss. For securities
measured at fair value through other comprehensive income, these movements reflect
changes during the reporting year to the portfolio’s fair value due to credit risks. These fair
value changes were transferred from other comprehensive income to risk costs in the income
statement.

31.12.2019
Changes in expected credit lnss (ECL) of 12 month lifetime impaired

debt securilies during the year
Gavernment bonds and zero-coupon treasury bills ECL ECL assets Total

|

Debt securities at fair value through other comprohensive income

=)
[

upuﬁlﬁg balance

purchases durng th year

derecognised or malured (excluding write cifs)

witle-otfa

modihcations withaut demscognition

due o changs in credit nsk

due to unwinding of discount

reclasaification to 12 montt ECL category

reclassification to lifetime ECL category

reclassification impaired calegory

changes in ECL measurement model, assumptions n_n'c't'inputl

-nanal:un_ﬁun'éaﬁ-

other mavements (foregn cumency translation, rounding)

=il - =R =ll=0 =0 =0F=-R1-R0-} L =0o=~0¢-]
aooaloocojoa|oo|D|B

)
1=

closing balance

ﬂaq{annaganbﬁﬁ

Dabt securitiss ot amortised cost

opening balance

purchases dunng_ theygar

-
(AT -3

derecognised or matured (excluding wite offs)

write-offs

modifications without derecognition

-

due 1o change in credit risk "

due 1o unwinding of discount

reciassification to 12 month ECL category

rectassification to lifetime EC.L EIWDI]'-

reclassification impaired catagory

changes in ECL measurement model, assumptions and inputs

other mavements (foreggn currancy 1Flll'ﬁll'll:l1, raunding)

elocloojloiolololojo|joralo
ololojla|o/lcolojojlo|o|S|O

oloooooc|jaol=|ald

closing balanco
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Changes In expected credit loes (ECL) of
debt securities during the yoar
Government bonds and zero-coupon treasury bills

12 month

31122018
lifatimo

ECL

impaired

g

Dobt sacurities at fair value through other comprehensive income

opening balance

purchases during the year

3|2

derecognised or matued (exeluding write offs)

write-offs

A
=)

modifications without derecegnilien

duz to changs n credit nsk

due 1o unwinding of discount

G'Bﬂﬂ

rechassification to 12 manth ECL category

reciassification 1o Metime ECL aategory

reclassification mpaired calegory

changes in ECL measurement model, assumptions and inpuls

olher movemants {foreign currency translation, rounding)

| A |
‘ﬁﬂﬂ_ﬁﬂ'ﬁﬂﬂmﬂ'ﬂ

closing balance

e
e

eiclaoloio|ololoja|alc|la|e

mmmnﬁuuwm

“opening balance

purchases dunng the year

disrcognmed or matured (excluding wite offs)

wiite-offs

~ modifications wilhout derecognition

Qi o o) - |a—-:|u|:|n,

due lo change in credif rink

PR

—
(]

due to unwinding of discount

reclassification to 12 month ECL category

reclassification to fetime EGL calegary

raclassificalion Impalred category

changes in ECL measurement model, @ssumplions and mpq._u-
other minmients ilumun currency tranaation, raunding)

u!r.:|o olo|a

closing balance

—_

@loolooojlomo(aolojo|a

ﬂﬂ!ﬂﬂﬂﬂﬂﬁﬁﬂﬂﬂﬂ oo ojoolooaolo|lclolo|o

oo ooy ioloo| oo o a

-
—
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Changes in expocted credit loss (ECL) of
debt securities during the year
Corporate bonds

12 month
ECL

3122018
lifetime

impalrod

Total

Debt socurities at fair value through other comprehensive incoms

opening balance

purchasss dunng the year

derecognised or matured (excluding write offs)

wita-offs

modifications withol derecognition

due 1o change in credit rsk

due to unwinding of discount

reciassification to 12 month ECL category

reclasslfbeatian 1o lifetime ECL category

mclassification impaied category

changas in ECL measurement model, assumptions and inputs

other movemants (foraign cumency translation, raunding)

__closing balance

lolojolo|o|ojo|QlDiCl ;O

ojo|lololo|c|aeilo oo o8

sloo|o/o|QiDjlo|olOo, 0|0 | o

lele|elolelo|olelalolo|nle

Debt securities al amortised cost

opaning balance

L=

purchases during the year

b
0w

derecognised or matured {excluding write offs)

write-offs

ooiao o

maodificatmns without derecognition

due to change in credit rsk

due to unwinding of discount

roclassification to 12 month ECL category

reclassification to litstime ECL category

reolsssification impaired category

changes in ECL measuremant madel, assumplions and inputs

_ other movements {foreign mm'pq;'uumhﬂnn. rounding)

ocoalalo o ola| o

'_Elwlnn balance

oo ool

-ﬂﬂﬂﬂ'ﬂﬂﬂﬂﬁ'ﬂﬂﬂﬂ

ﬂnannnnnnain'ﬁn

The Bank did not hold corporate bonds in 2018

The following table shows the Bank's debt securities broken down by their original maturity.

Book value of debt securlties broken-down by

A S0 vsspiy i s | suam
socuniies with anginal maturity within 1 year G682 1]
securibes with original matunty over 1 year 23415 43 Bo4

of which dus within 1 year 8283 14112

Total debt securitios ar 107 43884

Book value of debt securities broken-down by

Eﬂglnﬂ mm categories 31.12.2019 3122018
secunlies with onglinal maturily within 7 ysar 0 ]
securities with original maturity over 1 yoar 3900 v}

of which due within 1 year 0 0

Total debt securitios 3 809 o
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Neither in the reporting year nor in the comparative year does the Bank's balance sheet
contain overdue receivables related to any of the securilies presented here.

6.6.3. Receivables from credit institutions

Changes to receivables from credit institutions:

Recolvables from crodit institutions 31.12.2019 | 31.12.2018 |
Recervables from Cantral Bank 1319 B97

~ Impalmment for receivables from Cenlrai Bank 3 19
Rec@vabies Trom credil nstitutions 12 Bﬂﬁ 21812
Impairmant for receivables from credit instiutions 34 -4

| Total receivables from credit instifutions 14111 22455

The Bank classified all of its receivables from credit institutions in the 'hold' business model,
In compliance with the SPPI tests performed, these receivables are recognised at amortised
cost,

Changes to gross values:

31.12.2018
o ekt et | 2ot | oume. | impoved
of internal Ea"dlt rating system ECL _____ ~ECL assols | Total
Parforming racewables | 14148 ] - 0| 14148
| high grade 13 845 0 o] 13845
standurd grade 0 0 0 0
AVErage gradp 303 [1] o 303
~ pastdue, bul not impaired B 0 o| 0
Non-performing receivables 0 0 o o
Ingiuidually impaired _ 0 0 0 0
| collectively mpaiied 0 0 0 0
| Total gross book value | 14148 0 0] 14148
. - 31.12.2018
et S e
of intemal credit mting system ECL ECL assets Total
- Parforming feceivables 22 500 ] 0 22 500
high grade 1147 0 o 1147
standard grade 21 362 o 0| 21382
average grade 0 0 0 o
past due, bul nol Impaiaed o 0 o 0
 Maon-performing recevables 0 0 o 0
indridually unpaired 0 0 0 0
collectively impaired 0 0 0 0
Total gross book valus 22509 [ o] 22508
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Changes in gross value brokan down by the categorios 31122019
of internal credit rating system and the expectad 12 month litetime impaired
credit loss (ECL) categories ECL ECL asgets Total
opening balance 22 509 0 ] 22 508
placements and purchases during the year 3614 o Q 3614
derecognisad or matured (excluding write offs) 422 0 0 422
wrlta-affs 0 0 ] o
miodfications without derecognitian a 1] 0 1]
change in volume in the same ECL category 11 958 0 0| 11958
reclassification o 12 month ECL calegory 0 i 0 1]
reclassification to lifelime ECL category 0 0 0 1]
reciassification impaired category 0 o o 1]
other movernents (foreign currency transhition) 405 1] o A0S
closing balance _!-I 148 1] 1] 14 148
Changes in gross value broken down by the categories 3122018
of internal credit rating system and tho expecled 12 month atime impalred
cradit loss (ECL) categories ECL ECL assols Total
opening balance 31 V42 a ] 31Tz
placements and purchases during th year 156 943 285 0 157 228
derecegnsed or malured (excluding write offs) <166 &G04 o 1] -166604
write-offs 0 0 0 1}
modifications without derecognition o 0 0 1}
change m valuma in the same ECL colegory A4 o 0 443
reciassification to 12 month ECL category 57d =674 0 1]
reclassification to H@ﬂmn‘ ECL category 201 20 ] 0
reclassification impairmd cotegory 4] (1] ] 0
other movemants (foreign curmency transiation) 84 w2 1] 882
l:inulng_tlﬁnnl 22 500 [i] a 22 509
Changes to expected credit loss:
nazane
12menth | lifotime impaired
BT_"_“" In expected cradil loss (ECL) during the year ECL ECL assels Total
 opening balance 54 0 0 654
purchases dunng this year 88 0 a B8
derecognised or matured (excluding wiite-ofis) 0 0 0 D
write-offs o 0 0 1]
modifications without demcognition 4] 0 o] o
due to-change in cradi nsk -88 -21 (1) -108
due 1o unwinding of discount 3 a o )
reclassification to 12 month ECL category 0 0 ] o
reciassification to lfetima ECL category =21 4| 0 0
reclassification 1o mpased category o o a o
changes n ECL measuremont mode|, assumptions and 0 0 0 0
inputs
olhar mavements (foreign cumancy transiation) 1 0 0 1
closing balance 37 1] 1] kT
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31.12.2018
12month | lifetime | impaired
Changes in expectod credit loss (ECL) during the year ECL ECL assels Total
opening balance 114 0 0 114
punchases during fhe year 7 7 0 14
— demecognised or malured (eacluding write-offs) -12 a o 12
witte-offs 0 0 0 0
madifications withoul dermcognition 0 0 0 D
du to change in credi nsk -85 T 0 G2
duw to unwinding of discount 0 0 0 [
recinssification to 12 month ECL categary ] a a 0
reciassification to fifetime ECL calegory o 0 0 0
rectassification o impaired categary o 0 0 0
changes in ECL measuroment model, sssumplions and " P P a
| Inpuls =
othar movemants (foreign curmency [rmnskation) 0 o 0 0
closing balance 54 0] [ 54
Receivables from credit institutions by remaining maturity:
o 31.12.2019
Recelvables from credit institutions without | & S0days | 3100 days | 91 98Y8 |y gour | >Bymar | Toml
maturity A year
Recelvaties from Central Bank T 0 0 0 0 0 1316
Recaivables from credit institutions 1471 a7 5423 0 0 58| 12795
Total recelvables from credit institutions 2 787 7 6423 0 0 5 814 14111
31.11"2_1.1_131
Receivables from credit institutions '"“"“"”! <30 days | 31-90 days ':‘I::"f' VSyear | >Syear | Towl
Roceivabies from Gental Bank | 678 0| ol o o] o a78
Recewablos from credit mstitutions | 943 3136 0 863 383 1 041 8411 21777
Total receivables from cradit institutions 1621 1138 9 863 383 1041 6411| 22456
Receivables from credit institutions by geographic region:
—— . R 31'1='ﬂ1i 3
Recelvables from credit institutions. Domestic | Russia EU Other Total
Heceivabies from Gentral Bank 1318 o 0 0 1 316
Recaivables from credd institutions. 1481 6035 4 996 203 12 795
Total receivables from credit institutions 2777 6035 4996 303 14111 |
31.12.2018
Recaivables fram credit institutions Domestic Russia EU Other Total
_ Recaivables from Central Bank 678 0 0 0 678
Receivables from credil institutions 13179 8 160 438 0 21 777
Total receivables from credit institutions 13857 8160 438 0 22 458
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6.6.4. Loans and advances to customers

This section presents receivables from customers broken down by following segments:

Loans and advances to customers 31,12.2019 | 31,12.2018
corporate loans 175819 | 157 007
impairment for cofporate loans -7 637 7928
private loans 102 344 B8 131
impairment for private loans =i B89 -3 575
Tuﬁll"!a]ﬁ_&'ﬁh_ﬁﬁ' to customers 265637 | 228635

Loans measured at fair value through profit and loss

The Bank measures only the Baby loan product launched in 2019 based on the Government
Decree on supporting child-bearing and child-raising at fair value through profit or loss. While
the Baby loan product is classified in 'hold’ business model, the SPPI test provided the result
that the contractual cash flows are not consistent with a basic lending arrangement due to

the special conditions of the product. Therefore these loans are not allowed to be measured

at amortised cost.

Loans and advances to customers 31.12.2019 | 31.12.2018

_wpm loans 0 i}
private ioans 19147 0

Total loans and advances to customaers 18 147 L]

The product was launched only in July 2019, but thanks to its popularity the Bank could build

up a portfolio significant both in units and in value by the end of the year.
The following table shows the changes to fair value of the portfolio in reporting year.

Changos in tha failr value of the loans 2016.12.31

apening 0
purchases during the year 18 981
derecognised or matured (excluding write-offs) -158
write-offs 0
changes In falr value azi
medications without derecognition 0
other movements {FX transiation, 1
interest accruglks)

closing balance 10 147

a7



Stand-alome Fioancial Statements 31, December 2019
Sberbank Hungary Ld. data in HUF million

Loans measured at fair value through other comprehensive income

On transition to IFRS 9 the Bank classified a non-performing part of the portfolio inte 'hold
and sell' business model, for which it was known at the date of transition that it will be
recovered by the revenue from the planned sale of receivables rather than by future cash
flows of principal and interest.

These loans have been held in the FVOCI category since the date of transition.

Loans and advances 1o customers 31.12.2019 | 31,12.2018
coporale loans. | 62| B
private loans — 0 43

Total tﬂ:; and advances io customers - Iﬁ_ —ﬁ:?_

The volume of the porifolio and the number of transactions therein dropped significantly
during the reporting year as a result of the intensive selling activity. Section 6.9.17 Result on
sales of recewables contains detailed information of the selling aclivity.

The following table shows the maximum credit risk exposure of the Bank's portfolio
measured at fair value through other comprehensive income, broken down according to the
Bank's internal credit rating system and the expected credit loss categories at the end of the
reporting year.

Aah

31.12.2019
Fair value broken down by the 12month | fifetime | impaired | impaired
categories of internal credit rating system ECL ECL assols assols POCI
and impairmuent categorios I collective | collective | ecolloative ~ Individual asaots Total
corporate loans 0 0 M 0N 0 52
Performing o 0 0 T ol o
standard grade 0 0 0 0 ol ol
___average grade 0 0 o 0 o 0
Non-performing — ol 1'._!.J = A1 1;1 0 52
| impaired o ol 4 i 0 52
private loans = 0 0 0 0 0 0
Non-performing 0 0] 0 ) 0 o
Impaired 0 0 ] 0 0 0
| Total fair value 4 0 0 4 1 0 52
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3122018
Fair value broken down by the 12 month | lifetime impaired i pairod
categories of internal credit rating system ECL ECL assols assots Pocl
and impairment calegories collective | collective | collective | individual assels Total
I:D.lpﬂﬁ‘_ loans - 0 0 73 1 o B4
Parfoming 0 ] 0 0 ] o
standard grade 0 ] 0 4] 0 0
avarage ;mdu B o 0 0 1] o 1]
~ Non-performing 0 0 73 1 0 B4
Impaited 0 0 73 1 0 B4
private loans 0 0 43 0 0 43
Mon-performing ] 1] 43 0 0 _dg._
impaad o 0 43 0 0 43
Total fair value 0 ] 116 1 0 127

The next tables show the changes to fair value of the portfolio in the reporting year. The fair
value of the portfolio during the reporting year was largely influenced by the increased sales
of receivables: the decrease in volume owing to such derecognitions amounted to HUF 249
million, while other amounts received mainly due to claiming collateral totalled HUF 18
million. This trend is continuing in the following year, and will ultimately lead to the complete

elimination of the portfolio.

Changes in the fair value of the loans
broken down by the expectod credit loss
(ECL) categories

corporate loans

12 month
ECL

%

lifetime

collective

31.12.2018
Impairod
ansets
collective

impairod
assets

 Individual

collective

individual

:

opening balance

162

g

purchases during the year

=

derecognsed or matured (excluding write-
offs).

=

write-affs

El‘lﬂl‘lﬂﬁ in fair value

modifications without derecagnilion

reclassification 1o 12 month ECL calegary

reqlassification to lfelime ECL calegory

reclassification to Impaired category

other movemants (FX translation,
interest acoruals)

=

B olo|lci/o|lo|o

clesing balance

N - -EN-AN-A-R - R - - R

I - - - - - - P -]

164

170

- - -AN-NE-FE- - - - - -

ol o | o oo|l0ID )8 a e

El}ﬂnn:n‘ﬂ.ﬂ
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Changes in the fair value of the loans
broken down by tho expected credit loss
(ECL) eatogorios
corporate bﬂm‘

12 month

8

|

3122018
Irrpal resd
assols
collactive

POCH

g
2
§

individual

Total

apening balance

283

purchasoes diing (he yoar

0

derecognised or matuned (excluding wile-
offs)

write-affs

0

changes in fail value

moditicalions without derecognition

L

rclassification to 12 manth EGL category

raclassification [q_ﬁumw ECL category

reclassification to impaired category

ather movements (FX transiation,
interest Rocrugks)

o ojo|ola

closing balanco

ﬂﬂﬁﬂﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂﬂrﬁig

o o oo o| o | oo

183

2 o oolocloolo o oo

o Diojg|lo|leiol|lo| & |3

E!u auuuﬁngsg

Changes in the fair value of the loans.
broken down by the expected credit loss
(ECL) categories

12 month
ECL

%

[ fatlime

eollectivo

31,42.2018

impalrod
assets

Impaired

individual

POCI
assols
collective

PoCI

%

Totad

private loans

opening balance

257

purchases during the year
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Sherbank Hungary Lid.

data in HUF million

The following tables show the reporting-year changes in portfolio fair value due to credit
risks. These fair value changes were transferred from other comprehensive income o risk
costs in the income statement,

[ Changes in the fair value of the loans due to
change In credit risk broken down by the
expected credit loss (ECL) categories
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%
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Changes in the fair valuo of the loans due to
change in cradit dsk broken down by the
expecied credit loss (ECL) categories
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The ageing of overdue receivables by the maximum days in defaull is presented below at the

end of the reporting year.
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Sherbank Hungary Lad.

data in HUF mi Iliﬂt_

Ageing of fair value of overdus loans 31.12.2018
hroken down by the categories of infermal
credit rating system
530 days | 3160 days | 61.90 days "1;;? 1 r':T > 1 yoar Total
corporate loans ] o o 0 L Ta Gi
Non-perfarming 1) a 0 o ] Th B4 |
" impaired 0 0 0 0 6 78 B4
private loans 2 0 0 0 1 40 43
Non-performing 2 o o 1] 1 40 a3
impaired 2 ol 0 0 1 40 a3
Total fair value 2 0 0 0 7 118 127 |

Loans measured at amortised cost

The following table shows loans measured at amortised cost, broken down by business

segments.
Loans and advances to customers 3112.2019 | 31.12.2018
| comporate loans 176767 | 156923
impairmenl for corporate loans -T 637 « 928
private loans ' 81197 88 088
impaiment for private loans 4889 8675
Total loans and advances 1o customers 246438 228 508

The Bank's lending portfolio displayed stable growth over the last two years, which is
primarily down to increases at two business divisions, the commercial loans of the corporate
customers division and the personal leans of the retail division, Retail overdrafts — though
starting from a lower level — also produced significant growth (25%). The portfolio of private
mortgage loans is declining, partly due to the sale of the non-performing loans, partly
because the Bank's management intentionally concentrates less on this business due to its
lower profitability.

In the corporate division, project-financing loans increased by 47%, overdraft loans by 15
% and investment loans by 5%. On the whole, the corporate loan portfolio rose by HUF 18,8
billion (12%).

In the years presented in these financial statements the Bank only has originated credit-
impaired loans it disbursed, it did not purchase such loans. The portfolio of originated credit
impaired loans stems from the non-performing foreign currency loans converted into
Hungarian forints during the 2015 debtor relief programme,

Corporate loans

The following tables show the maximum credit risk exposure of loans measured at amortised
cost, broken down according to the Bank's intemal credit rating system and the expected
credit loss categories at the end of the reporting year.




Stand-alone Financial Statements 31, December 2019

Shorbani: Hunpery L4d. i (o HUF o
Gross book value broken down by the 3.12.2019
categories ol internal credil rating system and | 12 month lifatime impaired impalred POCI POCI
the expected crodit loss (ECL) categorios ECL ECL assoly assets assals assols
colloctive | collective | collective | individual | collective | individual |  Total
Performing 185027 | 11007 0 o 648 0 166 683
high grade 9751 61 0 0 0 0 9812
standard grade 88 482 B 941 o o a 0 5 403
average grade 50 645 2814 | 0 0 649 0 54 108
below average grade B 166 1 191 0 0 i} o 7 358
Non-performing 0| 0 2197 6887 0 0 9 084
standard grade 0 0 25 0 0 0 25
average grade a (2] 63 ] 0 ] £3
balow average ﬂrm;e {E) Q 7 ] Q o 7
inpaved o 0 2112  6say 0 o| 8950
Total corporate loans 185027 | 11007 2197 6807 649 o 175767
Gross boak value broken down by the 3122018
categories of internal credit rating system and | 12month | lifetime | impaired | impaired POCI POCI
the expected credit loss (ECL) categories ECL ECL assots assetls assels assets
' collective | collective | collective | individual | collective | individual | Total
~ Performing 136 623 10 883 0 0 0 0 146 506
high grade 5 987 0 0 0 0 0 5987
standard grade 39 478 7068 [ 0 o 0 46 543
 average grade 85791 2005 0 0 0 0 87 796
balow average grade 4370 1810 0 0 0 0 & 180
Non-parforming 0| o 2 170 7626 0| 721 10 417
~ standard grade = 0 0 29 0 0 0 29
‘average grade B 0 of a7 0 0 0 a7
balow average grade 0 a) a7 | 0 0 0 a7
aved o 0 0 2047 756 0 721 102w
Total corporate loans B 196623 | 10883 2170 7626 0 721| 156923
The reporting-year changes in the gross carrying amounts of the loans measured at
amortised cost are shown in the following tables broken down by the expected credit loss
categories at the end of the reporting year.
Changes In the gross book value 31.12.2019
broken down by the 12 month | lifetime impaired impaired Foci POCI
axpectod credit loss (ECL) categories ECL ECL assots assets assets | ossets
collective | collective | collective | Individual | collective | individual | Total
opening balance 135623 10883 2170 7 626 0 721 186923
purchases during the year 45 271 187 1 522 0 0 45 981
derecognsed of malured (exchiding wrile-ofls) -7 349 EAB 613 -1 871 +} o -10 470
write-offs 0 0 -120 411 0 0 531
changes within the same ECL category -14 289 726 607 556 N 0 16249
* modifications without derecogniion 0 0 2 8 720 g2 8
rectassification to 12 month ECL category Baz2|  Bazr & 0 0] 0 0
rectassification to lifetime ECL category 8647| o131 484 0 of 0 0




Stand-alone Financial Statements 3 1, December 2019

Sberbank Hungary Lid. data in HUF million
reclagsification 1o impaired category -246 <1 500 1755 0 0
m’nﬂ‘“‘mrﬁ (7 Armrmmi i -1 768 114 98 1668 0 113

closing balance 155 027 11 007 2197 & 887 649 o| 175767
Changes in the gross book value 31.12.2018
broken down by the 12 month | Iifetime Impaired Impaired POCI POCGI
expected credit loss (ECL) categories ECL ECL assets assols assets assuts
collective | collective | collective individual | collective | individual Total
opaning balance 106 976 12733 2 362 T 706 0 701 130 567
purchases durlng the year G4 079 685 0 452 a o 65 216
o G PRy - 30379 2548 485 220 0 33610
write-offs A 0 -133 929 0 0 2063
changes within the same ECL category -2 600 -1 145 492 -1 101 o -7 74T
modifications without derecognition 1] ] o o] (1] o 0
reciassification 1o 12 month ECL category 2545 -2 442 -5 58 0 1] -8 156
reclassification lo felime ECL category 5023 5416 -298 -85 o] o 0
reclassification to impaired category -1 541 2145 1170 2818 o 0 0
olher movemarnts (FX translation,
il oy 1567 327 71 256 0 1 2222
closing balance 135623 10883 2170 7 526 0 T2 166 923
The following tables reveal the reporting-year changes in the expected credit loss of the
loans measured at amortised cost, broken down by category of expected credit loss.
Changes In the oxpected credit loss 31.12.2010
broken down by the expected 12 month Iifetime impaired impaired POCI POCI
credit loss [ECL) eategories ECL ECL assots asuals assots ansols
! collective | coliective | collective individual | colloctive | individual Total
opening balance -1 068 113 -908 -8 518 0 -264 -7 928
purchases during the year -381 -16 -1 -239 o 0 837
A e s e gt 426 7% 789 1213 14 o| 251
write-offs 1] 1] 144 a4 0 o] 538 |
~ modifications without derecognition 0 0 «340 340 264 264 0
_due to change In credit risk 72 A -B54 590 240 0 -1 747
due to unwinding of discount 1] o =38 116 - 1] -158
r-qau'rﬁumn to 12 month ECL category -42 41) 1 (1] J 0 0 i
reciasshication to i-l'ullmu ECL category 104 -138 34 0 1] o 0
reciassification to impaired category 3 51 51 -3 0 o 0
changes in ECL measurament madal,
assumptions and inputs 0 o 0 0 0 o 0
other moverments (FX transtation, = ¥ L i
ndisenst Is) 12 2 26 -180 2 0 222
closing balance -1 042 =172 -4 260 -5 168 AT 1] -7 637
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Sherbank Hungary Ltd. data in HUF million
Changes in the expocted crodit loss 3trzoe
broken down by the expocted 12 month litetime impaired impaired POCH POCIH
cradit less (ECL) categories ECL ECL assels assots assols assels
collactive | collective | callective individual | collective | individual Tatal
opening balance 755 | 261 4173 -6 182 o 206 -8 587
purchases during the year 574 -19 -1 22T ] L] -B21
z'ﬁ;‘“""“""' of matired (svchuding write: 381 120 as8 787 0 18 1684
wite-offs 0 0 114 1 629 [ 0 2043
madifications withaul derecognition o 1] o a o i) 1]
due to change in croedi Hﬂk_ T8 14 B 236 -1 441 a _ 69 1810
due o unwinding of dscount i} (4] =22 147 | 1] 7 176
reclassification to 12 manth ECL category 45 27 18 1] [t} 0 ']
reciassification to Welims ECL category 28 117 B8 5 o 0 0
reclpsetheation lo mmw G 131 -54 83 0| L]
.chanuu in EElr:;:ummnt model, 0 0 o 0 0 0 0
e oy 9 8 28 206 0 0 261
closing balance 1068 13 908 5675 0 -264 7928
Taking collateral into account may result in that while some or all of a receivable may be
overdue, there is still no need to record impairment. The following tables break down such
overdue receivables by age.
Ageing of the gross value of overdue but 11,12.2019
nol impaired foans broken down by the
calegores of the intornal credit rating
system
- 91180 | 181 days
5 30 days | 31-60 days | 67-90 days days A year > 1 year Total
Parforming o o ] o o 1] 0
| high grade 0 ] 0 o 0 o) 0
standard grade 0 0 0 ol o/ ¥ 0
average grads 0 i} 1] 1] 0 o 0
Ewicw averspe grade = | SR 8 0 0 0 9
| Non-perorming 0 0 1] 0 o 1 1
standard grade Q 0 0 0 o o a
 averago grade 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
__below average grade 0 ] o J D 0 0
mpained 0 i ] o a &) o
| Total corporate loans | i} o o 0 o 1 1
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Sherbank Hungary Lid.

data in HUF million

Agueing of the gross value of overdue bult NA2208
not impaired leans broken down by the
categories of the internal eredit rating
system
<30 days | 3160 days | 81-80 days w '_“1":;‘ > 1 year Total
Performing 1 0 0 0 0 0 1
high gratle 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
standard grade 1 0 0 [ 0 0 1
average grade 0 a 0 o] 0 0 0
below average grads 0 a ¢] o 0 1] a
MNon-parforming o o o o o 2 2
standard grade 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
average grade o o o 0 0 0 0
below average grade 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
impaired 0 0 0 0 0| 2 2
Total corporate loans 1 0 0 0 0 2 3
The ageing of overdue receivables by the maximum days in default is presented below at the
end of the reporting year and in the previous year.
Ageing of the gross value of overduo 31,12.2019
loans broken down by the categories
of the internal credit rating system
s30days | 3160 days | G1-00days | Lt | "WENE | sayear | ot
Performing 257 46 5 ) 0 0 308
high grade 7 0 0 0 0 0 7
standard grade o4 0 [i] ] a a ]
average grade 141 40 2 0 ) a 183
bolow average grade 15 & 3 o 0 1] 24
Non-performing 43 [ 368 217 582 3825 5038 |
standard grade o 0 0 0 0 0 0
average grade 0 0 0 0 0 1 1
below average grade a 0 1] 1 3] K] 4
mpaired 43 8 365 216 582 3821 5033
Total corporate loans 300 52 370 217 682 3825 5346
Ageing of the gross value of overdue 31.12.2018
loans broken down by the categories
of the Internal credit rating systom
<30 days | 3160 days | 61-90 days ‘;;;‘:“ ‘ﬂ";ﬂ" > 1 yoar Total
Performing 237 14 1 0 1 0 253
high grade 40 [} 0 0 0 0 40
standard grade 33 0 0 [ o 0 3
average grade 143 10 1] ] 1 ] 154
below average grade . 21 4 1 o 0 0 26
Non-perfarming 22 103 0 183 173 4712 5 403
slandard grade 0 0 0 1 0 0 1
average grade a o o 4 Ri] 1 5
below average grade 4 0 0 0 1 2 7
impairad 18 103 0 388 i72 4 709 5390
| Total corporate loans 250 17 1 393 174 4712 5 656
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The ageing of the expected credit loss by the maximum days in default of the related
overdue receivable is presented below at the end of the reporting year and in the previous

year.

Ageing of the expected credit loss M.12.2019
broken down by the categorios
of the internal credit rating system
overdue ==1 yoar | =1 year Total
Performing A1 -394 827 1232
high grade 0 -5 8 13
standard grade = e 304 527
average grade ' 7 218 -360 585 |
betow average grade 3 30 65 107
Non-performing 737 ase2 4106] 6405
standard grode 0 i -5 -
average grade ; K 12 0 43
~ below averags grade A b <] 5
impaired 3732 -1 550 1100 6382
Total impairment for corporate loans i 3748 -1 986 1933 7837
Ageing of the expected cradit lons 31.12.2018

broken down by the categories
of the internal credil rating system

ovordus <=1 yoar = 1 yoar Total
Parfarming o 4 -226 -850 -1 180
high grade 0 2 i 7
standard grade 0 9| A7 210
average grade -3 -161 727 | B9
balow average grade a 24 47 72
Non-performing B 4003 -1019 1636 6748
slandany grade 0 2 0 2
average grade -1 -3 _ & il
below average grade -2 -3 -1 8
impaird -4 090 1011 63| B8
| Total impairment for corporate loans -4 097 -1 245 =2 586 <7928 |
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Sherbank Hungary Lid,
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Private loans

The following tables show the maximum credit risk exposure of loans measured at amortised
cost, broken down according to the Bank's internal credit rating system and the expected

credit loss categories at the end of the reporting year.

Gross book value broken down by the 31,12.2019
categorios of internal credit rating system and | 12 month | lifetime impaired impaired POCI POCI
the expected credit loss (ECL) categories ECL ECL assels assels assels assels
collective | colloctive | collective individual | collective | Individual Total
Parforming 74 061 2703 0 0 281 0 77 045
~ high grade 0 0 0 o 0 0 0]
standard grade 50 580 496 0 0 148 0 51 227
average grade 18 647 47T 0 0 10 ] 19334
below average grade 4 634 1728 0 0 122 0 6484
Mon-perfarming 0 0 are 0 2 340 a6 6152
standard grade 0 ] 22 0 3 0 285
avarage grade o 0 43 0 0 0 43
below average grade 0 0 132 0 35 0 167
impaired ' 0 0 1519 0 2302 a6 5917 |
Total private loans 74 061 2703 1716 0 2621 96 83197 |
Gross book value broken down by the 31.12.2018
catagories of Internal credit rating system and | 12month | lifetime impalred Impaired POCI POCI
the expected cradit loss (ECL) categorios ECL ECL assots assols assets assels
collective | collective | collective | individual | collective | individual Total
Performing 69 697 2817 0 0 02 o 72 606
high grade 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
standard grade 40 764 550 0 0 45 i} 41 367
average grada 21 564 1 186 0 0 33 0 22783
__below average grade 7368 1073 0 0 14 0 B 456
~ Non-performing 0 0 5959 1 9047 476 15482
standard grade 0 0 15 0 76| 0 91
average grade 0 o z 0 B3 1] 121
bolow average grade 0 0 63 0 43 ol 136
Impaired 0 0 5819 1 8 839 475 16 134
Total private loans 69 697 2817 5 959 1 9139 475 88 088

39
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Sherbank Hungary Lid. dati in HUF million

The reporting-year changes in the gross carrying amounts of the loans measured at
amortised cost are shown in the following tables broken down by the expected credit loss

categories at the end of the reporting year.

Changes in the gross book value 31.12.2019
broken down by the 12month | Wetime | impaired | Impaired | POCI POCI
axpected credil loss (ECL) categorios ECL ECL assols ansots annols ansols
collective | collective | collective | Individ collective | individual | Total
opening balance 69 607 2817 5 950 1 a3 475 o808
purchases during Ihe year 20 567 73 104 0 0 0 20 744
derecognised or matured (excluding wite-offs) -5 090 165 -5 352 0| -11047 i -23 596
wite-offs 0 0 -105 0 213 0 108
ahanges within the same ECL calegary £ 126 225 2002 0 4 657 345 -2 347
madifications without dorecognition [1] o L L] A7 -2 -15
reclassification to 12 month ECL calegary 5381 4984 397 0 0 0 0
reciassification (o fetime ECL category s158|  6912] 75 0 0 0 0
riclassification o impaired category 58| 7ar 2300 0 0 0 0
m”’:mﬂ; {FX eaplation, 243 2 45 a1 A 0 216
closing balance 74 061 2703 3716 0 2621 06 83 197
Changes in the gross book value 31.12.2018
broken down by tha 12 month | lifetime impaired Impaired POCI POCIH
sxpected crodit loss (ECL) catogories ECL ECL assels assols ansols ansels
collective | collective collective Individual | colloctive | Individual Total
opening balance 63008 36| 6740 1| 12140 437| B5443
_ purchases during the year 16779 31 133 of o of 20243
derecognised or matured (excluding wire-offa) 4 829 254 1890 o| 4080 0| -11082
write-offs: - 0 0 150 0 75 0 225
changes within the same ECL uategory u‘n’ 289 218 0 1108 3a 8514
modificabions withaul derscognition o 0 A 0 o] 0 =¥
reciassification 10 12 month ECL calegory 5 086 4526 540 0 0 0 o
reclassification o fetime ECL category 5464 6058 595 | D 0 0 0
| reclassifcation la impaired category aB1| 62 2006 0 0 0 0
ﬂnﬂ:m nmmah?'ﬂ o ' 85 16 A8 0 49 8 204
closing balance 69 697 2817 5950 1 9139 ATH 88 088
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Sberbank Hungary Lid.

data in HUF million

The following tables reveal the reporting-year changes in the expected credit loss of the

loans measured at amortised cost, broken down by category of expected credit loss.

Changes in the gross book value 3.12.2019

broken down by the 12 month | lifetime impaired Impaired POCI POCI

axpected eradil loss (ECL) categories ECL ECL assels assels assols ansols

collective | coflective | collective individual | collective | individual Total

opening balance <1101 -382 -2 488 0 -4 374 230 -8 675
purchases during the year 430 & -T6 ] o a 512
derecogrised or matured {excluding wite-offs) 343 88 1820 0 1501 105 5047
write-offs 0 0 110 0 148 0 258
modifications without derecognition 0 a 1] 1] 0 0 0
dus lo change in eradil risk =30 516 -420 1 442 T -4 500 |
due to umwinding of discount -0 0 -108 -1 -400 -18 -528
reciassification o 12 month ECL category 443 312 131 0 0 0 0

* reclassification 1o ifetime ECL category 306 586 190 0 0 0 0
reclassification fo mpaired category 10 ™ 801 b a 0 1]
:mﬂ“l“_‘f‘:'ﬁd"::;"‘“““ mosel, 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
vl aaal 4 A 5 0 7 | 21

closing hﬁam -1 284 400 -1 647 1] -1 545 Af - B89

Changes In the gross book valug 314922018

broken down by the 12month | lifetime | impalred |  impaired POGI POCI

axpected cradit loss [ECL) categories ECL ECL assols assets assots assels

collective | collective | collective individual | collactive | Individual Total

“opening balance 893 -353 2653 0| 4048 85| 8929
purchases during the year 347 -28 -33 ] 0 Q 448
derecognised or matured (excluding wite-offs) 226 a3 982 0 1768 a 3 069
write-offs 0 0 132 0 356 0 468 |
modifications withoul derecognition 0 0 0 i] 0 1] 1]
due to change In creditrisk. 53 77 07 0 827 130 -1 994
due to unwinding of discount 0 0 -108 0 626 15 -749
reclasaification lo 12 month ECL catogory 408 248 159 1] 1] o 1]
raclassficafion to lifetime ECL categary 375 -5 146 0 L ¥ o
reclassification Lo impaived catagory T G54 61 o o ¥} 0
changes in ECL measurement modal, o 0 0 0 0 0
assumptians and inputs
bt Sl 32 1 45 0 0 o A2

closing balance 4101 -382 -2 488 0| 437 230 -8 575

0l
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Sherbunk Hungary Lid.

Taking collateral into account may result in that while some or all of a receivable may be
overdue, there is still no need to record impairment. The following tables break down such

overdue receivables by age.
Ageing of the gross value of overdue but 31.12.2019 |
not impairad loans broken down by the
categories of the intornal crodit rating systom | 30 days | 31-60 days | 61.60 days ';;::“ ‘:‘r‘;{' > 1 yoar Total
Porforming 579 [ 0 0 0 0 570
high grade 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
standard grade 579 o 0 0 0 0 570
average grade 0 1] 0 1] 0 0 0
beiow average grade 0 1] 0 a 1] 0 1]
 Non-performing 0 o 0 0 0 17 17
standard grade 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
average grade 0 ! 0 ] 0 0 0
below nvernge grade 0 0 0 ol o 0 0
smpired ol 0 0 0 0 17l 17
Total privato loans 579 0 0 0 0 17 596
Ageing of the gross value of overdue but 31,12,2018
not impaired loans broken down by the
categorios of the Internal credit rating system | $ 30 days | 31.60 days | 61-90 days ‘;;:i" 1"_’1‘;"1:‘,' >4 your Total
Perfarming 418 0 0 0 0 0 e
high grade 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
| standard grade 418 0 0 0 o 0 18
average grade 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
below average grade D o 18 o 0 (1] 0
Non-performing 0 0 0 0 0 4 4
standard grace 0 0 0 o 0 0 0
average grade ] 0 0 o 0 D 0
balow average grade B o] 0| o 0 0 0
Impairod 0 0 0| 0 0 4 4
Total private loans 418 0| o 0 0 4 422
The ageing of overdue receivables by the maximum days in default is presented below at the
end of the reporting year and in the previous year,
Ageing of the gross value of overdue 31.12.2019
loans broken down by the categories
af the internal credit rating system
<30 days | 31-60 days | 61-90 days ’;;1:" "f;';f?' >1 year Total
Performing 1424 25 2| o 0 0 1451
nigh grude 0 0 0 0 0 o 0
standard grade 1059 4 ! 0 ] . a 1065
average grade 300 8 3 0 0 0 i
balow avarage grade 65 12 7 a o 1) a5
Non-performing 10 11 6 ™ 171 ‘2603 2872
 standard grade o 0 0 2 0 1 3
average grade 0 0 0 4 0 2 8|
below aversge grads o 0 ¥ 4 1 8l 12
| impaied 10 " 6 61 170 2502 2850
Tolal private loans 1434 T 18 T 71 2603 4333
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Ageing of the gross valus of overdue 3M.12.2018
loans broken down by the categories
of the internal credit rating system
<30 days | 31-60 days | 51-90 days ‘j;;‘f' i r":ﬂ“‘ > 1 yaar Total
Parforming 1 089 20 12 0 0 0 1121
high grade o 0 [\ ] ] 0 ]
standard grade 653 4 2 o 0 0 659
average grada 3o [ 3 1] 1] o 310
below average grade 135 10 7 0 [V 0 152
Non-performing 12 13 12 59 178 9945 10 219
standard grade 1 o 0 2 1 [ 6
average grade 0 1] 0 ] 1 2 5
below average grade o a o a 1 3 7
impaired 1" 13 12 52 175 9 6§30 10 202
Total private loans 1101 13 24 59 178 9 945 11 340

The ageing of the expected credit loss by the maximum days in default of the related

overdue receivable is presented below at the end of the reporting year and in the previous

year.
Aguing of the expected credit loss 31.12.2019
broken down by the categories
of the Internal credit rating system
overduo <=1 year *1 yoar Total
Performing 31 290 41332 -1 662
high grade o 0 1] ]
standard grade A1 156 B51 818 |
auermge grade -10 -84 -389 483
below average grade -10 -5% -262 -318
Non-performing -1 833 -222 -1 072 -3 227
standard grade -2 -3 A1 18
average grade -4 i 22 -2
below average grage -10 =T Al 43 |
impairad -1 817 -206 983 3116
Total impairment far private loans -1 964 521 -2 404 4 689
Ageing of the expected credit loss 31.12.2018
broken dawn by the categories
of the internal credit rating system
overdun =] yoar > 1 yoar Total
Parforming =27 -252 -1 208 <1 487
high grade 1] i o 0
standard grada =5 -101 471 ST7
average grade .13 BB 436 538
below average grade - 62 -3 =372
Non-performing -5 230 -266 1892 -7 088
standard grade 2 1 8 ET]
average grade B -3 20 -27
below average grade 5 7 35 47
impaired 5219 -256 -1 529 -7 003
Total impairment for private loans 5257 518 -2 800 8575

0¥
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Loans and advances to customer — other information

Receivables from customers by country or group of countries of origin of the customers are
presented below.

Net book value broken down by country 31.12.2019
B B - o Domestic |  Russia EU Othor Total
Lm.::rn measured al fair value though profit and 1" 028 o - 34 A9 14T
private loans _ 16028 o 85 34 19147
Loans measured at fair vaiue through other 52 a ol 0 52
comprehensive incoma
corporate loans 52 0 0 [ 52
private loans 0 0 0 0 ()
Loans measured at amortised cosi 228 390 189 12 869 4990 245 438
corporate foans 151 58 0 12 328 3847|  168130
private loans | resss 160| 541 1 043 78 308
Total | zaram0 189 12054 5024 285637 |
Nat book value broken down by country 31.12.2018
s X Domestic | Russia | EU _ Other | Total
Loans measured at fair value though profit and 0 o o
loss
Private [oans 0 0 0
mmmm r::t uf::: valup through othar 127 o 0 0 127
| cofporate loans Ba o o o &4
| private loans 43 [ 0 0 43
Loans measured at amortised cost  210904| 15204 2209 191 220508
comorate loans il 132610 14625 1880 | 0| 148995 |
private lpans 78 394 579 345 191 78513
Total 211031 16204 2209 191| 220635
Receivables from customers by industry:
Net book value T
Loans mmm :1. m:: waluo through other 31122018 3M.Az2018
corporate loans i
Agticuture, forestry and fishing =4 i
Manufacturing L) il
Watar supply 0 9
Constuction 2 1
. Wholesale and retail trade 19 21
Trarspart and sforage ‘1 ] 5]
Accommaodation md_. food service activiies 12 12
Infarmation and communication 2 2
Real estale activiles o 0 i
Prafessional, scienlific and technical activities & 7
_ Ants, enlartmnment and recreation 0 1]
| Total 52 B4
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| Total

Mot book valuo
Loans measured at amortised cost 31.12.2018. 31.12.2018
corporato loans
| Agrculture, forestry and fishing 5 742 4716
Mining and guarmying a5 f
Manufacturing 26 742 25325 |
Electricity, gas, steam and air conditioning sugply T 242 71
Water supply 438 873
Congtruction T 186 6 088
Wholesale and relail trade 30933 2B 895
Transpor and storage 6076 5178
Accommodation and food sarvice activilias 4 521 3488
Information and communication 15 6568 16872
Financial and insurance actviies 3773 1827
Real estate activities 46 484 36 730
Professional, scientific and technical activities 3584 4 15#_
Administrative and support service activities 2310 2779
Public administration and defence, compulsory 2 448 2792
Education 1 581 1980
Human health sanvices and social work activities 1712 1181
Arts, antefteinmant and necreation G48 273
Other services o568 564
Foreign organizations, bodies 1] 0
168 130 148 995

6.6.5. Plant, property and equipment

The Bank measures its plant, property and equipment using the cost model.

Changes to plant, property and equipment:

_ Land Builldings Hardware Equipmants Vehicles Tatal
Acquisition coat
e e a8 1293 907 1002 208 3445
Addition 0 168 369 52 35 525
Disposai o 0 a2 26 42
I Reclassification -18 16 a 1] 0
'::“;;_“;:’;‘““‘ st 22 1478 1272 1042 214 4028
"~ Addition o 197 664 155 0 1018
Disposal 0 =35 -12 -8 ~15 151
Reclassification 0 0 0 198 199
Shoaig aiavioe s 4% 22 1640 1924 1108 o 4 694

k]
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Hardware

. Equipments

Vehicles

Total

Accumulated depreciation

Dpening balance as at
01.01.2018

Rentilsr deprécation for the
year

T8

g

Exiraordinary depreciation
for (he your

DHaposal

o

Reclassification

Wl a

-
L=1 =

Closing balance as at
31.12.2018

Regular degreciation far tha

=L
Extraordinary deprectation
far the year

Disposal

Reciazsilication

Ciosing balance s af
31.12.2018

o ool o | o | e |ojal g | a| s

Blolalola|8

_Agumulnud Irmpadrmont

Opening batance as of
01.01.2018

|

Total

Adldition

Release

Disposal

Reclassilioation

Closing balance as at
Mz

Additicn

Redeasn

nsposal

Reclassificabon

Closing balance as at

hlolo cle & |ojolciel &

o lcjcjajo e 8o el e

U lalelelel & oo ala &

9 oo ol o oo oo o

Buildings

Hardwars

Equipmants

Net book valua

01.01 2018

601

208

152

31.12.2018

17

708

495

154

31122018

17

899

1078

243

o 2%

Plant, property and equipment rose by HUF 830 million in net terms in 2019. The main
reasons for this change are hardware (server and network assets) purchase and

development.

The Bank carried out renovation and development works on the properties in a total amount

of HUF 191 million in 2019.

The contractual commitments for the acquisition of plant, property and equipment amounted
to HUF 314 million at the end of 2019, All of these were completed and capitalised at the
beginning of the following year.

g
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The Bank received HUF 0.6 million in 2019 and HUF 0.5 million in 2018 in the form of
compensation related to damage from third parties.

The Bank does not have any plant, property and equipment that has temporarily been

withdrawn from use.

Gross carrying amounts of property, plant and equipment still in use but completely written
off:

31,12.2019 31122018
| Land i} 0
Buildings ar 29
Hardware 696 626
Equipmanis T2 7ah
Vahicles 0 179
Total 1505 1 G4B

The market value of assets still in use but completely written off is not significant.

The fair value of property, plant and equipment measured using the cost model |s the same
as the net carrying amount since the Bank regularly adjusts the carrying amount to market

value by means of impairment,

6.6.6. Right-of-use assets

Book value of the right-of-use assets by the categories of the underlying assets:

31.12.2018 31.12.2018
Acquisition cost
Bulldings. 3477 0
Vehicies 189 | 0
Total 3 666 0
31.12.2019 31.12.2018
Accumulated depreciation
Building ' -559 1]
Vehicles 31 0
Total -590 0
31.12.2019 31.12.2018
Net book value
Buildings 2018 0
Vahicles 158 0
Total 1076 0
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The value changes of the right-of-use assets in 2019:

mm w;:;"'m Revaluation | Modification | Disposal el
Right-of-use nahets
Bulidings 3451 265 21 -204 14 3art
Vahicles 26 163 0 0 0 189
Total 3477 428 21 204 A4 3666

*Opening balance according 1o IFRS 16

Modification was necessary, since the Bank moved its Retek street branch to a new place,
therefore the old lease contract was modified then terminated.

6.6.7. Intangible assets

The Bank measures its intangible assets using the cost model.
Changes o intangible assets:

Software Othar intangibles Total
T it ey oL
| Opaning balance as at 01,901,209 6780 14 6794
Addition 2358 0 2358
Saparale scquisition 0 0 0
Intarnally generated 2358 0 2258
Busingss combination 0 o] o
_ Disposal o o 0
| Reciassifcation o 0 0
Closing balance as at 31.12.2018 8138 14 9162
| Addition ' 2492 0 2 492
S pie Raakion 5 0 0
Intemally genasated 25492 o 2452
| Business combination 4] o 0
Disposal -1481 | 13 1474
Reclassificalion 0 0 0
Closing balance as at 31.12.2019 10 169 1 10 170
Saftware Other intangibles Total
' Accumulated depreciation B
Opening balance as at 01.01.2018 4 354 A3 4 367
:I::ruurﬂmumnnn for the 568 1 680
Extraordinary depreciation o 0 0
for b yoar
Disposal ] o 0
Reclassilication 0 0 0
Closing balance as at 31,12.2018 5022 14 5036
;eﬁ.hr depraciation for the 703 0 703
Extraordinary depreciation 0 o 0
for the year
Disposal 1180 13 1183
Reclassification 1] a ]
Clasing balance as at 31.12.2019 -4 545 1 -4 [i46
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Software Other intangibles | Total
Accumulated impairment
Opening balance as at 01.01,2018 47 0 A7
Addition 0 0 [
Release 0 D o
Disposal 0 0 0
Roclassification 0 0 0
' Closing balance as at 31.12.2018 47 0 AT
 Addition - 0 0 0
Rl ass | 0 0 ]
Disposal 0 1] o
Reclassification ' 0 0 0
Closing balance as at 31,12.2019 47 o a7
Software Other intangibles Total
Net book vaiue :
01.01 2018 2378 K 2 380
31,12.2018 4069 0 4069 |
31,122019 _ 5577 0 5577

In 2019 partly for normal business reasons, partly for legislative changes necessary software
purchases, developments expansions and license renewals caused significant increase in
the intangible assets.

The Bank held the following main intangible assets in its books at the end of 2019
- Development and preparation of instant payment system's implementation totalling HUF
446 million
- Data warehouse developments totalling HUF 443 million.
- Netbank surface renewal and development totalling HUF 285 million.

The contractual commitments for the acquisition of intangible assets amounted to HUF 87
million at the end of 2019. All of these were completed and capitalised at the beginning of the
following year.

Gross carrying amount of intangible assets still in use but completely written off.

31.42.2018 31,12.2018
Software 567 525
Other intangibles o 12
Total 567 5aT

The market value of assets still in use but completely written off is not significant.
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6.6.8. Equity investments

N e ————————— ey

Interests of the Bank:
u Participation (%)

Equity investmont Main activity izz013 | 3122018
Interests in subsidiarles -

[ V-DAT KN, v - Purchasersale of own properties 100,00% 100,00%

Eas Site KN Purchasaisale of own proparies 100,009 100, 00%:
Karolyl Ingatian 2011 KA. Purchaseisale of own properties 100,00% 100,00%
Other investments ) DR
anastabasheann " | Other monetary mediation 1.39% 1.39%
Garantiga Hiteigarncia Zrt. Othar financial sarvices 0,13% 0,13%
SWIFT Financial servicas 0.01% 0.01%

| Visa Inc Financial servicns T % 001% |

In 2019 the Bank as owner decided to dissolve V-DAT Kft. through voluntary liquidation,
therefore it classified this subsidiary into assets heid for sale. The voluntary liquidation
procedure will be completed in 2020,

Carrying amount of the interests:

| Equity investment Valuation method at122018 | 31122018
V-DATKR ‘va " Cost less impaiment 3
East Site Ki Cost less impainment 17 19
Karalyl Ingatian 2011 Kit Cost lsss mpainment 137 145
Fundamenta- Lakdskassza | Fair value through Other " &
Lakistakarikpénzar 2 Gomprehensive Income

Garantiga Hitelgarancia 2it, g‘m‘mrﬁ: 10 10
g Fae v it O i
[ Visa Inc: Falf value through Profit of Loss’ 536 361
Toal 787 605

The change in the value of Visa Inc. is due to changes in the market price and the exchange

rate,
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Changes to impairment booked on equity instruments:
rolyl

Ka
"“.’.'::‘!.“'" East St KA. | Ingatlan 2011 Total
VPN naes 184 725 1 1217
Addition 3 2 3 a
Relsase 0
Reclassicalion o Heid ot P . v 3
sale calegary
Cloging belwhos ax at 164 727 314 1228
31,12.2018
‘Addition 3 2 8 1
_F'_.mw ] 0 ] o
ogrerrier 187 ; 0 e
ﬂ':":,",':'ﬁ:’;"““ as at 0 729 122 1081

Dividends received on the equity instruments:

B 2019 2018
Fundaments- Lakaskassza 15 a5
Lakdstakarskpénztar Zrt
Viga Inc. 4] 1
Total a5 Ty
6.6.9. Tax assets and liabilities
31.12.2019 31.12.2018

Currant {nx pssots

Local business tax 25 0

Innovation contribution 0 12
Curment tax assels total 25 12

"Deforred tax assets 0 0
Tax assets total 25 12
31.12.2019 31.12.2018

Current tax libilities

Local business tax 0 36

Innovation caninbution 21 (1]
Current tax liabifities total 21 36
Deferred tax habililes 0 o
Tax liabilities total s | 36

Since the profitable operation is uncertain in the near future, the Bank does not show
deferred tax assets in its Statement of Financial Position.
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The following tables presents temporary differences, unused tax losses and tax credits for
which no deferred tax was recognised in the balance sheet.

3.12.2010
Im Other
in Profit or loss comprehensive
- income
Losses camed forwerd, tax allowance regarding FX rescue 66 459 0
_program
Securities svailable for sale 0 -141
Temporary differences in relation to discrepances of HAS and 829 0
IFRS
Tax basa modifying items 0 ]
Tatal . 67 288 141
fil 31.12.2018
In Othor
In Profit or loss comprehensive
M= income
Losses camed forward, lax allowance regarding FX rescue &7 795 o
LELLia]
Sequrities available for sale > 0 -282
| Temporary differences in relation to discrepancies of HAS and P o
IFRS LIl
Tax base modifying tems 1147 a
Total 70 600 -282

The unused amount of tax allowance regarding FX rescue program by expiry:

| 31122019 | 31422018 | Cnanges | et
amount of tax allowsnga wilhout expiration 127 I 110
Total 127 o 10 410

The unused amount of losses carmed forward from previous years by expiry:

312201 | 31122018 | Changes T‘i"w
ﬁﬂ:&mn from fax base with expiration till prer=r > P o
_g;dgm;;;fu b hm e _ﬂ ! 50433 - 58 433 -5 349
§?"i‘;‘f‘§§"§f”“‘"‘ from tax base with expiration til e il . )
_ﬁjﬁ;ﬂymumm tax base with expiration 1l Xoie = 5 5
Yobal — — | e8332[ ST 858 | o 226 A10 |

The unused amount of temporary differences due to transition to IFRS by expiry:

3422010 | 31122018 | Changes T‘I;.;:;“
ﬂﬁ::uMI from tax basa with expiration til BT 587 0 0
deductible amount from tax base with expiration il
31.12.2019 0 688 688 -110
Total 687 A3 -688 110




Stand-nlone Financial Statements 31, December 2019

Sberbank Hungary Lid.

data in HUF million

6.6.10. Derivatives

Derivatives by type:
31.12.2019 ey
R Mabiities | Net position r:ﬁgu: fa vl
Exchange traded deals 0 0 0 0 0
OTC deals
interest rale swops 52 387 -52 367 o 179 -758
Interest rate options 3380 3380 0 0 2
Basls swaps 0 [ 0 0 0
FX options 0 0 o ] ]
FX swaps 77 567 7B 016 419 1B 486
FX forwards 7 426 -7 443 A7 a1 .32
Index options 0 0 0 o 0
Total 140 779 141 215 436 228 -1 255
31.12.2018 =
o | e | wapon | SN | i
Exchange traded deals 0 1] ] 0 1]
OTC doals
Interest rate swaps o1 518 81 518 0 1084 535
Interest rate options 3 206 -3 296 0 5 n
Basis swaps ] 1] 0 0 ]
FX oplions 0 0 0 0 0
FX swaps 22 670 22472 198 77 -104
FX forwards 9 284 -9 341 -57 53 a7
Index options 0 0 0 0 0
Total 126 768 126 827 141 1218 732
Derivative assets broken down by maturity:
. 31.12.2019
WO, et Up to 3months | 3months to 1 year | 110 5 years """"M":“ Total
Intarest rate swaps 364 7945 18339 25 658 52 36T
Interest rate options 0 0 3380 o 3 389
Basis swaps ] D L] 0 1]
FX options 0 0 0 0 0
FX swaps 74 356 3242 0 0 77 597
FX forwards 3 B65 3 561 0 0 7426
Index options [ 0 0 0 o
Total 78 584 14 748 21 788 25 669 140779
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31.12.2018 [
Marwlessl walug Up to3 months | 3months to 1 year | 110 5 yours Som s Total
Interest rate swaps 50 D00 2660 19 269 19 569 01 518
Interest rate options 1] 0 3296 = D 3296
| Bass swaps 0 d a 0 i}
EX options 1] ] 1] ] 0
F¥ swaps 13 851 8708 o 0 22 670
FX fonweards 4118 3850 1208 ] 9284
Index optons o 0 i 1] i
Total 68 08O 15328 237m 1#55? 126 768
Derivative liabilities broken down by maturity.
31.12.2019
MNominal val :
i Up to 3 months | 3 months to 1 year 1to 5 years m;'lﬂ“'"! Total
Intesest rale swaps 64 7 645 18 308 25 650 - 52 367
Interest rals oplions 0 0 3384 1] 3309
| Basis swaps 0 0 0 0 0
FX options 0 0 0 0 0
FX swaps T4 7R3 1263 Li] 0 TH 018
FX forwirds 386 3 53_;{ . 1] o T a4}
Index aptions 0 i 0 0 ]
Total 78 993 14775 21 788 25 650 141 218
322018
Nominal value T3
' Upto 3months |Imonthsto 1 year| 1 to & years ""_;":’_"“ Total
| Interest ratn swaps [ 50 000 | 2680 19209 19560 91518
Interes) rate options (1] a 3286 o ‘3286
Banis swops 0 o 0 0 o
F¥X options 0 0 a E 0
FX swaps 13 955 o s17 o a 22472
FX forwards 4112 1979 1250 0 9 341
Index options 0 0 ¢ o 0
Total 68 067 16 156 23 835 14 568 126 627
6.6.11. Other assets
N122019 | 31.12.2018
Mot book value
GCihor financial assets 1812 1787
‘Dther non-financial assets 56 a2
Total 1 868 1 B69

T
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Composition of other financial assets:

A28 MAL20M8
Gross book value of other financial assets
| Business support receivables 142 146
Receivables from the slate 40 14
Recaivables from deferfed paymeants o 53
Plastic cands sattlomants 144 324
Other seltlements a2 50
Advances 106 3|
Initia fair value difference of FGS loans 514 457 |
Prapasi expenses and accrued |ncome 768 727
Total 1826 1842
31122019 | 31922018
Impairmeant on other financial nssels
Busimass suppor] recaivables -5 35
Receivables from the state 0 1]
Receivabies from delered payments 4] 0
Plastic cards sotthemants -5 -8
Other setllamenis -4 -1
Advances 0 i
initial fair value difference of FGS loans 0 0
Prepaid expenses and accrued income 0 4]
Total A4 -55
Composition of other non-financial assets:
31.12.2019 31.12.2018
Othar non-financial assots
Raw matenals and invantory 43 72
Collaterals takan into possession 0 0
Receivables on operaling taxes 10 "ol
Other non-financlal assets 3 i
Total 56 82

In 2018 the sale of plots of land in Szombathely which were previously pledged as collateral
for loans, very probable, therefore they were reclassified into the held-for-sale category. The
negotiations did not close with the potential buyer till the end of 2019, therefore the sale did
not oceur. The Bank’'s management is still committed to the sale.

6.6.12. Non-current assets and disposal groups held for sale

Composition of assets held for sale:

31.12.2018 31.12.2018
Land and buikdings 13 13
Equity imesimants a 1]
Total 13 13
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Changes in assets held for sale:

Land and Equity e
bulldings |  Investments
Oponing balance as at 01.01,2018 857 13 570
| Reclassification into Held for sake category 1 0 13
Sale : = 557 0 557
Decrease dus to voluntary liquidation 0 13 13
Ciosing balance as at 31.12.2018 13 0 13
Reclassification into Held for sale category 0 0 0|
Sale o} 0 o
_ Decreasa duo 1o voluntary iquidation 0 0 0]
Closing balanice as at 31.12.2018 13 of 13

In 2018 the sale of plots of land in Szombathely which were previously pledged as collateral
for loans, very probable, therefore they were reclassified into the held-for-sale category. The
negotiations did not close with the potential buyer till the end of 2019, therefore the sale did
not occur. The Bank’s management is still committed to the sale.

In 2019 the Bank as owner decided to dissolve V-DAT Kft. through voluntary liquidation,
therefore |t classified this subsidiary into assets held for sale. The voluntary liquidation
procedure will be completed in 2020,

6.6.13. Liabilities to credit institutions

Liabilities to credit institutions are recorded initially at fair value and subsequently at
amortised cost

Balances of liabilities to credit institutions;

_____ B | 3122000 31.12.2018
Linbilities due to central banks 16292 16 586
~ Upto 1t year ' 130 14
| iloSyears 0 0
More than & years 16 162 16 471
Liabilities due to other cradit institutions 36 408 18 353
 Uptolyear " 634
10 5 years B ' 15141 10 341 |
Maore than 5 yoars 61583 78
e ——— — e Py

6.6.14, Liabilities to customers

Liabilities to customers are recorded initially at fair value and subsequently at amortised cost.

Th



Stand-alone Financial Statements 31, December 2019
Sterbank Hungary Lid.

data in HUF million

Balances of liabilities to customers:

31.12.2019 3122018
Liahilities due to corporato customers 211 834 182 670
Up to 1 year 201777 175 084
1 1o 5 years 57 7 586
More than & yoars o 0
Liablilities due to private customers 90 204 B2 791
Up to 1 year ag 072 82 388
110 5 yoars 132 403
Mare than b years i] 0
Total 302 033 265 461

6.6.15. Debt securities in issue

Issued bonds are recorded initially at fair value and measured subsequently at amortised

cosl.
Liabilities due to issued bonds.

31.12.2019 | 31.12.2018
Em-nurﬂiu In issue
Up to 1 year 1310 2829
iws years 1] 1348
Mare than & years 0 o
Total 1310 4177
Information on issued bonds:
Bond Startdote | Maturity date F Nomina! | Currency e~ R
VIGTORIA § | 2otogz01] 20200201 261 EUR |  40,00% %63
\VICTORIA 6 20100503 20200501 327| EUR | 2500% 405 |
VICTORIA 7 | eoooroi] 2000701 275 EUR 3,00% 37|
VICTORIA 8 - 20101001 20201001 | 12| EUR | 3500% 174
Total . 130
Bond Startdate | Maturitycate | NOMIn8! Toiconey interest | Book value as
amount rate® at 31.12.2018
VICTORIA 2 2009 04 01 2019.04 01 634| EUR 50,00% 941 |
VICTORIA 3 2009 07.01 201907 01 452| EUR 30,00% 580
VICTORIA 4 2009,12.01 201912 02 965| EUR 40,00% 1308
VICTORIA 5 2010 02 01 202002 01 265| EUR 40,00% 357
VICTORIA B 20100503 | 20200501 28| EUR 26,00% 307
VICTORIA 7 2010.07.01 2020 07.01 323l EUR 35,00% 418
VICTORIA 8 2010.10.01 2020.10.01 140] EUR 35,00% 178
Total 4177

The Bank paid back the completely the Victoria bonds which matured in 2019.
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The change in the value of issued bonds is due to changes in the exchange rate and the

buying back.

The loss on buying back own bonds was HUF 2 million in 2019, HUF 5 millien in 2018.

6.6.16. Subordinated liabilities

Subordinated debt is recorded initially at fair value and measured subsequently at amortised

cost.

Composition of subordinated debt:

21122018 | 31122018
Subordinatod dobt _
_ Upwiyear _ 0 0
| 1105 years 0 i
Mare than 5 years 2313 8 062
Total . 9313 8 062
Information on the individual loans:
Nominal
Lender Start date "':u‘:.*" amount in | Currency Interest rate H’“‘:‘; :::;1'; at
ourrency 1
Sbarbank Europs AG 20150727 | 2025.07.27 | 15000000| EUR | 3M EURIBOR + 3.60% 4986
Sbarbank Eutope AG 201604 11| 2027.04.00| 13000000 | EUR | 30 EURIBOR + 363% 4321
= . T
Lendor Start date “w amount in | Curroncy Interast rate Bo::: :;!:;1'; "
currency 3
Sberbank Eurape AG 201507.27| 20250727 | 15000000 EUR | 3MEURIBOR + 3,63% 4851 |
Sherbank Eurape AG 20160411 20240411 | 13000000 EUR | 3MEURIBOR + 3,630 4211
Total - 9062

6.6.17. Provisions

Provisions for contingent liabilities and commitments related to off-balance sheet
lending

As part of its universal banking activity and in addition to opening credil lines the Bank also
offers its customers financial guarantees as well as letter of credit facilities, Financial
guarantees means furnishing bank guarantees for various purposes, while letters of credit
salisfy the needs of a special group of customers, so they are small in number but stable.
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Futur and contingant liabilities 31122019 | 31922018
credit bnes 56 916 45 206
provisions for credit ines ~102 -168
financial guarantees 28721 34 526
provisions for financial guarantees -228 292
lelter of credits 14 047 aa40r7
provisions for letler of credits o2 -28
Total 100 152 113 321

The tables below present off-balance sheet maximum credit risk exposures broken down
according to the Bank's internal credit rating system and the expected credit loss categories

at the end of the reporting year.
Off-balance sheel exposures broken down by 31.92.2019
the intemal credit rating system categories and | 12 month | lifetimo tmpalned impaired
the eategaries of expectod crodit loss (ECL) ECL ECL assols assols
Amartizod cost collective | caollectivo collective individual Total
credit lines 55 406 1460 1 49 56 916
Perfonming 55 406 1460 0 0 56 866
high grade 14 658 4 o 0 14 662
standard grade 27 255 425 0 0 27 660
average grade 12 374 810 1] ] 13 284
belaw average grade | 1118 121 0 0 1240
impalred 0 0 0 0 0
Non-performing ] ] 1 48 50
standard grade 0 0 0 i] 0
average grade 0 o 0 a a
below average grade 1] o a a a
impaired 0 o 1 49 50
financial guarantees 28 228 1221 0 266 20721
Parforming 28228 1227 D 1] 29455
tugh grade 13318 o 0 0 13318
standard grade g 048 506 i ] o fas
aversge grade 5816 E1g 0 0 6435
beiow average grade &6 12 0 0 58
Non-parforming 0 [} 0 266 266
standard grade o 0 i 0
average grade L] +] 0 ] i)
mipainad 0 o 0 266 266
lotter of credits 14 047 a 0 0 14 D47
Pardoming 14 047 1] 0 0 14 047
standard grade 14 047 0 0 o 14 047
batham'agu agrade o a 1] 0 o
MNan-performing 0 1] L] ol o
standard grada 0 1] (1] 0 1]
Bverage grade 1] Li] 0 a 0
Total a7 681 2 807 1 315 100 684
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| Oft-balance sheot exposures braken dewn by 3422018
the internal credit rating system categories and | 12 month | Iifetime impaired impalrad
the categories of axpectsd cradit loss (ECL) ECL ECL nesats assats
collective | colloctive | collective | individual Total
| credit lines 44128 590 3 485 45 206
~ Peitorming 44128 581 0 ] 44708
high giade 2 Bog 45 a 0 2913
standard grade E_E 597 5[ 1] @ 25802
average grade 13 805 496 0 0 14 301
belaw average grade 1758 135 0 a 1893
_ impaied 0 0 0 1] 0
Mon-performing a g 3 485 487
standard grade a ] 0 ] "o
average grade il 0 0 0 0
balow average grade a ] 0] 0 g
- impaired 0 0 3 485 488
tinancial fuaraniooss 3agar 50 0 539 34 526
Perfarming 33929 50 0 o] 3as7e
high gridi B 158 0 0 0 8 158
standard grade 20 B50 0 [/} ] 20850
. Tmemgegmde = 00 0@ | A 9 L, 0 LALc ]
below pverage ﬂl‘ﬂai 148 80 0 o 106
Non-parforming ] o] ] 539 547
standard grade 0 0 [\ 0 0
average grade 6 o 0 [V B
impaired 2 0 0 539 n41
lotter of credits Mor7| 0| 0 0 34077
Performing 34077 ] 0 (i} 34077
standard grade 33775 0 0 0 23 775
_ balow average grads 30z o 0 0 302
Non-performing. 0 0 0 0 0
standard um_d_n o 1] i n 1] ]
___ avorage grade of D 1] 0 ]
| Total 112 142 640 3 1024 113008

The following lables reveal the reporting-year changes in off-balance sheel exposures
relating to lending, broken down by category of expected credit loss al the end of the
reporting year to credit lines, financial guarantees and letters of credit

The main reason for the drop in credit lines was the use of such facilities, and only a smaller
portion was credit lines expired without being used.
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Ghanges in the off-balance sheal exposumnes 3122019
broken down by the 12 mionth Iifetima impaired Impairad
expected credit loss (ECL) categorios ECL ECL assols asaols
credil lines collective | collective collective indfividuial Total
opening balance 44 128 590 3 485 45 206
| how exposures during the year 14 322 7 0 o 14 363
datocognised as malured 0 195 -2 A58 555
ﬂ'ﬁﬂﬂnlm as uzed i -2324 -36 aQ -2 360
reclassification between collaclive and o o o 0
| individual categories
reclassificalion lo 12 manth ECL calegary 7740 740 0 0 0
reclassification to ifetime ECL category B 758 B 750 0 - 0
reclassification to impaired calegory -23 e} o 23 ]
other moyements (FX translation, rounding) 321 11 0 0 33z
closing balance 55 406 1 460 1 a9 56 916
Changes in the aff-balance shoet exposures 3.12.2018
broken down by the 12 month lifetime impaired impaired
sxpectad credit loss [ECL) categories ECL ECL assots ansels
cradit linos collective | collective collective Fndividual Tatal
opening balance 74 904 452 B 4 75 368
nmumnmn'&rﬁwmu year 6 155 | 20 0 0 G175
derecognised as matured 2201 43 0 0 2 244
_ deracognised as usad -35245 -163 48 114 -a5M2
Loy mﬂ"“w‘““ m sy 0 0 128 128 0
reclassification to 12 month ECL category 423 -309 -24 o 0
reclassification to [ifetime ECL category -fe2 767 -5 ] 0
reclassification to impaired category -2 A5 202 245 o
other movements (FX transtation, rounding) 1256 Kl B 3 1249
closing balance 44128 590 3 485| 45208

Due to one financial guarantee claiming the Bank lent an overdraft with an amount HUF 104
million in 2019. The deal is reported in Loans and advances to customers in the balance

sheet.

Changes In the off-balance sheel exposures 31.12.2019
broken down by the 12 month litetime impaired Impained
expected crodit loss (ECL) categories ECL ECL assels assels
financlal guaraniees collectivae | collective colinctive individual Total |
-opening balance 33 837 50 0 539 34 526
neEw exposures during the year 0 [1] ] 1] 0|
derecognised as matured -4 BBZ -305 i -280 -5 267
derocognised @5 used 104 0 i] a 104
redlassification between collective nd 0 0 0 0 0
individiua| categories :
mclassification to 12nw1lh ECL category a8z -482 1] 0 0
reclassification to Hletime ECL category -1 964 1 964 ] Q L]
reciassification to impaired category 1] '] 0 1] L]
olher movements (FX translation, rounding) 351 0 0 7 358
closing balance 28 228 1227 0 266 29721
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Changes in the off-balance sheat exposiures M.12.2018
broken down by the 12 month lifetime impairnd imipraired
oxpocied credil loss (ECL) categories EGL ECL -assets anEMs
financial guarantoos collective | eoliective collective Irveliviedual Total
opening balance 28 097 0 o 0 28 097 |
new exposures duting the year 16 747 3 -1 -a5 16 714 |
derecugrised an matured 10815 0 0 0 10815
derecognised as used 0 g 4] o o
reclassification between coliective and 0 g .5 5 0
indivalual categories. a
reckassification to 12 month ECL categary 19 -18 o 0 a
reclasslfication o lifebme ECL categary 66 i 0 [ 0
reclassification o mpaired category. 577 D 6 570 A
other moverments (FX transtation, rounding) 532 o 0 -1 )
closing balance A3 937 50 o 539 34 526
Changes In the off-balance shest sxposuros 31,12.2018
broken down by the 12manth | lifelime impaired impairod
axpected credil loss (ECL) eategories ECL ECL assals assets
lottor of credits colloctive | collective collective indlvidual Total
opening balance T 3077 0 0 0 34077
NEW BXpOSLIEs duﬁmﬁ the yoar 136 V] ] 1] 138
dorpcognmad an matures 21 114 o [ 0 21114
darecognised as used ) 0 o 0 L] 1]
reciassification batween collective and 0 0 a 0 0
individual categories
raclassHication to 12 month ECL calagory o o 0 ] 0
meciassification to liletima EGL category 0 0 0 0 0
reclassification to lmlimd category o] (1] ¥ 1] 1]
other movements (FX transiation, raunding) 848 0 ] 1] 548
| closing batanco 14 047 0 0 of 14047
Changos In the off-balance sheot axposuros NI2.2018
broken down by the 12month | lifelime Impaired impairad
expected credil loss (ECL) categories ECL ECL assets assels
lottar of crodits collective | collective |  collective | Individual Total
opening balance 31308 | 0 0 0 31 308
W u:pomm-n during e year 408 _:'.! D o 3 ‘Iﬁ?
darecognised as malured 453 0 0 0 -453
darecognised as used 1062 | 0 0 0 1062 |
reclasaiication belween colleciive and o o 0 ol o
reclassification to 12 month ECL category 0 o a 4] 4}
recingsification to Ii'n'la'rIn EGL category 0 o 0 1] a
reciassification to Irma!rad cmguw o 0 0 1] a
othier movements (FX translation, rounding) 1175 3 o ] 1178
closing balance 34 077 ] (i o 34077
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The following tables show the provisions for off-balance sheet exposures related to lending,

broken down according to the Bank's internal credit rating system and the expected credit

loss categories.

Provisions for off-balance shoot
broken down by
tha internal credit rating system categories and

the categories of expecited credit loss (ECL)

ECL
collective

3122019

impalred
assels
collective

impained
assels
Individual

g

cradit linos

i
L= ]

102

Parforming

am
R

-
a
B

high grage

i

-
o

standard grade

average grade

below average grade

impeited

Maon-parfarming

standard grade

e
olo|o|sioibd

average grada

below avarage grade

impaired

D aacalo|o|w

financial guarantaes

g

1

]
AR ===

Parforming

et
-4

Y
=]

high grade

=4}

=13

slandard grade

-
T

]

avarage grade

-
=

Lo
-~

below average grade

ﬂﬂﬂnﬁgﬂﬁﬂﬂﬂﬁﬂﬂﬂﬂﬂﬂ

MNon-perfarming

178

178

standard grade

avorage grade

impaired

178

letter of crodits

Performing

standard grade

below average grace

MNon-parforming

standard grade

average grade

SooioinmRio R o oo

oloa|lojo|o|o

Contingent liabilities and commitmants total

g

——
Y ololololelole|eioleiole|eiwicli|Ricio|oiciojo|=sivio

cloloo|lojolalalelojo|olc|lo|lajale|e|loo|a|pa|oiojoloO|OS

178

Ennnn»mngnn,

B3



Stand-nlone Financial Staterments 31. December 2019

Sherbank Hunﬂqﬂ I:td.

data in HUF miltion

[ Provisions for off-balance sheet
beohen down by
the internal crodit rating system catogories and

the calegories of expected credit joss (ECL)

12 month
ECL
collective

o
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The following tables show the reporting-year changes in provisions for off-balance sheet
exposures related to lending, broken down according to the Bank's internal credit rating
system and the expected credit loss categories. In light of the low interest rates, the impact of
discounting the provisions for long-term transactions is negligible and so this is not presented
on a separate row and is not reclassified to interest expenses.
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Changes in the provisions
broken down by the expected
credit loss |ECL) categorles
oredit lnos

12 month
ECL
collective

311.12.2019
impairad
nssots
eallective

impaired

individual

opening balance

108

rlew Bxposures during the year

174
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dua to changa in credit risk

-T3
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reclassification lo lifefime EI:.‘.Lmtg'gu?qr

reclassification to impaired category
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Changes in the provisions
broken down by the expected

credit loss (ECL) eategaries
financial guaranioes
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ECL
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lifetime
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The following tables reveal the off-balance sheet exposures related to lending broken down

by geographical region.

Of-balance sheet oxposures by 31.12.2019
geographical region Domestic Russia Eu Cther Tatal
cradit inoa 53 584 4 3308 20 56 916
financial guaraniess 26 046 2259 1410 =] 2871
letter of credils 14 047 0 0 0 14 04T
Total 93 677 2263 478 8 100 684
Off-balance shaet exposures by 31.12.2018
geographical reglen Domestic Russia EU Other Total
cradi lines 38 394 2 4 826 1984 45 208
financial guarantees 22 558 11 652 316 0 34 526
letter of cradits 34 077 0 0 0| 340717
.‘!'ntd 96 029 11 854 5142 1084 113 BO9

The following tables show the off-balance sheet exposures related to lending broken down

by division.
Off-balance sheet exposures broken down 31.12.2019
by industry financial

crodit ines | guarantees Wil Total
Agriculture, forestry and fishing 1626 &8 i 1714
Mining and quarrying 1 0 0 1
Manufacturing B445 770 0 9 215
Eleciricity, gas, steam and ar conditioning supply 1277 1454 1] 2731
Water supply 47 zi 0 6
Construction B618 20121 0 28 740
Whlesale and retail trade 12 896 1456 14 047 28 399 |
Transport and storage 5 344 56 o 5 400
Accommodation and food service aclvilias 1 000 1 [i] 1001
infarmation and communication 1158 T 0 1228
Financial and insurance activilies 1118 3785 0 4504
Real estate activities 8 403 21 0 0424
Professional, scentific and lechnical adivities 2 679 1 350 0 4029 |
_ﬂ:lmmiamuw and support service activities i) L 0 121
Public administration and defence, compuisory 100 0 0 100
| Education 48 0 0 48
Human Eﬂm sorvices and sodlol work activities 242 0 0 242
Arts. entertainmant and recreation 55 4 i 55
Other services 95 0 0 95
Foraign arganizations a B 0 L
Individuals 1963 45 0 2 008
Total 56 918 29721 14047 100 684
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Off-balance sheet exposures broken down 31122008
by industry financial
_ credit fines | guaranteos __'g;;;’ | Toul
Agriculture, forestry and fishing 1183 i 0 1214
| Mining and quarrying 40 0 o a0
Hnnuilldunm . 8740 641 0 8 381
Electricity, gas, steam and air condifioning supply 1121 1026 0 2147
Water supply B 24| 21 0 45
Construction 6 131 17 578 0 23 708
Wholesale and retail trade B 247 1381 3M077| 43705
Transpon and storage 6181| 58 0 68217
Accommodation and food service aclivities 453 1 0 454
Information and communication 2810 27 0 2837
Financial and insurance acivities 1830 3?&1 0|  ss02
Real estate activities 2 051 0 ] 2 051
Professional, scientific and technical activities 2783 8612 0 12 405
Aaministrative and support service aciivitios 836 149 0 985
Public administration and defence, compulsory 702 a o 702
Education 657 0 D 57
Human health services and soclal work activities 167 o] o 167
Arts, entartainment and recreation ' 55 4 a] s
[ Othorservices 69 0 0 69
Individuals N 2037 *| 0 2073 |
Total 45 206 34 526 34077 113809
Other provisions

The Bank records other provisions for expected liabilities stemming from legal and other
contractual obligations if it has a present obligation from a past event making it probable that
it will have to make a payment and the amount of said payment can be quantified,

Composition of other provisions;

. 31122018 | 31122018 |

Other provisions .

" Provisions for pending logal lssues 150 | I
vaiulnmj for plastic eand abiites B a 4
Provisions for ofher habilites I 742 34|

Total 900 261

Provisions for other expected liabilities includes a provision in amount of HUF 708 million
allocated for the repurchase liability of the Bank relating to the sold non-performing private
mortgage loans.

Legal disputes are initiated against the Bank as defendant mainly in the ordinary course of
business. The maximum amount of the expected financial hability from these disputes was
HUF 271 million at the end of 2019 and HUF 521 million one year earlier. In case of ongoing
legal disputes the provision is calculated based on the best available estimate of the amount
of potential financial losses.
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Changes in other provisions:
Provisions for | Provisions for
Pravisions for
mel uﬂﬁtﬂu::m other lisbilities i
Opening balance as at
01.01.2019 223 4 34 61
Allocation 27 22 708 757
Relase 100 =11 o 111
Use 0 ] -7
Closing balance as at
31.12,2019 150 742 900
Provisions Tor Provisions for
pend lagal jast Provisions for
I-LT“ n||a|irrr$d other liabilities Total
Dpening balance as at 5
01.01.2018 az7 34 264
Adlocation a8 ] 0 a7
Reloase 41 -1 0 42
Use <1 T 0 -8
Closing balance as at
31.12,2018 an 4 b 261
6.6.18. Other liabilities
M.az2019 3.12.2018
Net book value )
Other financial iakbilitles T B2 5619
Other non-finencial abilbes Ta4 Hﬂgﬂ
Total B 636 6 288
Composition of other financial liabilities:
3.12.2019 31.12.2018
Dither finaneial liabilities
| Business support payables 620 581
Payables o the stale A34 347
Plastic cards settiements a 4
Other seftlements 1268 2 449
Advances o o 0
Initial fair value difference of FGS loans B34 525
Lease abligations according to IFRS 16 3303 R
Lease obligations according o IAG 17 =— |
Acorued expenses and deferred Income 1635 1681
Total T892 B E19
Composition of other non-financial liabilities:
o J31.12.2019 31,12.2018
Other non-financial linbilities
Operating tax payables 618 557
Other non-financial kabilities 128 112
Total Td44 BED
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6.6.19. Share capital

The Bank's share capital only comprises “A" ordinary shares. The shares in the "A" series
are printed, registered ordinary shares thal come with voting rights. All "A* shares provide
one vote at the Bank's general meeting.

Ownership structure and breakdown of shares:

31122018 | 31.12.2018
pleces | amount | pleces | amount

Sherbank Europe AG ; |

AT 1010 Wien Schwarzenbergplatz 3 3872 JB87| 38872 jaar
Tirkiye Halk Bankasl

TU 06240 Ankara Eskesehir Yolu 2 Cadde No 400 40 400 40
| 63, Bugitdel {1 PR || S =
Total srarz| avE| armz| aTad

In 2018 Sberbank Europe AG decided to raise capital again, increasing the Bank's share
capital by another HUF 100 000. The capilal increase was registered by the Court of
Registration on 4 December 2018,

There were no significant direct issue costs in connection with the share issues in 2018
In 2019 there was no change in the Bank's share capital

6.6.20, Capital reserve

The capital reserve contains the contributions made by owners in relation to the capital
increases.

Following the capital increases the capital reserve rose by HUF 2 916 million in 2018.
In 2019 there was no change in the capital reserve

6.6.21. Other reserve

The other reserve only contains the general reserve.

Act CCXXXVIIl of 2013 an Credit Institutions and Financial Enterprises prescribes that the
Bank must transfer 10% of its reporting-year profit after tax from retained earnings into the
general reserve. The general reserve may only be used to cover losses derived from
operations. No dividends may be paid from the general reserve.
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6.7 Notes to the Income statement

6.7.1. Interestincome

Details of interest income:

= 2018 2018
Interest recelvable and similar incoms
Interast income calculated using effective interes! mathod
" Cash and cash equivalents 183 156
Receivables from credit institutions 464 532
Loans s and advances to customers 9938 g3z
Securities 580 728
Eum ] 0
[ interest income calculated using effective interest method total 11965 | 10 738
Interest income caloulated using olher than affactive interest
mithod I
Recewvables from customers 217 0
Securitie 2 653
Darivatives 222 348
Interest income calculated using other ihan effective inferest ' 51 1 004
mathod total |
Total 11916 11739

The amount of government grant received in the interest of preferential deposit facilities is
presented under 'Receivables from credit institutions'.

Interest income rose by HUF 177 million (+1,5%) in 2019 owing to the robust growth in
lending activity. The interest income on loans disbursed to customers rose by HUF 833
million (+8,9%), while the net interest income on securities and derivative transactions fell by
HUF 615 million.

This all corroborates the Bank's more efficient asset management strategy, which is primarily
aimed at raising net interest income.

6.7.2. Interest expenses

Detalls of interest expenses:

2019 2018
Interest payable and similar expense
Intarest expense calculated using effective interest methad ==
Lighifitins to credil institutions -804 597
Liahilities 1o cuslomerns -B71 788
Dbt securitios in Lsun -7 176
~ Subordinated liabiities -302 -289
Lease lahiiities according lo IFRS 18 -1189
Leass liabllities according to 1AS 17 5]
Others 1] 0
Interest expense calculated using effactive interest method total -1993 -1 967
interest expense calculated using ather than effective nterest
method
Dervatives ~444 360
Interest expanse caléulated using othar than effective interast Add 380
method talal
Total -2 437 2 357 |
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In 2019 the amount of interest expenses rose by HUF 80 million (+3,4%). The interest
expense on issued securities fell by HUF 79 million. The reason of this is the maturity of
Victoria 2, Victoria 3 and Victoria 4 issued bonds, which caused less interest expense. This
decrease was compensated by the increase of liabilities to credit institutions, which rose by
HUF 107 compared to last year. The interest on liabilities to customers decreased compared
to lasl year, due te the increasing weight of demand deposits and the decreasing weight of
term deposits.

6.7.3. Net provision charge for loan impairment

Changes in loan loss allowance are detailed in Sections 6.6.1-6.6.4,

6.7.4. Fee and commission income

2019 2018

g p——— __ eny e, =
:.;::I:g businass and guaranioss a7 "y
Cash and setloments 45| 4143 |
Transachons with seturities 7 ) 6

__ Piastic wd;:puralm | 1086 - 2s
Operations wath foreign curmancies 2515 2214

| Others S 97| LD
Total _H@i B38|

Non-recurring fees (disbursement commissions and contracting fees) related to lending
activity are taken (nto account during the effective interest calculation and thus recognised
under interest income. Lending business and guarantees issued row contains fees related to
current accounts, overdrafis, issued guarantee fees and handling fees of government
subsidies.

The primary reason for the increase in fee and commission income related to payment
services is the growth in the payment services used by customers.

In 2019 commission income increased by HUF 860 million (+10%) mainly thanks to the
growth in income from operations with foreign currencies (HUF 301 million), but there was
significant rise also in case of plastic card operations and payment services. Fee income
from lending business rose by 18%, mainly due to the income from Baby Loans

The 58% increase in the number of aclive customers to 70 170 (+3 867 customers)
contributed to all this.
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6.7.5. Fee and commission expense

—y

ams W18 |
Fee and commission oxpense =
[L:Gr?wﬂ business and guarantees .389 a8
Cash and satilamaonts 136 131
Transaations with securies 0 1]
" Plastic cards operations -800 688
Operalicns with foreign currencies A8 A5
Others 9 48
Total 1422 A 208

Non-recurring fees (agent commissions, appraisal and notary fees) related to lending activity
are taken into account during the effective interest calculation and thus recognised under
interest income. Lending business and guarantees received row contains brokerage fees
related to overdraft loans, paid guarantee fees and other administrative fees.

Commission expenses rose by HUF 214 million (+18%) owing to the increase in items
related to lending and plastic card operations.

6.7.6. Net trading income

2019 2018

Mot trading Income |

" Operations with foreign currencies 617 120
Derwalives _ 736 1531
Revaluation of loans 512 0

Total 394 1651

In the case of the monetary policy HUF interest rate swaps (MIRS) with the MNB, the Bank
immediately recognises the gain from the preferential interest in profit or loss as the day-one
gain or loss impact. In 2018 this amounted to HUF 1,38 billion.

The revaluation of loans row contains the fair value change of Baby loans. For the fair value
calculation of Baby loans the Bank uses inputs at level 3 of the fair value hierarchy.

6.7.7. Net gain or loss on securities

2018 018 |
Mot gain or loss on sacuritias i s
Trading debl securties 1 4
Dibi securities designated at fair value through profit o lass -303 649
Debt securities at fair value through other comprehensive income | 45 -40
Debt securities at amortised cost -26 42
Divsdend ineome 5 5
Equity instruments W 38

Buy back of own bonds -2 -5
Total i 108 633
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The Bank reached an income from securities higher by 83%, HUF 524 million in 2019 than
last year. The net gain or loss on equity instruments row shows a significant increase owing
to the revaluation of VISA Inc shares. The debt securities designated at fair value through
profit or loss maltured in the middle of 2019.

6.7.8. Changes in allowances for other risks

Changes in reserves for other risks are detailed in Section 6.6.17.

6.7.9. Other operating income

= 2010 2018
Othar aperating income = i
" Sale of loans T eams 13 |
Salo of tangible and intangible assels 2 506
Incame from recharged ftems | 23 3
"~ Administration and success fees 247 127
Othars 168 5
Total o 2660 | 784

In 2018 the intensive activity of selling receivables continued, during which the Bank
successfully sold the significant part of non-performing loans. Section 6.9 17 Realised profit
from sale of loans contains detailed information.

The Sale of tangible and intangible assels row contains the profit from selling the former
head quarter (HUF 488 million) in 2018. In contrast, in 2019 the result on the disposal of not-
in-use software can be found on this row.

The Administration and success fees row contains fees received for the further
administration of the previously sold non-performing loans.

The Iincrease on Others row is due to a compensation for an early repaid loan.
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6.7.10. Other operating expenses

2019 2018

Other operating expenses _ i
"~ Maleriais and supplies 4 265 A 760
Training costs -50 44
Other adminsirative expenses 2 220 2011
Advertising and marketing cosls 677 505
Conaulling and assurance services ATT <G54
Talecommunication axpensas A17 -332
Repair and maintenance costs I 424 A 114
Porsonnel expanses - -6 168 5 T04
Wages and salares 4834 | 4 493
Other employes banefits 254 278
Social Secunty costs -1 058 -850 |
. Changes In accrued expanse on unusad vacations . 1 :!2 27
Depreciation and amortization ' ' -1 537 o7
Dopreciation of tangible nssets e 249
~ Amortization of intangible assets 703 568
Impaimment of rigm:_qf—usa assets 606 0
Othar taxes -4 053 -3 B4D
Others -90 129
Others -84 -123
Mandalory deposit insurance expenses L 6
Total A6 113 45 350

The average headcount in 2019 was 606 people and 604 people in 2018.

Expenses on materials and supplies fell by HUF 485 million (-10%) in 2019 which can be
explained with the following reasons

The 62% fell on repair and maintenance row is the consequence of transition to IFRS 16
standard. The rent costs of branches and head office was shown here in 2018 (HUF 721
million), while in 2019 it is reported partly in the depreciation of right-of-use assets (HUF 574
million), partly in the interest expenses of lease obligations (HUF 114 million) (detailed in
section 6.9.1 Leases).

Training costs rose by HUF 6 million, caused primarily by the increased costs of internal
group trainings.

In 2019 the amount of other administrative costs exceeded the previous year's data by HUF
209 million, partly due to the rise in IT costs and partly due to the higher amount of
supervisory fees of banking supervision,

Marketing costs rose by HUF 72 million (+12) in 2019 primarily because of the increase in
the costs of advertising campaigns, direct marketing and external events.

Advisory and insurance costs fell by HUF 177 million (-27%) in 2019 mainly due to the
decreased costs resulting from the service contract concluded with the parent company.

The 31% rise in data transmission costs, the 13% rise in electronic mailing costs and the
67% rise in the mass sending of text messages meant that communication costs increased
by HUF 85 million (+26%) in 2019.

Staff costs rose by HUF 464 million in 2019, owing to the 7% increase of salary cosls and the
increase of the connecting social contributions.
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The fall in other employee benefits (HUF -24 million) is owing to the changes in the
conditions of housing loan repayment as benefit in kind.

The rose in social contributions is due to the increasing salaries.

Depreciation in 2019 rose by HUF 620 million compared to the previous year. The increase
is owing mainly to the depreciation of the right-of-use assets (HUF 606 million) recognisad
according to the rules of IFRS 16 standard.

Mandatory deposit insurance did not change compared to the last year,

6.7.11. Income tax

The Bank's current tax payment liability:

2019 e
Current income laxes 1
| Local businass lax 406 -A35
'hnn;lljnn contribulion 62| A1
Current income laxes total 468 497
-E;fnrmd Inmm'omaﬁm ] . ﬂ_
Towl 468 497

The Bank generated a profit before tax in both 2018 and 2019. However, taking the use of
loss carry-forwards from previous years and tax differences related to consumer loan
contracts (FX rescue program) into account, the Bank did not have any corporate tax liability
in either year. The current tax payment liability comprises local taxes and innovation
contribution.

The corporale tax rate in both years was 9%. The calculation of effective lax rate is
presanted below:

2019 2018
 Profit before tax T T 1844
Tax rate ) 9% 9% |
Caleulated corporate income tax -255 166
| Tax impact of modilying iloms N '
Dissllowed items B 254 94
Deductible fems 227 135
Tamporary diflerences dus to transdion to IFRS i a2 62
Laases camad forward from previous years 110 32
Tax reductions = | N
___Tax allowance regarding FX rescue progtam 110 32
| Deterred tax ' | 0 0
Corporate income tax 0 0
Local businass tax, innavation contnbulion -AG8 il
L AoV ooy % AnpRIAS | Al i
Effective Lax rate 16.56% 26,94%
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6.8 Notes to the Statement of Other comprehensive income

1 million HUF was transferred from other comprehensive income to the reporting year profit

or loss because the sale of securities measured at fair value through other comprehensive

income,

31122018
Changes in fair value of debt securities measured at fair value through
Other comprehensive Income
Changes In fair value 28
Reclassification of changes due io credit risk changes to Profit and loss =24
Changes reported In Other comprehensive incoma 4
31.12.2018
Changes in fair value of debt securitios measured at fair value through
Other comprahensive income
Changes in fair value 476
Reclassification of changes due to credit risk changes to Profil and loss 3z
Changes reported in Other comprehensive income 447
31.12.2019
Changes in fair value of loans measured at fair value through
Other comprohensive Income
Changes in fair vaiug -162
Reclassification of changes due lo credit risk changes to Profit and loss 182
Changes reparied in Other comprehensive income ]
3122018 |
Ghanges in fair valup of loans measured at fair value through
 Other comprehensive income
Changes n falr value ABT
Reclassification of changes due fo credit risk changes to Profit and loss -487

L{:mnnu reporied in Other comprehensive Income
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6.9.1, Leases
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The Bank adopted IFRS 16 standard as of 1 January 2019. During transition, the Bank
recognised the cumulative effect of initially applying the standard as an adjustment to the
opening balance of the retained earnings at the date of inilial application in the financial
statements and did not show comparative information.

The Bank, as lessee, rents mainly the buildings of branches, head office, and the vehicle
fleet. These assets appear in the right-of-use assets in the statement of financial positions.
Besides, the Bank rents low value assets, in such cases lease payments are recognized as
an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term. For these deals, leased assets and
lease liabilities are not recognised in the statement of financial positions.

Section 6.8.6 Right of use assets shows the book value of right-of-use assets.

Depreciation charge for right-of-use assets by class of underlying asset:

A 2019
Property = 578
Vehicle ]

| Total 606

——a

Lease liabilities are reported within Other liabilities in the statement of financial positions.

Breakdown of contractual, not discounted amounts of lease liabilities by maturity:

Upto 3 3 months 1o More than §
e monts | "t yoar | 1103ymers | 3108 yuare | MU
vty 204 490 | ETT I o7

Interest expenses on lease liabilities:

Right-of-use assets

~ Proparty

Expenses relating to short-term leases:

019
Undartying assets
Property = 1
Vehicio = =
Othor assets Ll
| Total B2

Total
1645

Lease payments for short-term leases are recognized as an expense on a straight-line basis
over the lease term among Other administrative expenses.
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Expenses relating to leases of low-value assets other than short-term:

2018

Underlying assets 3
Propery
| Vahicle

ujlujl_u =]

e

Total

Lease payments for low-value assets other than short-term, the Bank recognizes as an
expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term among Other administrative expenses.

The Bank did not disregard the expense relating to variable lease payments in the
measurement of lease liabilities.

There was no sublease or leaseback transaction in 2019,

During the reporting period, there were no lease costs recognized in the carrying amount of
another asset.

The total cash outflow of lease deals was HUF 744 million in 2019. Thereof the principal
repayment (HUF 540 million) is reported in cash flow from financial activities. the interest
payment (HUF 119) is reported in cash flow from operating activities in the Cash Flow
Statement. The cash outflow from leases of low-value asset (HUF 3 million) and from short
term leases (HUF 82 million) can be found in cash flow from operating activities.

Lease payments recognized as income:

i = = 2019 2018 |
Rental of building 2 2
Total 2 2

Basically the Bank does not have rental activity. The income above partly come from the
rental of an empty office, partly from the office rental of subsidiaries

6.9.2. Offsetting of financial assets and liabilities

31122018
Gross amount Gross amount of Net amount of
Note of financial offsetting financial financial Cash collateral
=== assots liabilitien assots L=
Dienvabve assets with nettng
| agreement i . & 2
Dervative assels without netting 86 0 86 0
_agreamant =
Gross amount Het amount of
of offsetting o financial | Cash collateral
financial assets liabilithes
Dervalive labilites with netling 101 659 558 800
| agregment
Denvative labilltes without
hetting agreament 0 580 590 0
Total i3 228 1255 800
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e 31.12.2018
Gross amount Gross amount of Net amount of
Mate of financial offsotting finsncial linancial Cash collateral
assets ! assets
Derivative assats with natting ;
agreement 1 106 418 BRG Ba4
Derivatve assots wilhoul ralting
sgreement [ = ’ = :
Gross amount Mot amount of
of offsetting et s financial | Cash collateral
- financial assets labilities
Derivative liabilites with nefting
parintesd #3 222 139 521
Darvative labifites without
netling agresmeant 0 Loy = ¢
Tatal i 1219 732 1418

6.9.3. Transactions with related parties

The Bank considers those entities related parties which have — directly or indirectly —
influence over the Bank, or which are under the influence of the Bank or under joint control

with the Banlk.

Other refated parties mean the companies which are In the same consolidation scope and

are not Owners or Investments.

Key management personnel are also considered related parties — transactions with them are
presented in the next section (6.9.4).

The Bank enters into transactions with related parties on an anm's length basis.

3.12.2019 Ownars investmants “"‘;w"::"" Total
Canh and cash equivalents 4540 0 918 5 456
Receivables from credit institutions G048 0 4 908 11037
Loans and advances o customerns o| -n ] 0
Equity investmaonts 0 164 0 154
I_lunvawg asgols (nominal valus) | 1308 0| o 1308
Other assets 24 ) ol 24|
Liabilites due lo banks 3672 ) 15 614 180 186
Liabiliies due to customers 0 154 0 154
Subordinated habiities i 9313 0| ] 9313
Derivative liabilibes (nominal value) B 727 0 0 B121
| Other iabilties 21 0| o 21
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31.12.2018 Owners Investmonts m:;:‘" Total
Cash and cash agquivalents 24 417 0 Bin 33 588
Receivabies from cradit institutions 7 & 1] 0 7877
Loans and advances to cuslomers 0 o o 0
Equity investmonts 0 167 0 167
Derivative assets (nominal value) 8270 o 0 8270
Other assets ] o 0 i}
Liabilities due o banks 182 ] 270 452
Liabilities due to custamerns 0 142 1056 247
Subordinated fiabilities 9062 o i 8062
Dervative Habilites {nominal value) 12 g6ov 0 a 12 807
Oithar liabilities 50 0 4 54

2019 Ownars Investments m;:ﬁ"'h’f:“ Total
Interast raceivable and similar income 308 0 & a7
| Intarest payable and similar expense -379 0 53 -432
Net provision charge for loan impairment 4] 0 1] o
Mt interest incoma minus risk provisions -7 0 22 -85
Fea and commission income 0 i) 12 12
Fee nnd commisskon expanse -58 i) = | 50
Net fee and commissions income -58 0 1 A7
MNed trading income -5 o ] 564
Nat gain or loss on securties 0 -13 0 -13
Changes in alowances for other nsks 0 [} [+ ]
Other operatng Income 48 1 0 48
Othar pparaling expenses” <314 0 2 36
Resull before tax <B51 =12 -13 086
Income tax 0 0 0 0
Prafit of loss after lax from conlinuing oparations -B61 =12 -13 588
Prafit or loss after tax from discontinued operations 0 0 0 0
Prafil or loss after tax -B61 =12 -13 OB6

“¥IT maintenance costs and licence fees
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2018 Owners Investments nﬂw Total

Inferest recotvabila and aimiar income i i} 18 2258
Interest payable and similar expanse 440 0 5 -346
Net provision charge for foan mpaimerni -5 0 o -5
Net interest income minus rsk provisions 138 0 12 28
Fee and commission mcoma 1] 1] 2 21
Fee and commission expense 35 0 -1 -36
Net fee and commissions income 35 0 20 A8
Net trading income 138 0 o =138
Met gain of loss on Secunliss 1] g 0 A
Changés in allowances for alher risks ] o o o

| Other operating income 125 1 0 126
Othar npuinlhg'mnl_u_n <305 i} -7 X2z
Resull bafors tax 462 8 15 485
Income bax o ] 0 a
Profit or loss after tax from contlinuing operations ~482 -8 15 -85

| Profit o luss after tax from discontinued operations 0 0 0 0
Profit or lass after tax 492 & 15 485

*IT maintenance costs and hoence faes
2019 Owners Investments mrm;.m Total
Guarantess glven 2 259 1] 1410 368688
Provisions 1 1] o -1
la-tmmu_lg_ recavid 10 ﬂ-l:l o o 10843
Other related

i 2018 Owners Invostments parties | Tuhl ]
Guaraniees gven Iam (V] 0 aom
Pravisions _ «1 1] ] -1
Guarantees received 26 553 0 0 26 551

6.9.4. Compensation of key management personnel

The Bank considers the members of the Board of Directors and the Supervisory Board key

management persannel.

H

Compensation of key managemeni personnol

Shart-term employee benefis

Post-employment benafits

Othar long-term employoe banoefis

Tmm_mm

Others

Total

ﬁ'nnnné

Eﬂﬂﬂﬂﬁ
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Loans granted to key management personnel;

31122019 | 31122018
Loans granted o key management personnel
Mortgage loans ] 53
Total LK) 53

In 2019 the Bank realised HUF 1 million interest income on loans to key management

personnel.

6.9.5.

Currency balances

The Bank's assels and liabilities by currency:

31.12.2019
Aszsots EUR usp CHF HUF Othors Total
Cash and cash equivaients 1198 2 409 169 93 121 1558 98 BAG
Spcurities 0 0 o 31016 0 31016 |
Recaivatles from credil insttutions 12121 o ) 1990 0 14 111
Loans and advances to customers B7 423 881 1641] 195692 0| 265637
Plant, propery and equipment 0 0 0 2237 0 2237
Right-of-use assets 0 0 0 3076 0 3078
Intangible assets 0 0 0 5577 0 5577
Equity investments 0 538 1] 23 0 '{g?_
Investment propety 0 0 0 0 0 [
Tax assols 0 1] 1] 25 0 25
Derivative assets 57 19 0 152 0 228
Other assets 4] 18 0 1746 B 1 B3
j";_"q}:;“;’; siaeth and dispoas geaups o K 0 13 0 1
Total assels 80 899 3 863 1800 334 876 1063 42340
31.12.2018
Assets EUR usn CHF HUF Others Total
Cash and cash equivalonts 26 955 B 184 48 27 784 1337 61 808
Securities 0 5628 o| 3825 D] 43884
Recaivables rem credit insttutions B 916 1271 o 824 1 22 455
Loans and advances 19 customers 56 933 1 494 2 0 187 919 (] 228835
' Plant, property and equipment 0 0 0 1408 0 1 408
Right-ol-use asseis o] 1] 0 [t] 1] a
Intangibie essals [v] [t} 0 4 068 a 4 063
Equity imestmants 0 360 1] 245 Q B05
Imnvestment praparty 3] 0 1] 0 [1] L]
Tax assels 0 0 0 12 0 12
Derivative assets 218 78 0 923 0 1219
Other assets 273 0 0 1 566 0 1 869
PeSuTeis s A disposs groups 0 0 0 12 0 13
Total assots 91 208 26 455 2337 | 242649 1338 385077
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31.12.2010
Liabiiitios EUR USD CHE HUF Others Total
Liabilties due Lo banks 26 578 148 0 26 570 0 52 67
Liabilhes due 1o custamars 55 811 54 801 1183 178128 1045| 302008
“D_aymmmmm 1310 | ] 1} o 0 1310
Subordinaled labiities 9313 0 0 0 0 8313
Provigions 2m e} 0 1031 ] 1232
Tax labliies _ 0 0 0 21 0 21
Derivative kabllites 2683 369 0 577 & 1755
Other libilties 3661 145 0 4 506 234 B 636
mmhhﬁﬁm and dispesal groups 0 8 0 o o 4
Total liabilities B 106 257 55 574 1163 213z 2185 376 502
_ 31.12.2018

Liabilities EUR usp CHF HUF Others Total
Liabilities due (o bunks 7975 423 0| 28830 1 34938
Liabilities due fo cuslomers 53 880 A6 143 I D3s 162 B39 1 454 266 481
el secunlmes 0 Esus 4177 a 0 i} i RV
Subordinated llabilites o062 | 0 0 0 0 9 062
Provisions 188 0 0 563 ] 740

Tax liabilities Y I I ) 36 0] 3%
Derivative liabllibes 24| [} 2 510 0 732
Other liablities 1463 688 1 4121 15 6 288
“..:"u;;‘,“::‘_;“"”“ sing mj’“‘l“ 0 0 of o 0 0
Total liabilities 77 057 A7 260 1038 194608 1480 321483

6.9.6. Fair value hierarchy

Financial assets and financial liabilities by measurement category:

] o 31.12.2019 ]
At fair value
Atfaicvalue | yeo00h other Al | Total book
i
_ _ “"’:‘1“‘3"';““ :umrflhmhu amortsed | “value | Falf "“'“'h
Cash and cash equivalants ] 0| 9Bade| 9BBAE| 98846
Secunties 0 27 252 a764|  31018] 3108
Recenables from credil institutions i 0 o t1am 14111 13812
Loans and advances 1o customers ] 19 147 52| 246438| 285637| 267 111
Equity investrmsnts 536 7 154 TB7 1687
Derivative assels 228 0 0 228 228
Other financial assels 0 0 1812 1812 1812
Total financial assets 19 911 a7381| 365125 412417 413627
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31.12.2018
Bk ook et Al | Tomibook | Lo
d ama alr e
":"3 ; ::ﬂ mlnﬂmm ve:| T Ot value | TNV
Cash and cash eguivalents 0 0 61 BOA 61808 61 808
Securities 10 641 32234 1009 43 884 43939
Recaivablas from credil instdutions 1] 1] 22 455 22 455 21 475
Loans and advances fo cusiomarns 0 127 228 508 226 B35 228635
Equily Investmants 351 77 167 805| 605
Defvative assals 1219 1] 1] 1218 1218
Other financial assets 0 0 1787 1787 1787
Total financial assets 12 221 32438| 315734 360393 | 359 468 |
31.12.2019
At fair value t::n'gh':i:r At Total book
h profit ;
IO | copri | i | e | e
Linbilities dus to banks 0 0| s2607 52 687 52 667
Linbilities due to customers 0 0| 302038 302038| 302025
Debt securlties n ssue o o 1310 1310 1208
Subordinaled habities 0 o] 9313 9313 5310 |
Denvative liabiities 1255 0 0 1255 1258
Other financial liabilities 0 0 7892 7 892 7 892
Total financial liabilities 1285 0| 373260 374s08| 374447
31.12.2018
Attaicvaipe | AL vaiue At
through profit | SNFOUsh othar | o iieay | TORIDOOK | cair value
2t ol r.nmiamhunlw Aokt value
Liabifities due to banks 0 0| 3453 34 938 34 845
Liabilities due 1o customers. i 0| 265461 265 461 265 461
Dbt securitios in Bsus 1} 0 4177 LR Fi 4 388
Subardinated liabilities 0 0 9062 8 062 9223
Derivative liabilities 732 0 0 732 732
Other financial liabiltiss 0 0 5610 5619 5619
Total financial liabilities: 732 0| 319257 3190989 | 320268
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Fair value hierarchy of financial assets and financial liabilities measured at fair value:

31.12.2018
Note | Lovelt | Levol2 | Lavel | YO Tair Cost
Securilies 662 | :_j.-‘_gg - K ‘_LE"'" e
Al fair value through profit and loss. 0 0 0 0 [
AL fair value through othes comprebensive income 27 252 o 0 27282 27 045
Loans and advances 1o customers 664 . . N .
Al fair value through profit and loss 0 0| 15147 15 147 18636
Al fuir valus through olher comprahensive income a a 52 82 52
Equily investmants TR [T I —— —— —— ==
At falr value through profit and loss o o 538 536 2
At falr value through other comprehansive incoma i o i d i s T
Derivative pssots 0810 [T o s e [
At faiir value through profit snd loss o 228 0 228 0
Flmlulmnt!mmumdﬂhlrmni 27 252 28 19 812 47 292 46 031
L M.42.2018
Note | Level1 | Level2 | Level3 T“:E’ Cost
Derivative obligations 6610 | e e B | e
Al fair value through profit and loss a 1285 0 1255 0
Financial obligations measurod at fair valus 0 1 256 1] 1 265 0
3M.12.2018
Noto | Lovel1 | Level2 | Level3 | TOU! fair Cost
Securifies 662 | )= ==
Al fair value through profit and oss 10641 o 0 10641 11 887
At falr valus through other comprehensive income 32 234 ] 0 32 294 327709
| Loans and adviinces to customerns BG4 e |
Al fair value (heough other comprahensive incame o 0 127 127 127
Equity invesiments 86.7 | = i
At fair vaiue through profit and ioss 0| 0 361 381 211
At fair valus through other comprebensiva income o 0 77 T 77
Dearivalive assots ) 6610
A fair vakie through profit and loss 0 1219 0 1218 o0
Financial assets measured at fair value 42875 1219 ] 5685 44 659 45101
31122018
Noto | Lovel1 | Levei2 | Levar | TOmIfIr [ o
| Derivative Kabilites 6810 =R e e =
At fair value through proft and loss 0 ™ 0 732 0]
Financial liabilitles measuned at fair value 1] Ti2 0 732 0
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Fair value hierarchy of financial assets and financial liabilities not measured at fair value:

31,12.2018
Note | Levelt | Lovelz | Leveld | "o AIF | gooy value
Gash and cash eguivalents 661 142304 | A4 452 0 08 B45 0 B4E
Securtues 662 Sl e

At smonised cast o 0 a7ag 3798 3 764
Receivables from credd institutions 6.6.3 0 5@15 7837 13812 14111
Loans and advances lo customers 664 [l L ol e e e

At amorlised cost 0 0| 247912 247 912 246 438
Equity investments 68 ] | .

At amorised cost 0 0 154 154 154
Other financial assats BB 0 0 1812 1812 1812
Financial assels measured at amortised cost 14304 | ©0287 | 261674 366 335 365 125

31.12.201%
Note | Level1 | Lovel2 | Level3 | "%4 % | Book value
Liabilites due to banks 6613 0 4385 AB282 52687| 62697
Linbilities due o customarns G614 L] 0| 302025 302 025 302 038
Debt securities n ssue E.f_.]ﬁ 0 0 1288 12868 130
Subordinated liabiities 6.6.16 0 0 9310 8310 2313
Other financial liabilitles 6618 0 ] T Ba2 7 89z 7 842
Financial llabilities measured at amortised cost 0 4 385 | 368 807 373 192 373 250
31.12.2018
Note | Level1 | Leveiz | Loveld | "o IF | gogk vaie
Cash and cash equivaients 861 227 21382 17 682 61 808 61 808
Securities 862 |

Al amoised cost 1064 0 ] 1064 1009
Recalivables from credil institutions 6,63 0 0| 21475 21475 22 455
Loans and advances o CUSHOMaNS 664 [ il .

At amortised cost 0 0| 2320m 232 071 228 508
Equity investments 6.6.8

At smorised coet 0 0 167 167 | 1687
Oither financial assels BB.11 0 0 1787 1787 1787
Financial assots measured al amortised cost 23 Ta8 21392 | 273182 18 372 M5734

31,12,2018

Noto | Level | Lovel2 | Leveta | T9% I | gook valuo
Liabilities due to banks 6613 0 530| 34306 34845 3 938
Liabilities due to customers 5614 0 0| 265481 265 461 285 461
Debt securites in ssue B.4.15 0 0 4388 4386 FETE
Subordmated llabillties 6.6.18 0 (i o223 0223 9 062
Other financial liabiliies B.6.18 ] i 5619 5819 5610
Financial liabllitios measured at amortised cost [ 539 | 318997 419 536 319 267

There were not changes in the fair value hierarchy, there were not transfers between the

lavels either in 2018 or in 2019,
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6.9.7. Fair value option

Under IFRS 9 an entity may, at initial recognition, irrevocably designate a financial asset as
measured at fair value through profit or loss if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces a
measurement or recognition inconsistency that would otherwise arise from measuring assets
or liabilities on different bases. The application of the fair value option shall result in the
financial statements providing reliable and more relevant information about the effects of
transactions on the entity's financial position, financial performance and cash flows. The fair
value option may be applied for example when an entity has financial assets that share a
risk, such as interest rate risk, and that gives rise to opposite changes in fair value that tend
to offset each other. In such cases the entity may measure the asset that otherwise is
measured at amortised cost at fair value.

The Bank chose to apply the fair value option to hedge for disclosure of Hungarian treasury
bond portfolio (amounts to 10 billlon HUF at face value) whose interest rate risk is hedged by
interest rate swap transactions concluded in the frame of HIRS (MNB Market-Based Lending
Scheme).

The purchased government bond was classified in the available-for-sale category since the
Bank intends to hold it in the long term, so without applying the fair value option the
recognition of the HIRS transaction and the transactions hedging its interest risk would have
been inconsistent, The fact the Bank had the government bond designated at fair value
meant the fair value changes of the transactions were universally recognised in profit or loss,
thus providing a reliable and more relevant view of the aggregate impact of the transactions.

The IRS and government bond market move closely in tandem with one another, as verified,
statistically, by the high coefficient of determination (R”) calculated for the time series:

R 2019 2018
IRSSY - GovaY g
|RE10Y - GoviDY | 6%

This deal expired in 2019.

6.9.8. Government grants

In connection with its HIRS and preferential deposit transactions conciuded with MNB the
Bank accounted for the following amounts as government grants:

— - = G;'u'mmnnt grant
Amount © Nature
2019 e | 2019 28
HIRS deals 257 246 interestrate subskly | interest rate subsidy
Pratarental deposis 105 11| interest rale subsidy intaresi rale subsidy
ot _ 2| |

In the case of HIRS transactions the interest payable on the transaction is lower than the
market interest, while for preferential deposits the interest received is higher than the market
interest.
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In accordance with IAS 20, in both cases the Bank recognises the government grant only if
there is reasonable assurance that the conditions attaching to the grant will be fulfilled and
the Bank will receive the grant. Accordingly, there are no unfulfilled items or other contingent
liabilities connected to the grants that have been accounted for.

6.9.9. Day-one profit or loss

The Bank measures financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value on initial recognition.
if the fair value at initial recognition differs from the transaction price, the difference is
accounted for depending on the level of the transaction within the fair value hierarchy:

- if the fair value is evidenced by a quoted price in an active market for an identical asset
or liability (Level 1 input) or based on a valuation technique that uses only data from
observable markets (Level 2 input). The Bank recognises the difference between the fair
value at initial recognition and the transaction price as a gain or loss;

- in all other cases the fair value at initial recognition shall be adjusted by the deferred
amount of the difference between the fair value and the transaction price. After initial
recognition, the Bank shall recognise the deferred difference as a gain of loss only to the
extent that it arises from a change in a factor that market participants would take into
account when pricing the asset or liability.

In the case of the monetary policy HUF interest rate swaps (MIRS) with the MNB, the Bank
immediately recognises the gain from the preferential interest in profit or loss as the day-one
gain or loss impact. In 2018 this amounted to HUF 1,38 billion, in 2019 the Bank did not have
such deal, where day-one gain or loss impact should have been recognized.

In the case of the FGS funds drawn from the MNB and the FGS loans disbursed using these
funds, the initial fair value difference is accrued because the Bank does not calculate the fair
value using Level 1 or Level 2 inputs. The following tables show the accrued amounts not yet
recognised in profit or loss:

. ] mazame | 3422018 |
Initial fair valuo difference of FGS loans -807 1143
Initial fair value gifference of FGS funds 1043 1215
Total 13| 72

Changes to initial fair value difference of FGS loans:

FGS loans 2018 2018
Opaning balance . 1143 1 540
Iritiat Fair value differance of new. loans i ;51 5
m::luunn of initial lair value differance of 104 212
" Disposal of ihe remaining Initial fair value - 129 11
__ difference of sold, matured or repaid loans | : =
Ciosing balance N -907 1143
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Changes to initial fair value difference of FGS funds:

[FGS funds 2019 2018

Opaning bymu B 1215 | 828
Inilial fair yalue difference of new loans 148 | 8
mulhn ol Infial fair valees difference of 200 303

__ difference of soid, malured or repaid loans

Clasing balance 1043 1186

6.9.10. Modification gain or loss

The Bank's recognised gain or loss neither from the significant nor from the not significant
contract modifications exceeded HUF 1 million in 2019. (In 2018 both were HUF -2 million.)

6.9.11. Fees to the auditor

L . 2019 2018
Audit of the annual inancial statements - " 88| @8
Other audit foes a 23
Taix advisory sarvices 14 3
| Other, non-sudit fees 0 8
Total L 120
6.9.12. Collaterals received
Al full value:
= | 31.12.2018 | 31422018
Collaterals rmcelved at Tull value
Cash collatsrals 12 160 11 025
Bank guarantees "Nz 12005
State gusrantees 72 DBA 48720 |
Securliies 1 BEA 653
Assigned sales evenue a 0
Assigned receivablos 614 BE7
Maitgago 154 659 148 031
Total 252 491 221171
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i 31.12.2018 [ 31122008
Collaterals received up to the gross contractual receivable value
~ Cash collatesals ) 11070 10 157
Bank guaraniges 9699 8 me5
Stale guarantees 68 579 46 083
 Securities 1 801 587
Assigned sales revenue o 0
 Assigned receivables 337 | ~ an
Mortgage 88 323 88 828
Total 179 809 155 792
6.9.13. Financial assets pledged as collateral
31,12.2019 31122018
Cash and cash equivalants 0 0
Securities 14 472 12 890
| Receivables from credit institutions 2787 1621
Loans and advances to customers 16 884 17 070 |
Other financial assets I 0 0
| Total i 34143 | 31 581 |

Under financial assets used as collateral, the Bank recognises collaterals placed at other
banks to cover losses from derivative transactions as well as securities and SME loans used
to cover FGS refinancing sources.

The Bank retained all the risks and rewards related to ownership of the financial assets used
as collateral, so these assets remain part of the Bank's balance sheet.

6.9.14. Subsequent events after the reporting date

In the first quarier of 2020 corenavirus has appeared also in Hungary. The epldemic has

significant turbulence in the real economy (production chains have been temporanly

discontinued, production plants were closed, etc.) that also affected financial markets
including Hungary. In order to moderate the unfolding recession, Hungarian Government and

Hungarian National Bank have launched several measures that also affect Bank's processes

and its risk management principles:

- Regarding loan contracts concluded prior 18.March 2020, capital and interest payment
obligation was suspended until 31 December 2020 in case of private persons and
companies on a general basis. The moratorium does not mean that payment obligation
is released, but it means delay thereof to a later date. The capital bears interest during
moratorium, but the interest is not capitalised. First estimates of the Banks show that the
lost interest income will amount approximately to HUF 300 million,

- Short-term entrepreneurial loans are prolonged until 30 July 2020

- The weighting of funds over a year is differentiated as per maturity when calculating
foreign exchange funding adequacy ratio (hereinafter referred to as Hungarian
abbreviation: DMM)
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- Maximum level of foreign exchange coverage ratio (hereinafter referred to as Hungarian
abbreviation: DEM) has shrinked from 15% to 10%, hereby limiting the FX difference
within balance sheet.

- Members of the monetary policy may offer performing corporate loans as collateral
regardless of the maturity and denomination of the loans when performing activity via
Central Bank. MNB applies a unified 30% haircut for accepted loans.

MNB launches long term collateralised loan (maturity: 3, & and 12 months respectively 3
and 5 years) with fixed interest rate with unlimited frame amount, and by suspending the
sanction on shortfall it released banks from fulfilling the minimum reserve requirements.
The Monetary Council has decided to make the interest rate corridor symmetric. The
base rale remained unchanged at 0,9%, as well as O/N deposit rate remained
unchanged at -0,05%, meanwhile O/N and one-week collateralised lending rate was
increased to 1,85%.

- In order to ensure stable liquidity position to government bond market, MNB has
launched its government security purchase program on the secondary market and
relaunches its mortgage bond purchase program to Increase long-term funding of the
banking system

- As of 20 April 2020 MNB launches a new Funding of Growth Scheme called ‘Hajra’ to
support SME lending in the frame amount of HUF 1000 billion. The increased liquidity
will be drawn from money markets within 13 months with 4% preferential deposit.

Considering the fact that coronavirus has appeared in Hungary and Europe in 2020, and
epidemic as well as measures to mitigate the effect of expected recession were taken after
the end of the reporting period. the Bank does not adjust 2019 data presented in the financial
statements.

Epidemic, expected recession as well as related measures will however have a significant
effect on profitability of the Bank within the upcoming years Assessment of the effects of
introduced measures — considering the fact that detailed regulations are not available yet and
possible further measures are not known yet - is in progress. Some measurements ceteris
paribus temporarily worsen liquidity position (e.g. repayment moratorium), while other
measurements improve the liquidity position (long-term unlimited collateralised loan lending
to banks, release of minimum reserve requirements). There is uncertainty about the
performance of the economy that goes hand in hand with uncertainty regarding quality of
loan portfolio. According to reasonable assumptions, a considerable economic fallback is
expected, as a result thereof new disbursements will decrease significantly. Furthermore
quality of the currently performing portfolio will prabably worsen too.

The recession caused by coronavirus is expected to last until end of 2020 or first quarter of
2021 that can be followed by an economic growth again. It means that the Bank has to cope
and calculate with a rapid crisis situation.

The Bank did not experience any liquidity difficulties and does not expect that the cumulative
effect of the announced measures would significantly worsen its liquidity position. Risk costs
are expected to rise in 2020 in a smaller and in the beginning of 2021 in a bigger extent.

Based on currently available assumptions the Bank has made calculations for the 12 months
following balance sheet date and it came to the conclusion that viability, liquidity and capital
position is not endangered

6.9.15. Dividends paid

The Bank did not pay dividend to the shareholders either in 2018 or 2019.
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6.9.16. Equity correlation table

Equity correlation table required by Section 114/B (1) of the Act on Accounting:

MHA2.2018
Components of equity as per the Act on Accounting
Share | Subscribed Profit ar
iy it Retalned Valuation | Allocated
capital as | bul unpaid Gop : loss after : Total
per IFRS | capial () regarve | eamings i esenve reseve
Share capltal 3727 3727
Capital resaive b4 a6 04 4106
Retained earmings -54 051 2125 51 G926
Othar reserves 421 421
Hmnhmmn'mmﬁml of
available-for-sale
financial assals, nat of 261 26
tax
Equity as per the Act
on Accounting arer o 84 416 -64 051 2125 261 421 46 899
MA22018
Componants of equity as per the Act on Accounting
i m Captal | Retained | PO | vauation | Alocated | o
per IFRS capital (-) fEserve | Eamings tax BSRIVE esarye
Share capltal ara arey
Capital resava a4 416 e 1G5
Retained pamings -56368 1347 =54 051
Dlhar feseres 185 185
Revaluation resemnve of
availatile-for-sale
f ol el [i] o0 ] 287 267
m —
Equity as per the Act &
on Accounting 3rar 0| 84415 56 398 1347 257 186 44 534
Reconciliation of capital registered by the Court of Registration and the share capital as per
IFRS:
322018 31122018
Capital registered by the Court of Regstration 3727 3
|nstruments recognised as abilities (-) o [i]
[ Share capital as per IFRS 3727 3727
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Calculation of free retained eamings available for dividend payment

31,12.2019 322018

Rataingd pamings: - 51 826 54 051
Accumulaled unrealaed gain accounted for due (o 9 h o
incieise In the fair vakue of investmont propertsaes (<)

misfated amoount of refaled income {ax sccounted 0 0
for hased on IAS 12 Incom tmxes(+)
Adjusted retained eamings _ <51 926 -54 051
Free retained eamings availabie for dividend o o

| payment —_——— =

6.9.17. Realised profit from sale of loans

As in the previous years, the Bank continued to sale the non-performing loans also in 2019

The realised profil from sale of loans is reported in Other operating income in the Income
statement,

The following table shows the realised profit from sale of loans in 2019 broken down by
measurement type of the sold loans:

Loans measu
ekt oy mexsanihspacd Total
comprehensive income
Incommae . 8010 i7 6 047
Book value of sokl loans 3418 26 2444
Direct costs relating to the sale -185
| Realised profit from salo 2692 51 2468

In 2019, above its traditional quantity of sale, the Bank sold a pool of loans with a
considerably higher volume of loans in it, including a substantial part of the non-performing
private morigage loans of the Bank. During the sale, approximately 800 non-performing
loans were transferred. As substantially all the risks and rewards of the loans were
transferred in the deal, the loans were derecognised from the Bank's books in their entirety.

The realised profit from the sale of this above mentioned deal’

Loans measu fair
Louns isssmured ot | 0L G rough o Tota
— ...} EOMprehensive income | —
Inoome - 5233 76| 5308
| Book valuw of sok loans -3 147 28 -3173
Diract costs relaling to the sale ! 188
Realised profit from sale 2088 50 1951

Under the transfer agreement the buyer may require the Bank to repurchase certain loans.
This repurchase liability may only arise where subsequently is found that from a legal point of
view the receivable in question had no existence at the date of transfer (e.g. the Bank has
not become aware on time that the debtor died before the transfer) and shall not exceed 10%
of the purchase price, The Bank allocated HUF 707 million provision for this repurchase
liability at the end of 2019
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6.9.18. Maturity of financial liabilities

Breakdown of contractual, not discounted amounts of financial liabilities by maturity:

M.az2ae
Upto1 1103 | 3months | Ttod [Morothan | L ..
month months | to 1 year yeiars 3 years
Liabilties due to banks 1084 4144 10 256 27 565 11231 b4 280
Liabilities due 1o cuslomens 240 TEY 20 625 31 609 148 51 an2 218
Debt sacurities in issue 0 366 1 047 o [ 1413
Subordinated liabilties 50 [ 210 576 10377 1213
Other financial liabilities 3648 52 1041 1182 833 & B26
Total 245 569 34 187 44 163 29439 22 592 375 860
= 31.12.2018
Up to 1 1103 3 months 103 Maore than Total
maonths | o 1 year yours 1 yoars
Linbilfies dues to banks 558 886 3870 18 416 12875 36 705
Ligbilites due to customers 215 566 14 Eﬁﬂl 27 565 azi 27 265 64T
Debt securties n issue 0 a 2 Bag 1 408 0 i 207
Ei._ihwd.lna‘hd liabilites. 6 1] 228 B4 10245 11183
Oither financial labilites 5695 1] (1] 0 L'!" 5635
Total 221 695 15 144 34 652 26 699 23147 | 323537
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6.10 Information related to capital management

Determining the bank’s optimal capital level and its continuous monitoring is a basic
processftask for every bank

The level of capital is primarily determined by the Bank's risk appetite. Since high risks entail
higher losses, it is crucial for the Bank to carefully take into account both the expected and
unexpecled losses relaled to its various business activities. The economic capital determines
the required level of capital related to the actual risk profile while the level of the regulatory
capital represents a mandatory minimum level below which the Bank may not go even when
based on its own measurements its risk exposure would justify a lower level. The Bank's
capital management covers both the Pillar 1 and the Pillar 2 view. The fundamental goal of
capital management is to:

- ensure the optimal level of capital for the Bank,

- ensure the capital requirement necessary for the Bank's operation,

- facilitate compliance with European and national regulations.

Regulation (EU) No 575/2013 (CRR), Act CCXXXVIl of 2013 on Credit Institutions and
Financial Enterprises (Hpt.) and Directive 2013/36/EU define uniform rules for the supervised
institutions with respect to capital requirements. The Bank calculates its regulatory capital
based on these rules with a monthly frequency and sends a quarterly report thereof to the
Supervisory Authority (COREP, FINREP),

The Bank's ALM department regularly monitors capital adequacy (P1 and P2) and prepares
a report for the ALCO and the parent bank at least monthly and also for the Supervisory
Board quarterly. Based on its forecasts, whenever justified, it takes the necessary measures
to ensure capital adequacy at all times, in line with its recovery plan.

During its planning process, the Bank regularly monitors regulatory changes and updates
and calculates the required level of capital account taken of these changes,

The major business risks of the Bank are credit risk, liquidity risk, market risk (including
interest and foreign exchange risk) and operational risk.

The following chart displays the structure of the Bank's potential capital requirement and
capital recommendation.
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B Cagsi sl i anderyatiin Seibdy 0L
I Syrbernic Wil Bty | 5]
S IH DV il

The Bank's capital level always complied with the regulatory requirements, the shareholders
ensured the required level of capital. No dividend was paid, the profit increases the level of
CET1 capital.

16



stand-alone Financial Slatements 31, December 2019

Sberbank Hungary Lid.

data in HUF million

The Bank's regulatory capital:
31.12.2019 31.12.2018
Regulatory capital 47 998 40 420
Tier1 capital 28 898 40 418
Commen Equity Tier 1 capital (CET1) a8 8e8 37 502
Additional Tier 1 capital (AT1) 0 2 916 |
| Supplementary capital (Tier 2) 9100 9 002
Development of capital requirement:
31.12.2019 31.12.2018
Total Risk Exposure amount (RWA) 224 609 223 290
CET1 capital adequacy ralio 17,31% 16,80%
Tier 1 capital adequacy ratio 17,31% 18,10%
Capital adequacy ratio 21,36% 22,13%
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6.11 Risk management policies

6.11.1 Liquidity risk

Liquicity risk is the risk of the institution not being able to comply with its obligations
stemming from the expected and unexpected current and future cash flows and collaterals
without impacting its daily operation or its market position. These may include, among others:

- Short-term liquidity risk is the risk of the Bank not being able to meet all of its payment
obligations or not being able to meet its payment obligations on time. Short-term liquidity
risk refers to a time horizon of 30-90 business days.

- Long-term liquidity risk is the nisk of additional refinancing funds being accessible only at
a higher market interest rate. Long-term liquidity risk refers lo a time horizon of at least 1
year.

- Concentration liquidity risk occurs when the Bank's exposure to a single depositor, a
single deposit instrument, a single market segment or a single currency is extremely high
primarily on the liability side. However, the concentration of an on-balance sheet or off-
balance-sheet instrument which may significantly alter the level of expected cash flow
may also cause concentration liquidity risk.

The Bank measures the liquidity risks using processes and various indicators and limits (e.g,
LCR, NSFR, DMM, L/D, concentration indicators, Liquidity-at-Risk) in line with the
international and Hungarian regulatory frameworks and the guidelines of the parent bank and
manages these liquidity risks by maintaining a conservative liquidity buffer.

Section 412 (1) of Regulation (EU) 575/2013 of the European Council (CRR) prescribes a
general liquidity coverage requirement for credit institutions, creating at the same time the
LCR indicator, according to this requirement “institutions shall hold liquid assets, the sum of
the values of which covers the liquidity outflows less the liquidity inflows under stressed
conditions”. This regulation is supplemented and made more specific by Cemmission
Delegated Regulation (EU) 2015/61.

The LCR is defined as the ratio of the credit institution's liquidity buffer containing liquid
assels lo its net liquidity outflows during a 30-day stress period. The net liquidity outflow is
the credit institution's liquidity outflows less its liquidity inflows.

The liquidity coverage ratio musl be expressed as a percentage value and the regulator
determined its minimum level to be 100%: this means that the credil institution has sufficient
liguid assets to cover its net liquidity outflows during a 30-day stress period,

In light of this the Bank pays special attention lo the LCR indicator, to its reliable calculation.
The Bank determined a minimum 130% internal limit, stricter than the regulator's, and
manages its liquidity based on this indicator
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P e | [ Total weighted amount (average)
- ) e 2019.03.31 | 2019.06.30 | 2019.09.30 | 2019.12.31
Number of observalion periods taking into | 3 3 | x
| account in average calculation (months} | s, [ R, =4
 Liguidity buffer = 41915 38 690 43821 73 530
Net liquidity outfiow 26 618 23 862 26 348 54 235
Liquidity coverage ratio (%) I 15747%|  16214% | 189 00% 135.58%

The internal liquidity stress test is an integral part of the liquidity risk management limit
system, during which the Bank quantifies the impacts of predefined scenarios (idiosyncratic,
market-wide, combined). It is a requirement of the parent bank that the Bank meets the
minimum 1 month limit in terms of the stress survival herizon. In the course of 2019 the Bank
complied with this requirement.

The Asset Liability Committee (ALCO) - of which the Board of Directors is also a member - is
the organizational unit responsible for the strategic management of liquidity risks. The ALCO
is informed at least monthly about the Bank’s liquidity position and the utilization of the limits.
Asset-Liability Management (ALM) is responsible for tactical management within the
approved guidelines, responsibilities and limits.

6.11.2 Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the actual asset value of the Bank's on-balance sheet and off-
balance sheet positions changes as a result of the change in market prices (interest rates,
equity prices, foreign exchange rates or commeodity prices etc.) due to which the Bank's profit
and capital may decrease.

The Bank measures and limits its exposure to market risk using various methods depending
on whether the given exposure qualifies as a trading or as a banking book exposure.

Market risk — trading book

Based on criteria defined by the CRR, the Bank classifies as positions held with trading intent
the positions intended to be resold short term, or positions intended to benefit from expected
differences between buying and selling prices. The Bank performs the valuation of trading
book positions at fair value at least daily.

Compared to its size the Bank's trading activity is not significant; it typically holds such
positions in connection with client mandates (market execution) where clients want lo hedge
their risks stemming from their own operation.

Sberbank Group applies several methods for measuring and managing market risks, in line
with the international risk management standards and regulatory recommendations.

On the basis of the risk appetite, the parent bank defines every year the maximum level of
risk that the Bank can assume and defines, among other things, the open currency position
(OCP), the value at risk (VaR), the interest rate sensitivity (BPV), and the maximum loss
(Stop Loss) limits.

Money Markets Trading and ALM areas are in charge of the operative management of
market risks. In order to avoid conflict of interest ("Segregation of Duties”), risk exposures are
monitored daily by an independent organizational unit, i.e. the Market Risk Management unit,
operating independently from the business areas assuming the risk and even from the Board
of Directors.
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The Bank's management (Board of Directors, ALCO) receives at least monthly information
about the risk exposures, while the Supervisory Board receives reports quarterly,

Equity price risk
The Bank does not assume any commodity and equity risks in its trading book,

Foreign exchange risk

The primary foreign exchange risk stems from the different structure of the Bank's assets
and liabilities (both on- and off-balance sheet). As a result of the changes in foreign
exchange rates the Bank may realise gains or incur losses recognized directly in profit or
loss. '

The Bank manages Its foreign currency positions in the trading book, it holds no strategic
open positions in the banking book. Assuming non-linear risks is not part of the strategy and
so, for example, the Bank typically hedges its option positions back-to-back.

Market risk — banking book

The interest rate risk in the banking book represents the possibllity that the income stemming
from the positions in the banking book andfor the net present value of the positions change
unfavourably due to the change in market interest rates.

Every on- and off-balance sheet position that does not belong to the trading book is to be
considered a banking book position; that is, typically loan and deposit portfolios, the non-
trading securities portfolio and interbank transactions, invesiments, other receivables and
liabilities and nen-trading derivative transactions, etc.

The Bank considers the so-called re-pricing risk as the primary interest rate risk, which is the
risk stemming from the timing difference of the re-pricing structure of receivables and
liabilities and off-balance sheet items. Measurements cover the yield curve risk which is the
risk stemming from the changes in the shape and the slope of the yield curve.

When guantifying the extent of the risk, the Bank applies the generally accepted risk
measurement approaches in line with regulatory recommendations and quantifies both the
short term (income related) and longer-term impacts (appearing in the change of the
economic value of the capital).

Risk exposures are presented separately for the relevant currencies featured in the balance
sheel. Both the net interest income and the value of the economic capital are analysed
based on the re-pricing table and quantification of Lthe re-pricing gaps.

When quantifying interest rate risk, the Bank uses different scenarios representing various
interest rate changes, From among these, we assume a +/-200 basis points, prompt, parallel
yield curve shock as the basic stress scenario. In order to analyse interest rate sensitivity in
more detall the Bank also analyses the impact of additional scenarios based on the guidance
of EBA, which simulate the different changes in the slope and the shape of the yield curve.

The Bank applies limits in line with its risk appetite. The ALCO defines the limit
proportionately to CET1 capital (maximum 13%) for the change in the value of the economic
capital; and proportionately to the annual budgeted net interest income for net interest
income change.

The Asset Liability Committee (ALCO) - of which the whale Board of Directors is also a
member - is the organizational unit responsible for the strategic management of interest rate
risks. Asset-Liability Management (ALM) is responsible for tactical management within the
approved guidelines, responsibilities and limits.
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The Bank primarily manages its interest rate risks through the harmanization of the pricing
parameters of its assets and liabilities (re-pricing period, maturity, interest base) or with the
help of derivative hedging transactions (IRS, CIRS).

The Bank distributes the risks (including interest rate and liquidity risks) among the various
business lines with the help of a market-based internal transfer pricing system and so the
profitability of the various profit centres is defined account taken of the risk they assumed.

Composition of assets and equity and liabilities by currency

Open positions as at 31 December 2019:

a Net positions in the balance sheet Tatal net positions
Mat open long positions 1070 £45
Net open short positions 75 940 508
Net positions . o 74870 a 61

Open positions as at 31 December 2018:

Net positions in the balance sheet Total net positions
Net open ba;g pmn-s S 18394 | 1 Da4
Met open shon posilions -2-1 354 i -IDIT
Mol positions | -3 DUEI_ BSEJ

Value at Risk (VaR)

The Bank also applies risk-sensitive indicators to measure foreign exchange risks. The
regulatory VaR model is a particularly important methodalogy, a so-called historical variance-
covariance model that assumes the normal distribution of yields with an expected value of
Zaro.

The model results show the expected loss, assuming a 10-day holding period and taking
account of the price fluctuations in the past 250 days at a 99% confidence level.

The regulatory capital requirement under Pillar 1 is calculated based on the standardised
approach defined by the CRR, while the Bank uses the modified, more conservative version
of the above methodology to calculate the regulatory capital requirement under Pillar 2,
where the variance-covariance matrix is derived from a stressed period instead of the past
250 days.

Results of the FX VaR:
HUF il
MAz2019 31.12.2018
60 day average of FX Var o . 18
l-ED day average of FX Stress Var | 122 [ - —BSI
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Interest sensitivity

We measure the interest sensitivity of rading book positions with the so-called BPV — Basis
Point Value sensitivity, which shows the impact on profit or loss of a 1-bp shift in yields. We
calculate both the net and gross exposure; in the latter case, we obviously disregard the
mutual neutralisation effect of the long-term and short-term positions.

Compared to ils size the Bank's trading activity is not significant; it typically holds such
positions in connection with client mandates. Accordingly, the portfolio’s interest sensitivity
overall is very low,

Interest sensitivity of the trading book:

HUF mitlion

31.12.2010 n122008 |

Total BPV gross R 506
| Totsl BPV et ~N 06 0,58

In the case of the EVE model used to measure the interest risks of the banking book, the
yield curve shocks are immediate and have lasting impacts that are immediately priced with
the net present value approach. The model is hypothetical since the general interest
positions (for example loans, deposits, interbank transactions) are recognised in the books at
cost, so re-pricing has no direct impact on either capital or the income statement.

The Interest risk sensitivity of the banking book remained within both the regulatory limit and
the more stringent internal limit.

The results of the basic stress scenario according to the EVE model;

] 31.12.2010 31.12.2018
impact of 200 bp paraliel shift (HUF milfion) 1445 2nz
I peroentage of CET 3.71% ﬁ_ﬁﬁ;

The NIl model is an income-based approach. The model shows to what extent the Bank's net
interest income/expense would change due to re-pricing during a one-year period, assuming
an unchanged balance sheet structure, in the case of an immediate, 200-bp parallel yield
curve shock.

Results of the basic stress scenario according to the NIl model;

HUF mitlicin
Maz208 VA2 2018
HUF 197 61|
EUR 190 104
CHF T E
usp 203 29
Yot N | sor|  ja0
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The changes in fair value of Baby loans — after eliminating the effect of changes in volume —
depend in particular on changes in the shape and position of the yield curve used for
calculating discounted cash flows as future values of reference interest rates in the
calculation model derives also from the same yield curve by forward/forward calculation. The
Bank determined the interest sensitivity of Baby loans by parallel shifting the discount yield
curve applied at year-end by +10 and -10 basis points:

changes in fair value when shifted by +10 basis points: HUF -45 million

changes in fair value when shifted by -10 basis points: HUF +44 million

6.11.3 Credit risk

Overview

The Bank devotes significant resources to ensuring its risk management functions are
comprehensive. In 2019 the risk management function was further enhanced.

The following major projects were conducted in 2019:

Updates in the ICAAP models

Continuation of projects aimed at development of risk-related IT infrastructure
improvement of credit risk models and model management

NPL reduction strategy continued

Risk management framework

Risk Management is in charge of the Bank's risk management function and is the second line
of defence within the Bank. For certain risk types, the tasks of the second line of defence are
carried out by organisational units outside of Risk Management, having the necessary
competence and resources and who have an interest in lowering the risk levels accepted by
the Bank to ensure compliance with risk tolerance objectives, limits and other limitations. The
units outside of Risk Management are not part of risk management.
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The Bank's Risk Management area performs its work based on EU legislation in force, the
Bank's risk strategy, the resolutions, policies and guidelines of the Bank's governing bodies,
and it represents the interests of the shareholders. Risk Managemenl operations are
integrated into the Bank's processes.

The head of the Bank's Risk Management area is the member of the board responsible for
risk management (CRO), who reports to the CEO of the Bank. He supervises the work of the
Risk Management units and is a member of the Bank's special nsk management committees.

The head of Risk Management complies with the qualification and business reputation
requirements defined by EU legislation and other rules (fit and proper approach).

Chief Risk Officer (CRO)

The CRO is an Independent member of the Board of Directors responsible for risk
management and for creating and operating a comprehensive risk management framework
within the entire organisation.

The CRO is independent from the business areas and does not have any management or
financial responsibility in terms of operative business lines or income-generating functions.

The CRO places particular emphasis on increasing the risk awareness of the Bank's
employees and on streangthening risk culture at every level
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Executive bodies and committees
Supervisory Board

The Supervisory Board, representing the shareholders, is responsible for supervising the
Board of Directors and provides assistance with governing the Bank, particularly with taking
key decisions

The Supervisory Board and its subcommittees supervise the risk management process and
the current risk exposure based on regular reports and special information from the CRO,
The Supervisory Board approves the risk management strategy and the risk appetite
declaration proposed by the Bank.

Board of Directors

The Board of Directors coordinates the strategic objectives of the Bank with the Supervisory
Board and regularly discusses the status of strategy implementation with the Supervisory
Board. Management is based on the principles of good corporate governance as well as
open debate between the Board of Directors, the Supervisory Board and members of the
committees.

Risk management is the primary responsibility of the CRO, while the Board of Directors, as a
collective body, has additional control tasks, including the supervision of risk management
functions and approving relevant risk management policies

Asset-Liability Committee (ALCO)

The Asset-Liability Committee (ALCOQ) is responsible for managing the balance sheet with a
holistic approach, and as a key decision-making body it is also responsible for the existing
and future interest and foreign exchange risks within the banking book, Moreover, its task is
to optimise the Bank's nisk/return profile to maintain proper liguidity and financing and to
comply with regulatory capital management requirements.

ALCO closely monitors the evolution of risk-weighted assets, capital levels, P&L forecasts
and the regulatory environment since these are key drivers of regulatory capital
requirements.

Risk Committee

The Risk Committee (RiCo) is responsible for controlling the Bank's current and potential
future risk exposures and for developing and implementing the risk strategy, which includes
defining and controlling risk appetite. The Risk Committee deals with risk management, risk
regulation, risk models and methodologies and the comprehensive risk management for the
entire Bank within the framework of the ICAAP.

Credit Committee

The Credit Committee {CRC) is the central decision-making body responsible for collective
credit decisions in terms of individual transactionsilimits. It processes all the transactions at
its level of authorisation. Within the Credit Committee, the chairman of the CRC (the CRO,
board member responsible for risk management) is entitled to reject proposals irrespective of
voting results (*veto right”).

Distressed Asset Committee (DAC)

The DAC is the body responsible for drafting strategies pertaining to non-performing
transactions and special transactions exhibiting a high risk of non-performance.

The main topics/responsibilities of the DAC are contained in its own rules of procedure; these
include, among others, the acceptance of strategies and restructuring plans, the assessment
of recovery indicators and the review of reports on implementing the action plans.
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Risk Strateqy
The Board of Directors evaluates and defines the risk strategy for the entire Bank, reflecting
the current business model, while the Supervisory Board approves this risk strategy.

The purpose of the Bank's Risk Strategy is to define the general framework for the
continuous and prudent management of risks related to the Bank's business model. It
describes the basic principles that ensure the Bank’s overall capital and liquidity adequacy as
well as the appropriate defence approach by integrating risk management into the business
activity, performing the strategic planning for the entire organisation and developing it in line
with business risks. The Strategy takes the ICAAP principles and results into account.

The Bank's risk strategy is efficiently incorporated into daily operations through the following
four pillars:

Risk principles and Risk appetite and
internal risk regulation risk profile

Group-level risk strategy

Risk adjusted performance
measurement, steering
and reporting

Risk governance and
management functions

The risk management function has a homogeneous structure within the Bank with the usual
roles and responsibilities. Every activity covered by risk management is documented in the
Bank's regulations. The Bank defines the accepted structure of various risks based on its risk
appetite and risk profile. The central part of the risk management function is an efficient
governance model independent from business areas, All of these components ensure that
the Bank efficiently applies the risk strategy throughout the organisation. The continuous
improvement of the methods used for measuring and managing risks is integrated into the
risk strategy during the annual update process.

Regulatory requirements
Compliance with regulatory requirements relies on three pillars in line with the Basel Il rules:

Pillar 1; SBHU's minimum capital requirement

Under Pillar 1, the Bank uses the following methods to define the minimum capital
requirement.

« Credit risk: Standardized Approach;

« Seftlement risk: Standardized Approach;

= Market risk: Standardized Approach,

» Operational risk: Standardized Approach.
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Pillar 2: Internal capital adequacy assessment process (ICAAP) and internal liquidity
adequacy assessment process (ILAAP)

ICAAP is one of the key components of the risk management and control activity covering
the entire Bank, including all risk types and risk portfolios, primarily focusing on the
implementation of risk management and risk control from the perspective of Pillar 2. The
main objective of the ICAAP framework is to ensure alignment with the legislative
(regulatory) and intermal expectations and requirements with the ultimate objective of
developing and applying appropriate risk and capital management, thereby assuring lhe
sustainable development of the Bank and ensuring capital adequacy In line with its
operations to cover all material and relevant risks. ILAAP supplements the ICAAP process
from the perspective of the Bank having appropriate liquidity and being eligible for financing.

Pillar 3: Disclosure requirements

Every year the Bank complies with the disclosure requirements defined based on the CRR.
The document is accessible at www sherbank hu.

ICAAP framework

The Bank's general risk tolerance is defined based on the requirements described under
Pillar 2 and the internal capital defined based on Pillar 2. The risk coverage capital is defined
with appropriate, risk sensitive measurement methods and by aggregating all of the relevant
risk types. This forms the basis of risk management as part of an appropriate limit system.

The process developed by the Bank for managing its risk tolerance must be suitable for
determining, quantifying, managing and monitoring all material risks. Moreover, using the
process developed for managing risk tolerance, the capital suitable for hedging the assumed
risk can be properly estimated based on two approaches: going concern and gane concerm.
This process ensures that the internal capital requirement and the Bank's regulatory capital
are covered by the available capital at all times.

Risk tolerance is closely related to the Bank's strategic business goals, its risk appetite and
risk profile as well as its capital adequacy, and ensures multidirectional interaction among
these components,

The process includes the following mutually interrelated phases/components:

Hizk
identtication
Ritk staering Risk
& monitoring wgEregation

Rizk coverage
Capital cons.
m D
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Identification of risks and assessment of materiality

Based on the comprehensive risk assessments performed each year, the Bank determines
the risks that are present within the Bank's banking operations and defines their significance
and potential threat. This process includes both a quantitative assessment of the various risk
types and an assessment of the methods and systems used to monitor and manage existing
risks (qualitative assessment). So this risk assessment concept provides a comprehensive
averview of SBHU's risk profile.

Based on the results of the risk materiality assessment, material risks are managed based on
the policies, procedures and guidelines approved by the governing body or the commitiees
concerned on the basis of the periodic assessment and/or general supervisory process.

The assessment methodology used for measuring significant risks can be determined on a
case-by-case basis depending on the nature of the risk. The Bank applies both quantitative
and qualitative methods for fundamental risks (including stress tests) which are documented
in dedicated methods and manuals.

Quantitative definition of risks as per the ICAAP

Risk quantification is an integral part of the management process of individual risks.
Quantification helps to define the size of the risk capital requirement needed to jointly cover
expected and unexpected risks.

When defining the capital requirement the Bank applies the gone concern approach.

According to the risk strategy and the risk identification rules, the level of refinement and the
comprehensive nature of the calculation must follow the best market practice, taking into
account the volume, volatility and materiality of the underlying risk. The Bank applies Value-
at-Risk-type models for credit risk (IRB approach) and for operational and market risks. The
Standardised Approach is used in the case of the trading book since the exposure is
insignificant based on its share of the general risk exposure. This approach is regularly
validated against the banks' internal VaR model.

Credit risk

The internal ratings-based approach is one of the standard VaR models proposed under
Pillar 1 (single factor model) by the regulator. Accordingly, it defines the internal capital
required to cover credit risk as a credit loss, where the actual loss will most likely not be any
higher. The internal ratings-based model focuses on losses stemming from non-
performance, and it is based on the estimated values of the PD, LGD and EaD parameters.

The internal ratings-based model does not cover certain semi-credit risks, for more
information on this, please refer to the detailed internal policies. For portfolios where the
Bank does not have the necessary data (PD or LGD) to apply the internal ratings-based
model, the Standardised Approach is used. Whenever possible, however, the Bank applies
the internal ratings-based approach.

The value at risk of loans is calculated at a 99,9% confidence level.

Market risk

Markel risk is the risk that the actual asset value of the Bank's on-balance sheet and off-
balance sheet positions changes as a result of market price changes (interest rates, equity
prices, foreign exchange rates or commodity prices, etc.), which may lower the Bank's profit
and capital.
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Market risk — trading book

The Bank classifies as positions held with trading intent the positions intended to be resold
short term, or positions intended to benefit from expected differences between buying and
selling prices. The Bank's trading activity is not significant compared to its size, but it applies
a complex system to measure and manage market risks in line with international risk
management standards.

Market risk - banking book

When quantifying the extent of the risk, the Bank applies the generally accepted risk
measurement approaches in line with regulatory recommendations and quantifies both the
short term (income related) and longer-term impacts (appearing in the change of the
economic value of the capital). When quantifying interest rate risk, the Bank uses scenarios
representing various interest rate changes. From among these, we assume a +/-200 basis
points, prompt, parallel yield curve shock as the basic stress scenario. In order to analyse
interest rate sensitivity in more detail, based on the guidance of EBA, the Bank also analyses
the impact of additional scenarios which simulate the different changes in the slope and the
shape of the yield curve.

Operational risk

The Bank defines the capital requirement to be allocated to operational risks using the
Standardised Approach under both pillars.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk |s the risk of the institution not being able to comply with its obligations
sternming frem the expected and unexpected current and fulure cash flows and collaterals
without impacting its daily operation or its market position These may include, among others
The Bank measures the liquidity risks using processes and various indicators and limits in
line with the international and Hungarian regulatory frameworks and the guidelines of the
parent bank, and manages these liquidity risks by maintaining a conservative liquidity buffer.

Other risks

The Bank allocates an additional risk capital requirement to other risks on top of the internal
capital requirement already eslimated. It defines the amount allocated to other risks based
on the amount of previously identified losses (if available) and the expert opinion on the
imminent adverse impact of risks, also using the results of the stress test.

Risk aggregation

During the risk guantification phase of the process developed to manage risk tolerance, the
Bank assesses the amount of internal capital needed to caver individual material risks, This
is followed by the risk aggregation phase during which the internal capital needed to cover all
of the Bank's material risks can be estimated.

The Bank's total capital requirement (total internal capital) can be estimated by aggregating
the internal capital requirement of the different material risks (including the capital buffer).
When aggregating internal capital requirements we assume that the losses sternming from
the different risks are in perfect correlation. The assumption is conservative, but for the time
being the Bank does not have sufficient experience or enough data to make a reliable
assessment of the advantages of diversification. The Bank continuously collects data so that
it can define these potential advantages later on,
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The entire internal capital requirement is compared with the risk coverage capital. The capital
available for the Bank must be higher than both of these.

Stress tests

The Bank performs stress tests as one of the basic tools for managing material risks. Stress
tests are carried out separately for each material risk. The purpose of stress tests is lo
determine the Bank's vulnerability in the case of exireme adverse circumstances, to
formulate corrective measures and to ensure the long-term stability of the Bank. Stress tests
are also used to determine the Bank's sensitivity to factors that are not parl of the
quantification of internal capital. Moreover, for risks where the VaR model is not applied, the
results of the stress tests may also form the basis for assessing internal capital. However, as
a general rule, stress test results do not define the level of internal capital since they model
extreme conditions.

The Bank performs at least one stress test every year. In the case of sudden market
changes the Bank analyses the potential impacts of the change on its economic position and
decides based on the obtained results whether stress tests need to be performed more

frequently.

Capital allocation

The targeted risk profile of the Bank is achieved by allocating the risk coverage capital, which
takes place as part of the risk tolerance model. The Bank allocates capital to cover every
basic risk as well as the other risks that have been classified as material during the
identification and assessment of risks. The allocation ensures that the Bank's risk coverage
capital provides appropriate protection in the event of adverse circumstances.

Credit risk

The credit risk of Sberbank in Hungary stems primarily from credit type products, although it
has some other on-balance sheet and off-balance sheet commitments,

Credit risk management devotes considerable effort every year to identifying and measuring
credit risks as accurately as possible, introducing appropriate controls and optimising lending
processes from the perspective of risk management.

In the course of 2019 the following significant progress was made:

Corporate and SME

In 2019 the following main developments and projects were launched to revise and develop
current lending processes and risk management methods with the objective of improving
efficiency:

»  The new SME and corporate lending policy was renewed, defining key risk parameters,
standards and the risk appetite related to the Bank's lending activity, taking account of
group-level expectations at both segment and portfolio level.

« AnIT project supporting credit-monitoring activity was also launched.

+ New standardized lending process and products were introduced for small SME
companies.

Retail
« New standardized lending process and products were introduced for micro-businesses.
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« Baby Loan was introduced as a new product of the Bank

Risk measurement

To quantify the credit risk of SBHU's loan transactions the Bank has implemented bank-level
risk models. One of the key risk indicators is the PD (Probability of Default), which defines
the probability of the client’s default within 12 months based on qualitative and quantitative
performance indicators. The LGD (Loss Given Default), the CCF (Credit Conversion Factor)
and the EAD (Exposure at default) depend on transaction specific characteristics.

SBHU has its own PD models, which can be applied to credil applicants where the Banking
Group is presenl. The Bank uses a generic model for cross-border transactions and for
clients for whom there is no country-specific model,

Risk measurement components

Debtors’ credit nsk has two components — Expected Loss (EL) covered by provisions, and
Unexpected Loss (UL) covered by capital. EL is the loss expected from the given transaction
within 12 months. UL comes from the variance around the expected loss. Expected loss can
be broken down into the following three components:

EL=PD x LGD x EAD

These three components are defined as follows:

* PD (Probability of Default) is the probability of a client defaulting within one year.
Probabilities of defaull are classified into rating classes with the help of the SBHU
master-scale

« LGD (Loss given Default) represents the estimated amount of the expected loss on a
non-performing loan at the time the default occurs, projected to the expected
exposure at default. The Bank never assumes that 100% of the outstanding debt can
be recovered by selling the collateral or through other means; instead, a lower value
s realistically expected. When defining the LGD rate, the costs incurred during the
collection, when selling collaterai as well as other economic losses are also taken into
account. The LGD Is determined based on the collateral type and other transaction-
specific characteristics. The risk models determining the LGD rate have been
developed based on the results of the completed collection procedures of non-
performing clients,

» EAD (Exposure at Default) is the exposure that the Bank expects when the default
ocours. |t is defined by transaction-specific rates such as the expected drawdown rate
or the expected market price of derivative transactions.

Rating process

During the client/fransaction rating process only the modeis approved by SBHU board
members (previously by SBEU) can be used, The PD value defined by the Rating *master-
scale” is used for the second pillar capital calculation, risk pricing and to select the lending
process. At SBEU, the rating is based on the annual PD, which disregards the total cycle
price of the loan. Therefore SBHU uses the same 12-month expected loss approach.
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Breakdown of the Bank's credit risk rating grades by PD range:

lower avaerage | higher risk
barder PD border | classes Risk category
0,00% 0,02% 0.03% 1| high grade
0,03%| 004%| 004% 2 | high grade
0,04%| 005%| 0.068% 3| high grade
0,08% 0,07% 0.08% 4 | high grade
0.08%| 010%| 0.11% 5 | high grade
011%| 013%| 016% 6 | high grade
0,16%| 0.18%| 0.22% 7| high grade
022%| 025%| 030% 8 | high grade
030%| 035%| 041% o | high grade
0.41%| 048%| 056% 10| standard grade
0.56%| 066%| 0,78% 11| standard grade
0,78% 0.91% 1,07% 12 | standard grade
107%|  1.25%| 1.47% 13 | standard grade
147%| 173%| 2.02% 14 | standard grade
2,02% 2.38% 2.79% 16 | average grade
279%| 327%| 384%| 16 | average grade
3.84% | 451%| 529% 17| average grade
5,29% 6,20% 7.28% 18 | average grade
7.28% 8.54% | 10.03% 18 | avarage grade __i
10,03%| 11,77%| 13.81% 20| below average grade
13.81%| 16,20%| 19,01% 21| below average grade
19,01%| 2231% | 26,19% 22 | below average grade
| 26,19%| 30,73% | 36,06% 23 | below average grade
36,06% | 42.032% | 49.66% 24 | below average grade
49.66% | 58.28% | 100,00% 25 below average grade
100,00% | 100,00% | 100,00% 26| impaired

Corporate and SME credit risk monitoring and governance

SBHU regularly monitors its receivables in line with the approved processes. Based on the
predefined early waming signs the process identifies clients with low creditworthiness, and
with the help of appropriate evaluation it detects the critical characteristics that may lead to
changes in the commitment and the client's risk profile. Depending on the risk level,
receivables with performance problems are forwarded to the designated areas as
restructuring and workout cases for further management. During the process the Bank
monitors the quality of the credit exposure within a specific period, and performs
measurements if differences are observed
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Lending process

The Bank applies uniform lending processes by client segment based on a standard
methodology and approach, and performs an independent risk rating while clearly
segregaling risk and business objectives, using uniform standards and principles, and
applies standardised credit application and risk management tools that support risk analysis
and decision-making in line with the predefined conditions.

The partner risk category, the level of exposure and the underlying transaction are the main
processing parameters in the course of evaluating transactions and taking decisions.

The methodology used during the lending process is standardised in the system. Given the
high degree of complexity of the credit decision process and as a resull of the incomplete
systern support at present, in particular with respect to the active business activities with a
low risk profile, the back-testing points were incorporated into the process to support
efficiency

The purpose of the method is to reduce manual work and further operational risks
Reducing risk concentration

A comparative back-testing, monitoring and limit framework has been applied for credit risks
Risk rating models ensure regular evaluations.

Credit risks are managed by numerous control points and processes. The overall risk
assumption process Is developed and fine-tuned on a regular basis, reflecting the evolution
of credit nsks identified within the Bank. Control points have been incorporated into internal
policies and they also function In practice. The Risk Committee and the management of the
Bank are regularly informed about developments related to credit risks, and they are able to
manage and control processes based on relevant reports.

Within the corporate segment, the SME segment shows trends similar to 2017, Thanks to
strong acquisition activity, both the number of clients in the business segment and their
overall exposure have increased. Most of the growth came from the top segment The
change in risk-weighted assets was negligible due to the high coverage rate

Back-testing is carmed out based on reports that have been developed to measure and
quantify specific risks. Portfolio leve! limits were set up to reduce risk concentration.

A high level of concentration risk is taken into account for the portfolio due to the significant
aggregate exposure of the client groups. The Bank is striving to diversify the porifolio in the
SME segment in the course of product-based lending. The implemented Credit Policy also
pays alltention lo the problems caused by portfolio concentration and attempts o reduce
them by regulating regular monitoring.

Although the overall credit risk is considered high compared to the Bank's other risk
components based on both quantitative and qualitative assessments, due chiefly to the main
distribution of credit risks affecting the entire portfolio, the overall portfolio quality is
continuously improving thanks to prudent controls The economic environment Is positive and
the centrally managed lending programmes facilitate the development of the credit market,
Thanks to the workout activity of past years the credit portfolio has continued to stabilise
following a thorough consolidation of the portfolio.

Country and transfer risks

Business is clearly focused on areas where either SBHU or the parent bank is present on the
market with their own activities. The country limit methodology framework has been
implemented, which is based on the strategy of cross-border risk appetite. Every operation is
performed via sub limits allocated from the total limit at bank level Monitoring, allocation and
review processes take place centrally under SBHU's responsibility.
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Retail credit risk management and monitoring

Lending process

Implementation of the project aimed at reframing micro-business lending.
Introduction of re-optimised process

Automated client rating

Automated legal compliance/internal risk framework check

Risk Monitoring

We comprehensively analyse retail and micro-business product groups on a monthly basis
and share the results at the GRC meeting held in Hungary and with the headquarters in
Vienna by sending them the regular PQR/Vintage report.

Portfolio overview - credit risks

Risk controlling uses the fair value of the assets for calculating the relevant exposure. From
an accounting perspective, exposures are recorded based on the carrying amount.

In the course of 2018 total exposures related to the Bank's credit risks did not change
significantly, but there was significant restructuring from off-balance sheet assets to on-
balance sheet assets, and also among the various segments.

Forbearance

To comply with Sberbank principles, internal credit policies contain special requirements and
standards related to restructuring.

We have reviewed and updated the current internal policies related to restructuring so that
they fully comply with the requirements of the EBA and of Article 99 (4) of Regulation (EU)
No. 575/2013 pertaining to reports on restructuring and non-performing exposures.

A forborne exposure' is a receivable originating from a transaction® for which the Bank
gave a discount/concession in view of the debtor’s financial difficulties. This can happen if the
following two criteria are met:

| Bestructured receivable according to Decree 39/2016 (X.11) of MNB

? Ascording to Decree 38/2018 (X 11) of MNB the recaivable: loans containing concession, provided to ihe oblgar at the request
of the debtor or abligor (hereinafter collectively: obligor) or the institution, purchased recetvables and mceivables stemming from
pther transactions considered cash loans or from other financlal services, as well as commimaonts retated to lencing that may
become a recaivable based on the customer's decision (hereinafler coliecively: recevable)
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¢ The debtor experiences or might experience difficulties in meeting their financial
obligations (they have “financial difficulties”), and
= The Bank and the debtor mutually agree on some discount/concession, which may be
one of the following options:
o The previous contractual terms are modified
o The Bank or SBEU Group partly or campletely refinances the outstanding
transaction: the original contract is replaced (either in full or in part) by a
contract structured in such a way that it can handle the risk more securely
within the SBEU Group as the debtor was unable to fulfii the original
conditions.
o Activation of conditions previously laid down in the contract (“integrated
forbearance clauses”) based on the Bank's approval, which modify the
contractual terms,

Based on the above, the purpose of granting discounts/concessions for clients is to enable
them to retumn to a sustainable servicing of debt,

We classify restructured transactions into the following categories

¢ performing restructured (including transactions during their probationary period and
those cured from their non-performing status)
« non-performing restructured

The following transactions are classified as performing;

« the exposure was performing prior to the restructuring, and
« the granted concession does not reclassify the transaction as non-performing.

An exposure previously classified as restructured has to meet the following conditions to be
removed from the restructured stalus;

L]

It should be classified as “performing”: the exposure must be considered as

“performing” (including reclassification from “non-performing”)

* Minimum two-year probationary period must have elapsed: at least 2 years have
passed since the exposure last (in the case of multiple ratings) received the
“performing forborne” or “forborne upgraded to perfarming” rating.

* Debtor regularly paid repayment instalment during last year: since the starl of
the second half of the probationary period (at the latest) the debtor has reqularly paid
a substantial part of the interest and principal debt

« Debtor has no arrears beyond 30 days: none of the debtor's exposures is past due

by more than 30 days at the end of the probationary period.

All of the conditions described above must be fulfiled simultaneously to terminate the
restructured status of any exposure. Even if just one of the conditions is not met, the
probationary period must be extended until the end of the next quarter. The restructured
status of a non-performing exposure cannot be terminated.
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The following table presents SBHU's exposures classified as restructured as at 31 December
2019

31.12.2019 performing farbome | non-parforming forborne Total farbormne
S exposuras exposunes Exposures
t:"“l x r':; r‘::t';'“ commiiments 8 187 470 9 157
Loah promissory notes 1 0 1
Total B 188 aro 9158
31.12.2018 performing forborme non-perfarming forborne Total forborne
e GXPOBUTDS axposures BXPOBUNDS
?:H“J:d?’“ :T:u’"" Commimeants 7 639 2767 10 406
“Loan promissory notes 118 0 118
Total 7767 2787 10 524

Non-performing loan portfolio (NPL)

The quality of the loan portfolio is protected by regular reviews and the continuous monitoring
of credit exposure.

The purpose of the monitoring process is to:

e identify symptoms and threats
« carry out preventive activities to preserve the quality of the loan portfolio
« maximise recovery of the Bank's assets

The early recognition of risks is a key part of risk management and is aimed at avoiding or
mitigating the Bank's expected credit loss. The sooner negative developments are identified
and the more consistent the implemented solutions are, the more adequate the restructuring
options will be and the more likely they will be successful.

If the monitoring process reveals signs about the borrower suggesting that the borrower may
not be able to meet their contractual obligations and repay their loan, the transaction is
forwarded to the Restructuring and Workout (RWO) Department.
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According to SBHU's internal policies, defaull occurs when the Bank observes one of the
following events at the client:

Default events (non-retail clients) =
Days past due — A significant obligation of the barrower is past due for more than 90 days.

Bankruptoy - The Debtar, the Caurl or a third-parly files forfinitiales bankrupley or a debl selllement

procedure against the Deblor.

1

2

3 | Enforcement - Enforcement proceedings are in progress against the Debior,
4

5

Liquidation — The dabtor is the subject of liquidation proceedings. The client is given a raling of 25.
Nen-performing restructuring — If restruciuring is due lo the facl that the debtar is unable to meel

9__ | Default of money market transactions - Decision to close an open posilion prematurely,
10 | Cross-default (bank group) — The client's defaull vis-4-vis another member of the SEEU Group
| (5BAG and subsiciaris). il el

11 Payment difficulties, expected cash flow problems - The obligors will probably not be able to meel
their payment obligations in view of thelr cash flow problems, resulting in a client defaul,

12| Cross-default (client group) — Defaull of a deblor group member. »

13 | The debtor will probably not be able to meet their financial obligations in the future
(Unlikeliness to pay — UTP) - This calegary indicales some financial difficullies of the debtor and
some “other” deterioration of the loan quality not covered by the ofher defaull categoties.

 Default events (retail clients) o o
1 Days past due — A significant obligation of the borrower is past due for more than 80 days (according
= to Seclion 11.2.1.1. of the policy). - R |
2 Write-off — The client's debts have been written off (with a significant, credit-related economic loss)
according to Section 11.2.1.2 - s =
Sale - The receivable had lo be sold &t a loss according to Section 11.2.1.3. ==
Fraud — Fraud committed by the client - confirmed by Compliance or the Fraud Commitlee as a fraud
| —resulling in a chenl default. = S Te s B—
] Impairment — Individual or collective impaliment or nsk pravision had to be recognised (for first time

L

thei contractual financial obiigations. e
7 Probable cash flow problems — The obligors will probably not be able to meel their payment
obligations in view of cash flow problems, resulting in a client defaull,
8 The debtor will probably not be able to meet their financial obligations in the future
(Unliketiness to pay = UTP) — This category indicales soma financial ditficulties of the debtor and
| some "other” deterioration of the loan quality nol covered by the ather default categonies.

L] Cross default due to joint and several abligation - The reason for the defaull is the defaull of the
joint and severai obfigation, (Joint and several obligation: an exposure where two or more obligars
hiave: the joint and several llability to repay the loan (oint and several debtor) not including guarantees

In case of the above mentioned events, the receivable is presented in stage 3.

The recovery from default starts, when there are no more default causer factors, meaning the
customer does not breach any non-performing status trigger, 3 consecutive months before
the start of the recovery. At the end of the recovery period, the receivable can be transferred
from stage 3 to stage 2.

During the recovery period, it must be measured whether the customer can perform its
liabilities or not.

The length of the recovery period for any of the default events depends on the frequency of
the exposure’s repayment.
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Frequency of repayment Recovery period
Monthly 6 months
Cruartarly 9 months

Half year 12 months
Yearly 24 months

If a customer has more deals with different payment schedules, the longest recovery period
will be the standard.

In case of non-performing restructuring the followings must be fulfilled to reach recovery:
the recovery starts when the restructuring takes action (refinancing concluded)
the recavery period cannot be shorter than 12 month, counting from the last existing
factor:
from the moment of the restructuring,
from the moment that the exposure was graded or become non-performing
if the restructuring contains grace period, the expiry of it.
in addition, the recovery period cannot be shorter, than that period during the
debtor performs payment in a significant amount. A significant payment is the
amount of a defaulted debt or a written off amount, if the debt was not default.
Or the period, when the debtor performed the repayment of the restructuring
obligation.

000

The table below shows the evolution of the non-performing loan portfolio for the financial
years 2018 and 2019:

Client exposures (HUF) | 311220018 122018
_NPLvolume [ _ds) W0
_N.FL ratio 5,36% 10,62%
Impairment

The Bank's credit risk is the risk that the debtor of the loan causes a financial loss for the
Bank by not meeting some of their credit-related obligations. To cover these losses, the Bank
recognises impairment in line with the provisions of IFRS 9.

Also in line with the provisions of the standard, the Bank applies the expected loss model to
determine the required amount of impairment and provisions, i.e. it takes into account the
loss events that occurred after the initial recognition or that are expected to occur during the
life of the exposure.

At the end of each month the Bank examines whether there is any objective evidence that a
financial asset or group of financial assets may be impaired.

The following events may serve as objective evidence:

- Significant financial difficulty of the debtor

- The recovery of the loan is only probable by claiming the collateral securing the loan

- The debtor's obligations are past due for more than 90 days

- The loan had to be restructured, for example due to substantial changes in conditions,
interest rate decreases, etc. (with the exception of changes driven by the market or due
to technical reasons)
The collateral value has substantially decreased and no other cash flows are available
for the loan repayment
The client is unwilling to cooperate, despite prevailing payment difficulties
It is likely that bankruptcy proceedings or some other financial reorganisation will be
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initiated against the borrower
- The client has no regular monthly income
The client's rating has deteriorated to default or pre-default rating categories, etc.

Every credit exposure, on-balance sheet and off-balance sheet items must be taken into
account when recognising impairment and provisions, irrespective of their credit ratings. This
means the Bank not only rates the transactions where a significant deterioration in credit
quality can be observed, or where the credit risk itself is high. The valuation covers every
financial asset with the exception of assets measured at fair value through profit or loss.

Off-balance sheet exposures should be taken into account for calculating impairment and
provisions depending on the likelihood of their drawdown. The Bank applies the CCF values
permitted by the regulator based on the CRR to quantify this amount.

The Bank classifies its exposures into one of the stages defined by IFRS 9 (Stage 1, Stage
2, Stage 3 and POCI), taking account of their deterioration compared with the credit quality
upon initial recognition, which also defines the method for recording impairment and
provisions.

Significant increase in credit risk (SICR)

If a significant increase In credit risk is observed compared with the initial recognition of the
financial asset, then the financial asset will be categorised into the Stage 2 category in line
with the provisions of IFRS 9.

The Bank determines a significant increase in credit risk after considering several
parameters together, during which it takes into account, among other things, the
classification of the given transaction during regular monitoring, its current default and any
restructuring, if applicable.

Signs observed when classifying exposures into Stage 2:

credil risk

availabla)

Classification criteria Retail segment Non-Retail segment
iitngih, LA Ol ik oo Stage 2 (if data is available) Stage 2
Rating 25 Stage 2 | Slage 2
Forbearance fiag Stage 2 Stage 2
DPD > 30 days | stage 2 Stage 2
m E;dicalnr: Significant increass In | Stage 2 (if reliable raling data 15_ Stage 2

Calleclive assessmeni (based an
extracrdinary decksion supported by
the Risk Commitiee and approved by
the Board of Direciors)

Stage 2 (al portfolio level, based
on expart evaluation)

Stage 2 (al portiolio level, based
on expeit evaluation)

If both initial and current client rating information is available when evaluating a significant
increase in credit risk, the deterioration of the rating by at least 7 notches in absolute terms is
also taken into account as a factor indicating the significant increase in credit risk (SICR
indicatar).

For transactions without a rating an average rating was determined based on the data of the
performing portfolio with a rating, and this value is reviewed at least on an annual basis.
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We indicate low risk portfalios with internal rating grades 1 to 8. In their case, the SICR
indicator is not taken into account when classifying them into stages. However, the Bank
always examines the other criteria of Stage 2 classification for these transactions as well.

Transactions for which the Bank has already determined a significant increase in credit risk
once can only be reclassified back from Stage 2 to Stage 1 if not a single factor indicating the
significant increase in credit risk or indicating default exists with respect to the current cycle
or the previous reporting cycle.

The Bank determines the need to recognise impairment individually for financial assets that
are individually significant, and individually or collectively for financial assets that are not
significant individually. A threshold has been determined to differentiate exposures that are
individually significant and not significant, which is based on the client's total exposure to the
Bank. For recording impairment and provisions the Bank considers receivables to be
individually significant where the total value of the client's on-balance sheet and off-balance-
sheet exposures exceeds HUF 100 million. In addition, individual assessment is also
performed for contingent liabilities due to litigated receivables and equity investments, as
these are also managed individually. Moreover, irespective of the above significance
threshold, the Bank may classify any client/client group into the category to be assessed
individually.

For individually significant exposures, the Bank uses the discounted cash flow (DCF) method
to determine the required level of impairment and provisions. Accordingly, if objective
evidence exists, the impairment loss is equivalent to the difference between the assel's
carrying amount and the present value of the estimated future cash flows discounted at the
original effective interest rate. When calculating the present value of estimated future cash
flows, the cash flows originating from any regular future income and cash flows that can be
expected from enforcing collateral must always be included (reduced by the cost of acquiring
and selling the collateral) depending on whether the Bank assumes a going concern or
liquidation of the debtor.

In the going concern approach we assume that the client will repay the principal and the
interest, so the debtor's economic difficulties are only temporary and they will be able to
repay the exposure from the future cash flows of their core activilies. By contrast, in the gone
concern approach we assume that we can only collect the debt by enforcing the collateral.

When calculating collective impairment — contrary to the method described for recognising
individual impairment — we estimate cash flows at portfolio level. In such cases, assets with
similar credit risk characteristics are grouped into a given portfolio. Accordingly, cash flows
can mostly be assessed in the given portfolio based on past experiences, taking account of
their future evolution based on the lifetime component of the applied impairment models.
Determining the appropriate risk parameters used for the calculation is crucially important
when calculating collective impairment.

When determining future expected cash flows, some macroeconomic factors are also
considered (for example; unemployment rate, net average wages, industrial output, GDP,
etc.).

\We estimate the difference between the carrying amount and future cash flows not only for
the next 12 months but also with the LECL approach, meaning we quantify the expected loss
resulting from a default event eccurring during the lifetime of the financial instrument in the
cases where the standard requires us to do so.

For exposures classified in Stage 1 the Bank uses the 12-month expected loss approach,
while for exposures classified in Stage 2 and Stage 3 it uses the lifetime expected loss
approach.
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We calculate the amount of impairment and provisions to be assessed collectively at the end
of each month, and we recalculate it if any of the applied parameters changes significantly.

Sberbank Group has a uniform process for developing, verifying, approving and back-testing
sk models in accordance with IFRS 9. The applied methodology and the assumptions are
reviewed on an annual basis to reduce any possible difference between the losses
recognised based on the assessment and the losses actually incurred.

Concentration risk

Concentration risks of receivables from customers in the balance sheet and memorandum
accounts shown in the following tabies are grouped by the risk factors listed as follows:

- customers' geographical region
- composition according to main currencies
customers' industrial classification

The following tables show the on-balance and off-balance gross exposures broken-down by
categories above.

Geographical concentration
Concentration of on-balance axposures from 31.12,2019 ]
customers. broken down by geographical region | Domestic Russia EU oulside EU Total |
high grade 9171 0 e 0 9812
standard grade 140 848 175 12163 Av83| 157395
averaga grade = 80 818 | 16 166 86| s18e8
balow average grade 14079 0 3 3 14 143
impaired 14 301 1 652 13| 14067
Total 289217 92| 13703  &os1| 27mie3
Conecentration of on-balance exposures from 31.12.2018
customars broken down by geographical region | Domestic Rumeia EU oulside EU Tolal
nigh grade 5951 0 0 37| 5088
standard grade 71220 138 B 597 2o78| 88033
avarage grade 104 030 " B 636 3| 110747
below average grade o 14 604 | 14 55 55 14818
Cimpaired | 24833 1 "880| 68| 25882
Total 226 528 107 16 148 2265 245138
Concentration of off-balance axposures from 11,12.2010
customers broken down by geographical ng_qn Domaestic Ru!!_lng EU outside EU Total
hgh grade L 21 000 2 250 4715 5 27 980
standard grada B1 351 2 1 8| 51372
average grade 19712 2| 2 2 19718
 below average grade 1 298 o i 0 1 208
impaired 36 0 0 ol 36
| Total B 93 677 2263 ATiB 26| 100684
Conecontration of off-balance exposures fram 31.12.2018
customers broken down by geographical region | Domestic Russia EU outside EU Total
mghgrade 74868  ae15] 0 o]  1on
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standard grade B4 B4 g03s| 5140 1 084 80 027
average grade 19 277 o 2 0 18 274
below average grade 2402 0 0 0 2 402
fmpanired 1030 0 0 0 103

Total 95 029 11654 5142 1984| 113808

The Bank's activity focuses mainly on domestic customers, which has not changed in recent
years. The vast majority of EU transactions consist of deals realized together with other
members of the Group in the EU. Based on the fundamentals of the ownership of the Group,
the risks to Russia also appear as part of the banking strategy, typically in the form of trade

finrance transactions.

Currency concentration

Concantration of on-balance exposures from 31.12.2019
cuslomers broken down by currencies HUF EUR CHF uso Othar Total
high grade 733 2481 0 o 0 6812
standard grade 103050 52450 1027 851 0| 157 396 |
average grade 69 576 12107 148 16 0 81 gas
below average grade 13815 179 128 22 0| 14144
impaired 9877 1821 3 261 ) 1| 140886
Total 203658 | 69047 4 562 498 1| 278183
Goncentration of on-balance exposures from 31.12.2018
customers broken down by currencies HUF EUR CHF uso Other Total
high grade 5 192 759 o a7 0 5 088
standard grade 81786 | 24 761 48 1438 o| es033
Bverage grade T8 543 30 800 1289 15 a| 110747
balaw average grade 14 050 537 171 51 ol 14818
impaired 18722 1920 31903 8 1| 25882
Total 173 302 &8 877 5411 1547 1| 245138
Concentration of off-balance exposures from 41.12.2019
gustomars broken down by currencios HUF EUR CHF usn Othor Totat
nigh grade 10 962 8012 0 6 0| 27980
* standard grade 23906 | 27 376 0 0 ol s1an
average grade 16842 | iras a a8 ] 19718
hu!?-\l avaragn nrad: 1298 0 /] n 1] 12688
impaired 75 241 0 0 0 316
Total 61273 39367 0 a4 o| 100684
Concentration of off-balance exposures from M.A12.2018
customers broken down by curroncies HUF EUR GHF usD Other Total
high grade 5381 4 6&0 ] 0 0 11071
standard grade 24230 55717 o 7 o| Bo027
average grade 17 280 1 683 o o 19279
elow average grade 2008 304 ] i} 2 402
impatred a3 27 o 0 1030
Total 50801 629M 0 77 0| 113800
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The majority of the Bank's exposure to customers is denominated in HUF or EUR; there is a
lesser degree of USD-based risk-taking, CHF exposures are remnants of old, gradually
decreasing risk takings. The Bank strives to ensure the presence of the appropriate natural
hedge in its foreign currency transactions and does not provide speculative foreign currency

loans.
Industry concentration
31,12.2019

ﬂh;nﬂummls of on-balance exposures high standard | average below

customars broken down fndustry grade grade grade grade Impal red Total
Agricullure, foresing and ILIIIHH 157 1 a22 3034 672 124 5800
Mining and quarrying 35 0 0 D 0 a5
Manufacturing 541 16 560 7734 186 1851 27178
| Electricily, gas, steam and air condition supply [} 8611 498 148 63 T8
Water supply [i] 29 388 23 17 456
| Canstruction 739 1786 3 284 264 1200 7383
Whalesala and retall irado 1632 2777 12 368 1100 1300 31178
Transport and storage N 153 1180 3 507 1 245 161 G246
Accommodatian and food service actvitles 135 1208 2 689 274 115  ag21
Information and communication 6| 13203 2 269 104 38| 15780
Financisl and insurance achvities - 4m 1578 1607 128 9] 3E05
Real estate activites 80 24353 12431 789 3039| a40E02
Professional, scienlific and tech. activilies 189 4713|2260 541 151 3649
Administrative and support sarvice actvilies 110 | 215 868 104 198 2495
Public administration and defence, compulsary 1314 i 139 o] 0 0| 2453
Education ' 755 at 198 14 15 150
Hurman health senvices and social work act fi5 26| 547 84 a1| 188
Arts, Mlﬂﬁw and recreation 34 8 = 15 140 63 &a7
| Othar sarvices 353 53 370 168 31 975
| Foraign orpanaations, bodies 0 i 0 0 0 0
Individuats o] 71yas| 28226 7 880 6452| 114303
Total 9810 156 397 82 846 14 142 14968 | 278163

31.12.2018 =

mmﬂ of on-balance Bxposuros high standard | average helow

customers broken down industry grade | grade | grade | grade Impaired Total

| Agriculture, forestry and fishing 84 2 058 1830 687 4| 4777
Mining and quarrying = 0 ] & o i (5]
Manufacturing 379 14 668 8 043 498 1914 26720
Electricity, gas, steam and air condition supply 0 8644 538 4 59| 7245
Water supply - 0 29 837 20 5 61
Construction 555 1525 2930 521 1468 | 7000
Wholesaie and retail trade 3363 6579 14 128 1.810 2007 | 27887
Transport and slorage 39 1 380 3383 07 81 5200
Accommodation and Tood sorvics adtivities: 102 B& 3 147 1% 291 3579
Information and communication 129 1661 13 349 83 11| 17333
Financial and insurance activities a 1147 482 162 12 1 841
Real estate activities 781 2618) d2827) 2 1104 3271 | 38788
Professional, scuntlic and tech, activities 182 831 072 386 113 4284
Administrallve and support service actvilkes 237 1 850 11 128 654 | 3am0
Pullic ndminsiration and defance, compulsory | 0 2782 = EI 7 1] 2798
Education = 798 738 415 19 19 1988
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Human hoakth services and social work act 0 218 737 49 238 1202
Arts, enterfainment and recreation i) az 159 a7 53 nr
Othar senvioes 0 26 440 102 20 584
Foreign organizations, bodies 0 a Q 0 4] 0
Individuats 0 41 450 22 904 B 532 15175 BB 131
Tetal 5888 B8 033 110 747 14 818 25652 | 245128
11122018
Concentration of off-balance exposures from | high standard | average m
customers broken down industry grada grade grade grade impalrad Total
Agriculture, forestry and fishing 100 280 1117 218 1 1713
Wining and quanying 1 o 1] 0 o 1
Manufacturing . 809 8825 1432 74 74 g214
Elaciricity, gas. steam and air condition supply 2] (1] 2726 5 o 21N
Water supply ¥ ) 36 0 0 &7
Construction 11 069 12383 4928 111 241 28 742
Wholeaale and ratall rade 7 088 17 384 ary 106 o 28 400
Transport and storage 3489 411 1457 42 o 5389
Accommodation and food senice activities 57 700 187 &7 0 101
Information and communication 207 5186 362 155 0 1229
Financial and insurance activitios 4 D68 830 7 0 a # 805
Real estate sctivities 80 8748 310 285 o] 9424
Professional, sclentific and tech. activities G4 1242 2064 78 0 & 028
Administrative and support sefvice aclivities 121 630 455 15 o 12M
Puldic administration and defence, compulsory 100 o 0 0 o 100
Education 0 2 46 0 [¢] 48
Human health services and sockal work acl. 72 40 127 4 0 243
Artz, enteriainment Bnd recreation 5 0 446 & o 55
Other services L] 36 1] 1 o 08
Foreign organizations, bodies L] o a 1] 0 &
Individuals Lie] 1252 45 50 ] 2007
Total 27 81 51 369 19721 1297 36| 100 6B4
3.12.2018
Concentration of off-balance exposures from | high standard | average m
customers braken down industry grade grade grade grade impaired Total
Agriculture, forestry and fishing 67 216 Tz 138 0 1214
Mining and quarrying 0 o 30 o 0 1]
Manufacturing 248 71889 1603 142 188 9381
Electricily, pas, steam and air condition supply 0 [ 2147 ] ] 2147
Water supply 0 1] R 11 o 45
Construction 4 380 14 B854 3535 143 #a7 23708
Whaolasate and redail irade 2003 37420 3744 235 0 43 402
Transport and storage 176 5228 781 52 i 6217
Accommuedation and food service activities 106 -3 158 58 0 454
Information and communication 168 2218 422 11 ] 2837
Financial and insurance activities 3645 1 852 3 0 2 5502
Real estate activites 1 184 1 462 285 129 2 D51
Professional, scientilic and lech, asctivilies 139 B 938 a287 T3 0 12 405
Administrative and support service activities 40 228 507 160 0 985
Public adminsiration and defence, compulsary ] 700 a 2 i o2
Education 0 a 57 0 0 &7
Human haalth services and soclal work act. 1] 43 143 1 0 167
Arts, entertainment and recreation i] 1 50 ] 0 59
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{30 BRECES. — o 1 58 0 0 80
Foreign arganizations, bodies 6l o] ol o of 0
Individuals a0 758 H06 1 0B 3 2376
Total 11071 8D 027 19 279 2402 1030] 113809

The sectoral distribution of the Bank's risk exposures corresponds to the markel average;
mainly finances sectors with typically high need for financing (real estate, trade,
manufacturing) with loans; off-balance sheet transactions are dominating in trade sectors
(trade finance) and in the real estate market (guarantee schemes)

6.11.4 Operational risk

The risk of Incurning losses due to errors or non-compliance of internal procedures
(processes), stalf or systems and the risk of incurring losses due to external events are
considered operational risks. The Sberbank Europe Group and so Sberbank Hungary as well
use the standardised measurement method based on gross business line revenues to
determine the capital requirement for operational risk.

Within the Sberbank Europe Group, risk management comprises the following processes in
general: risk identification, measurement and evaluation of risk exposures; ensuring
appropriate capital monitoring and planning; taking appropriate measures to control and
mitigate risks. Operational risks are measured both quantitatively and qualitatively (for
example: collection of loss data, monitoring external loss events, risk self-assessments,
monitoring risk-mitigating measures).

The most important component of the 3-layer defence line is the operational risk manager
(Business Line Operational Risk Managers (BLORMSs)). The main methodology components
are (also) determined centrally with the involvement of the parent bank, but the identification
of risks and problems within the various areas is decentralised through the BLORMs and
they are also responsible for checking the implementation of risk-mitigating measures.

In 2019 the Bank mainly fine-tuned its risk measurement methods (in particular, the methods
used for risk evaluation) and improved the quality of internal loss data collection, it regularly
monitored the operation of internal controls and developed its capital calculation procedure
under Pillar Il {ICAAP),

In the future, operational risk management will focus on the following activities:
« continuous development of risk evaluation methodology
« continuous development of inlernal controls
= development of outsourcing processes
= monitoring of internal capital requirement
= improving the quality of loss data and developing data collection practices

A monthly report is prepared and submitted to the Risk Committee aboul operational risk
losses, risk evaluation results and the implementation of internal controls, as well as about
the utilisation of internal limits determined with respect to operational risk appetite.

Operational risk losses can be classified into one of the following main categories:
« Internal fraud: an intentional action where at least one internal party was involved,
» External fraud: losses stemming from the intentional activity of a third party alone,
aimed at fraud, misappropriation or the evasion of legal regulations
« Employer practice and occupational safety’ losses incurred due to the violation of
employer, healthcare or occupational safety requirements; losses stemming from

146




Stand-alone Financinl Stalemeénts 31, December 2019

Sherbank Hungary Lud. data in HUF milion

individual litigated claims related to labour law; losses caused by social or cultural
discrimination

« Client, business practice, marketing and product policy. losses resulting from
unintentional or negligent breach of professional obligations vis-a-vis clients
(including confidence or professional requirements) or losses stemming from product
features or product design

« Losses affecting tangible assets: depreciation caused by natural disasters or other
events

« Business disruption and system failures: losses stemming from business disruption or
the shutdown or failure of production systems

« Execution, performance and process management: damage caused by the incorrect
processing of transactions or the management of processes related to commercial
clients and suppliers

6.12 Approval for issue

The general meeting of the Bank will approve the annual financial statements for issue on 30
April 2020.

Budapest, 21 April 2020

- -c:‘_ - — ‘r
'm.\ R"‘«, "
Richard Szabo Euamé Gibnayosy
Chairman - CEO CFO
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